


A key strategy for identifying new market opportunities 
is to look for untapped or underserved markets. These 
are markets that have not yet been fully explored or are 
not being adequately served by existing companies.

Collaboration is a powerful tool for expanding into 
new markets, as it allows a business to leverage the 
resources and expertise of other companies. When 
identifying new market opportunities, it's important 
to consider potential partners and collaborators that 
could help a business access new resources, expand 
its reach, and find new ways to grow.
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Ch. Muhammad Hussain Ch. Nazar Muhammad

The story of ‘Servis’ begins in late 1930s    
when a group of three young 

graduates from college, started exploring the 
possibility of doing business together instead 
of aspiring for secured jobs. These determined 
young men, Chaudhry Nazar Muhammad, 
Chaudhry Mohammad Husain, both hailing from 
villages in Gujrat and Chaudhry Muhammad 
Saeed from the neighboring district of 
Gujranwala, had scarce capital as they came from 
families with modest means. They pooled their 
personal savings, and started a small businesses 
of making Mosquito nets, minor steel products, 
leather chappals and eventually travel bags, hand 
bags and holdalls, made of canvas and leather 
largely for supply to the army. Their promising 
business, operating out of an apartment with four 
small rooms in Gawalmandi, Lahore, received a 
serious setback at the end of World War II when 
the army stopped purchases and again in 1947 
when subcontinent was partitioned into Pakistan 
and India. Most of their market was lost as it was 
based in Indian Cities of Delhi, Bombay, Calcutta, 
Madras and Cawnpur. The money thus lost was 

Our History

never recovered. They were using a neutral 
name of Service Limited for their products, not 
revealing any particular religious identity under 
intense competition from people of other faiths. 

After independence, they started their business 
afresh and this time with production of slippers, 
commonly called chappals in Pakistan. The 
limitation of financial resources did not deter 
them.  They had experience of handling leather 
and canvas as well as handmade chappals. They 
established Service industries in 1953, converted 
to a Public Limited Company in 1959 and 
ultimately listed on the stock exchange in 1970. 

In 1954, they installed a shoe manufacturing 
plant at industrial area in Gulberg, Lahore, and 
started production in the same year. The industry 
started manufacturing various types of shoes. A 
few years earlier retail outlet had been started at 
the Mall Road under banner of Hilal Store, later 
converted into a Servis store.

At Gujrat, they acquired large piece of land 
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Ch. Muhammad Saeed

and established one of the biggest industrial 
complexes in Punjab, manufacturing leather and 
canvas footwear, canvas fabric, textile spinning 
and eventually also bicycle tires and tubes.  

Humility, fairness and diligence were the core 
values held by our founders and these led to 
the phenomenal success of the group over the 
years. They were hugely focused on the impact 
of their enterprise on society as a whole. They 
remained extremely particular about payment of 
taxes to the national exchequer, and in looking 
after the interests of shareholder and workforce 
alike. The importance to society of creating 
employment opportunities, improve employees’ 
qualifications, develop backward areas and 
establish an export market stemmed from their 
vision and directed their growth. 

In the public sphere, they were the pioneers and 
founders of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry, the Federation of Chambers of 
Commerce and Industry and the Lahore Stock 
Exchange.

Ch Nazar Muhammad and Ch Muhammad 
Saeed were both Presidents of the Lahore 
Chamber, and Ch Nazar Muhammad also served 
as the President of the Federation of Chambers 
of Commerce and Industry as well as Chairman 
of the newly established Lahore Stock Exchange. 
He founded the Businessmen Hospital Trust and 
through it became the founding Chairman of the 
Shalamar Hospital.

Ch Mohammad Husain was a great promoter of 
cricket and became President for the Board of 
Control for Cricket in Pakistan.

Today, the Servis group has transferred into 3 
companies namely Service Industries Limited, 
Service Global Footwear Limited and Service 
Long March Tyres (Pvt) Limited selling world class 
shoes, all steel truck and bus radial tyres, Agri 
Tyres and tubes, 2 wheeler and 3 wheeler tyres 
and tubes with a retail network operating with 
the brand of Servis. Servis group is the leading 
exporter of footwear, tyres and tubes from 
Pakistan. Our manufacturing facilities are spread 
over four locations, with three in Punjab and one 
in Sindh.

A humble venture of three friends has grown into 
a group that employs almost fifteen thousand 
people and makes a difference in the lives of 
millions of people every day.
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To become the region's leading supply chain company by achieving 
consistent and sustained growth and delivering value to its business 
partners and its people.

VISION

Our Vision and Mission

MISSION

Strive continuously to exceed customer expectations in quality, 
delivery and service by developing top talent in the company and in 
its supply chain.
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To become the most trusted footwear atelier for our partners around 
the world through a culture of inclusivity, innovation, transparency 
and agility; and to deliver the highest value to our employees, 
shareholders and society.

To add value to our partners around the world by delivering the finest 
quality through continuous improvement.
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Company Information

Board of Directors

Mr. Arif Saeed
Chairman / Non-Executive Director
Mr. Hassan Javed
Chief Executive Officer /
Executive Director
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Omar Saeed
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha
Independent Director
Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone
Independent Director
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
Independent Director
Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema
Executive Director
Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer
Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Usman Liaqat

Company Secretary
Mr. Waheed Ashraf

Audit Committee
Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone
Chairman
Mr. Omar Saeed 
Member 
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
Member 

Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee
Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha 
Chairman 
Mr. Hassan Javed 
Member 
Mr. Omar Saeed 
Member

Bankers
MCB Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited
Askari Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) 
Limited
Samba Bank Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
Bank of Punjab - Islamic
United Bank Limited

Auditors
M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company, 
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisor
Muhammad Ashfaq, 
Advocate High Court, 
of M/s. Bokhari Aziz & Karim
2–A, Block–G, Gulberg–II, Lahore.

Registered Office
Servis House,
2–Main Gulberg, Lahore–54662.
Tel:+92-42-35751990-96
Fax:+92-42-35710593   

Shares Registrar
M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited
Wings Arcade, 1–K
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore
Tel:+92–42– 35916719, 
           35839182
Fax: +92–42–35869037

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Stock Exchange Symbol SGF

Factory
10-KM Muridke, Sheikhupura Road, 
Muridke

Web Presence
www.serviceglobalfootwear.com
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"Let the 
boundlessness be 
your boundary!”
– Mehmet Murat ildan
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Geographical Presence
Our products are available in more than twenty countries.

Hong Kong

UK

Chile

USA

Canada

Ireland

Japan

Australia

South Africa

Germany

France

Spain Italy

Croatia
Austria

Romania

Russia

Belgium

Panama

Switzerland
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"The new frontier 
lies not beyond the 
planets but within 
each one of us."
– Pierre Trudeau
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the 5th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Service Global Footwear Limited (the Company) will be held on 
Friday, the April 26, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. at Shalimar Tower Hotel, Adjacent Servis House, 2 - Main Gulberg, Lahore, to transact the following 
business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited separate and consolidated financial statements of Service Global Footwear Limited (the 
‘Company’) for the year ended December 31, 2023, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review 
Report.

 
 In accordance with Section 223(7) of the Companies Act, 2017 and S.R.O No. 389(I)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, the financial statements 

of the Company have been uploaded on the Company’s website which can be downloaded from the following link and QR enabled code:

 https://www.serviceglobalfootwear.com/financial-reports/#1611070650709-0e31e898-6388

2. To approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 2 per share i.e. 20% as recommended by the Board of Directors in addition to the interim cash 
dividend of Rs. 3 per share i.e. 30% already paid to the shareholders of the Company making a total cash dividend of Rs. 5 per share i.e. 
50% for the year ended December 31, 2023.

3. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration. The members are hereby given notice that the Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors have recommended the name of retiring auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants for re-appointment as 
auditors of the Company.

Special Business:

4. To consider and if deemed fit and pass with or without modification, a resolution as Special Resolution, as proposed in the Statement 
of Material Facts, pursuant to the provisions of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 for renewal of the investment in the form of 
working capital loan of up to PKR 4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five Hundred Million Only) in Service Industries Limited, a holding 
/ associated company approved by the shareholders vide special resolution dated April 28, 2023 and expiring on June 30, 2024 for a 
further period of one year till June 30, 2025 with all other terms and conditions of the investment to remain unchanged.

 
(Annexed to the notice being circulated to the shareholders is a statement of material facts and draft resolutions pertaining to special business 
to be transacted at the AGM).

  By Order of the Board 

Lahore                  Waheed Ashraf
April 04, 2024                  Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 20, 2024 to April 26, 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfers 
received in order by our Shares Registrar, M/s. Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the 
close of business on April 19, 2024 will be considered in time for the purpose of entitlement of final cash dividend and to attend, speak 
and vote at the AGM.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another member as his / her proxy 
to attend and vote in place of him / her at the meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the 
Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the time of meeting. A proxy must be a member of the Company. Proxy 
Forms in Urdu and English languages are attached to the notice circulated to the shareholders.

3. Members who have deposited their shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“CDC”) will further have to follow the 
under mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan in Circular No 1 of 2000

A. For Attending the Meeting
a. In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as per the CDC 

Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or, original Passport at the time of attending 
the Meeting.

b. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be 
produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies
a. In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as per the CDC 

Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements.
b. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the 

form.
c. Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
d. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.
e. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished (unless it has 

been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

4. The members can also participate in the Annual General Meeting through video link facility.

 To attend the AGM through video link, members and their proxies are requested to register their following particulars by sending an 
e-mail at shareholders@servis.com. 

Folio / CDC Account 
No.

No. of
shares held

Name CNIC No. Cell No. Email address

 The video link and login credentials will be shared with the shareholders whose e-mails, containing all the requested particulars, are 
received at the given e-mail address by or before the close of business hours (5:00 p.m.) on April 22, 2024. 

5. In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay cash dividend 
to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to receive 
dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to submit Electronic Credit Mandate directly to the shareholder’s 
Broker/Participant/CDC Account Services.
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6. The Government of Pakistan has made certain amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed 
for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These rates are as follows:

 For filers of income tax returns             15%
 For non-filers of income tax returns  30%

 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30% all the shareholders whose names 
are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to 
make sure that their names are entered into ATL before the date of payment of the cash dividend, otherwise tax on their cash dividend 
will be deducted @ 30% instead of 15%.

 In the case of shares registered in the name of two or more shareholders, each joint-holder is to be treated individually as either a 
filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted by the Company on the basis of shareholding of each joint-holder as may be notified to the 
Company in writing. If the share is not ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and 
the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher rate, the joint account holders are 
requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar of the Company latest by the AGM date.

Folio / CDC Account 
No.

Name of
Shareholder

CNIC Shareholding
Total

Shares
Principal/Joint

Shareholder

 
 The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated with their respective 

participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the Company or the Shares Registrar. 
The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company name and their respective folio 
numbers.

7. Procedure for E-Voting

a. In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulation, 2018, (the “Regulations”) the right to vote through electronic voting 
facility and voting by post shall be provided to members of every listed company for, inter alia, all businesses classified as special 
business under the Companies Act, 2017 in the manner and subject to conditions contained in the Regulations.

b. Detail of e-Voting facility will be shared through e-mail with those members of the company who have valid cell numbers / e-mail 
addresses (Registered e-mail ID) available in the Register of Members of the Company by the end of business on April 19, 2024. 
Members who intend to exercise their right of vote through E-voting shall provide their valid cell numbers and email addresses on 
or before April 19, 2024.

c. Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic signature or 
authentication for login. 

d. Members shall cast vote for the agenda item No. 4 online from April 23, 2024 till April 25, 2024 5:00 p.m. Voting shall close on 
April 25, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. A vote once cast by a Member, shall not be allowed to be changed

8. Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot

a. Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. For convenience of the members, Ballot Paper is annexed to this 
notice and the same is also available on the Company’s website www.serviceglobalfootwear.com to download.

b. The members must ensure that the duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with a copy of Computerized National Identity 
Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post at the Company’s registered address, Servis House, 2-Main 
Gulberg, Lahore, or email at chairman@servis.com one day before the AGM, i.e., on April 25, 2024 before 5:00 p.m. In case of 
member is a corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall also be furnished (unless 
it has been provided earlier) along with ballot paper to the Company. A postal ballot received after this time / date shall not be 
considered for voting. The signature on the Ballot Paper shall match with signature on the CNIC.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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c. In accordance with the Regulation 11 of the Regulations, the Board of the Company has appointed M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, 
Chartered Accountants, (a QCR rated audit firm) to act as the Scrutinizer of the Company for the special business to be transacted in 
the meeting and to undertake other responsibilities as defined in Regulation 11 of the Regulations.

9. A valid tax exemption certificate is necessary for exemption from the deduction of withholding tax under Section 150 of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001. Members who qualify under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and wish to seek an exemption must provide a copy of 
their valid tax exemption certificate to the Shares Registrar prior to the date of book closure otherwise tax will be deducted according to 
applicable law.

10. The Company has placed the Annual Report containing Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, 
Auditors’ and Directors’ Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report on its website: www.Serviceglobalfootwear.com and can also be 
downloaded / viewed from the following QR code and weblink: 

 https://www.serviceglobalfootwear.com/financial-reports/#1611070650709-0e31e898-6388

11. Shareholders have passed an Ordinary Resolution in Annual General Meeting held on April 28, 2023 to transmit annual report through 
QR enabled code and weblink in compliance of directive of SRO 389(I)/2023 dated 21st March 2023. The shareholders who wish to 
receive hard copy of the aforesaid financial statements may send to the Company Secretary / Share Registrar, the Standard Request Form 
available on the website of the Company and the Company will supply hard copies of the aforesaid document to the shareholders on 
demand, free of cost, within one week of such demand. 

12. For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact the Shares Registrar: Mr. Muhammad Akbar Moghal, Phone No. 042-
35839182, 35916714, 35916719, e-mail address: corplink786@gmail.com and / or the Company: Mr. Tahir Maqsood, Phone No. 042-
35751990, email address: shareholders@servis.com

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 CONCERNING THE SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to 
be held on April 26, 2024.

Item No. 4 of the Agenda – Renewal of investment in the form of working capital loan up to PKR 4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five 
Hundred Million Only) in Service Industries Limited, a holding / associated company

The members of Service Global Footwear Limited (SGFL) in their Annual General Meeting held on April 28, 2023 had renewed the investment 
in the form of working capital loan of up to PKR 4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five Hundred Million Only) in Service Industries Limited (SIL), 
a holding / associated company, as and when required by SIL, for a further period of one year till June 30, 2024 pursuant to the requirements 
of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 at markup rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 5 bps, which shall not be less than the borrowing cost 
of the Company to be charged by SGFL on the amount of loan outstanding. Nil amount of working capital loan is outstanding against this 
investment as on April 01, 2024.

The tenor of the working capital loan will be expiring on June 30, 2024. It is now proposed to renew the investment in the form of working 
capital loan of up to PKR 4.5 Billion for a further period of one year till June 30, 2025. All other terms and conditions of the investment will 
remain unchanged. The renewal of the working capital loan facility is subject to approval of the shareholders of SGFL in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017. 

Regulation No. 5(7) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 issued by SECP 
vide SRO 1240(I)/2017 dated December 06, 2017 requires that the Company shall not extend to an associated company or associated 
undertaking any loan or advance as running finance, revolving line of credit or any other similar facility for a period beyond one year provided 
that members may approve renewal of such loan or advance pursuant to section 199 of the Act. Further, Section 199(4) of the Companies Act, 
2017 requires that no change in nature and terms and conditions of the investment shall be made except under the authority of a special 
resolution.
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Accordingly, renewal of the working capital loan to Service Industries Limited is being presented to the members for approval through passing 
of special resolution to fulfill the requirements of the afore-mentioned law and regulations.

The Board of Directors of SGFL in their meeting held on February 21, 2024 has recommended the renewal of working capital loan of up to PKR 
4.5 Billion for a further period of one year till June 30, 2025 subject to approval of special resolution by the shareholders.

None of the Directors, sponsors, majority shareholders of the Company and their relatives have any interest, directly or indirectly, in the 
proposed special resolution, except as stated below: 

Service Global Footwear Limited do not hold any share in Service Industries Limited.

Mr. Arif Saeed, Mr. Omar Saeed and Mr. Hassan Javed Directors of the Company, are also Directors of SIL. 

Following are their present shareholdings in SIL:

Name of Director Shareholding

Mr. Arif Saeed and his spouse 5,136,666

Mr. Omar Saeed  4,765,824

Mr. Hassan Javed  9,064,524

Service Industries Limited (SIL), a holding / associated company, currently holds 79.43% shareholding in Service Global Footwear Limited. The 
shareholding of the Directors of Service Global Footwear Limited is as follows:

Name of Director Shareholding

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed 1

Mr. Arif Saeed 782,001

Mr. Omar Saeed  1,455,501

Mr. Hassan Javed 1

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha 1

Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone 1

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash 1

Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema 400,001

Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer 300,001

The Service Global Footwear Limited (SGFL) and its sponsors and directors have no interest, directly or indirectly in the Company except as 
stated above.

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as special resolutions, with or without any modification.

“Resolved that pursuant to the requirements of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, approval of the members of Service Global 
Footwear Limited (the “Company”) be and is hereby accorded and the Company be and is hereby authorized to renew the investment 
of up to PKR 4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five Hundred Million) in the form of working capital loan in Service Industries Limited, 
a holding / associated company, approved by the shareholders vide special resolution dated April 28, 2023 and expiring on June 30, 
2024, for a further period of one year till June 30, 2025 with all other terms and conditions of the investment to remain unchanged.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Further resolved that Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive Officer and / or Mr. Arif Saeed, and / or Mr. Omar Saeed, Directors of the Company 
be and is hereby singly empowered and authorized to undertake the decision of said investment as and when deemed appropriate and 
necessary in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders and to take all steps and actions necessary, incidental and ancillary 
including execution of any and all documents and agreements as may be required in this regard and to do all acts, deeds and things, that 
may be considered necessary or necessary for the purpose of implementing this resolution.”

Statement under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017

Name of Investee Company Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited (SLM) Service Industries Limited (SIL)

Total Investment Approved Long Term equity investment of Rs. 2,175,215,000 
for purchase of 217,521,500 shares was approved 
by the shareholders in the EOGM held on  
December 30, 2020. Subsequently, the shareholders 
in the EOGM held on April 28, 2022 enhanced the 
Long term equity investment by Rs. 350,000,000 
from Rs. 2,175,215,000 to upto Rs. 2,525,215,000 
for purchase of 35,000,000 shares.

The shareholders in the EOGM held on January 
22, 2024 approved further long term equity 
investment of up to Rs. 1,500,000,000 for purchase 
of 150,000,000 shares. 

-   Working capital loan of up to Rs. 4.5 
Billion for a period of one year till June 
30, 2024.

-   Long-term loan of Rs. 2.5 Billion for a 
period of six years till June 30, 2027.

Amount of Investment made to date An investment of Rs. 2,709,717,040 has been made 
so far by the Company by acquiring 270,971,704 
shares in SLM.

-   No working capital loan is outstanding 
as of today.

-   Investment made in the form of Long-
term loan amounting to Rs. 350 Million 
for a period of six years till June 30, 
2027.

Reasons for deviations from the 
approved timeline of investment, 
where investment decision was to 
be implemented in a specified time 

No deviation. The validity of resolution for investment 
was five (5) years from January 22, 2024.

No deviation. The investment in working 
capital loan and long term loan will be 
made as and when funds are required by the 
associated company.

Material change in financial 
statements of associated company 
or associated undertaking since 
the date of the resolution passed 
for approval of investment in such 
company

The associated company has since commenced the 
commercial operations and earned profit after tax of Rs.  
2.51 Billion during the twelve months from January 
01, 2023 to December 31, 2023, against loss after tax 
of Rs. 1.18 Billion for same period last year. EPS stood 
at Rs. 0.20 for the twelve months ended December 
31, 2023. SLM is presently operating at full capacity.

As per latest audited financial statements for the 
year ended June 30, 2023 the balance sheet size is 
Rs. 31.54 Billion, Loss after tax is Rs. 547 Million and 
Loss per share is Rs. 0.44. As per audited financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 the 
balance sheet size was Rs. 26.79 Billion, Loss after tax 
was Rs. 334 Million and Loss per share was Rs. 0.38.

There is no material change in the financial 
statements of the associated company since 
the date of passing of special resolution.

As per latest audited financial statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2023 the 
balance sheet size is Rs. 44.43 Billion, Profit 
after tax is Rs. 1.34 Billion and Earnings per 
share is Rs. 28.56. As per audited financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 
2020 the balance sheet size was Rs. 24.45 
Billion, Profit after tax was Rs. 690 Million 
and Earnings per share was Rs. 29.37. 
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Information under Regulation 3(4) of the Regulations:

The documents relating to special business can be inspected by the shareholders in the general meeting as provided under Regulation 3(4) of 
the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017.
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"If you love to pass 
the frontiers, your 
reward will be brand-
new frontiers to pass!"
– Mehmet Murat ildan
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Board of Directors

Mr. Arif Saeed
Chairman / Non Executive Director

Mr. Hassan Javed
Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Director

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed
Non Executive Director

Mr. Omar Saeed
Non Executive Director

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha
Independent Director

Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone
Independent Director

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
Independent Director

Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer
Executive Director

Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema
Executive Director
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Group Executive Committee

Mr. Arif Saeed
Chairman / Director

Mr. Hassan Javed
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Omar Saeed
Director

Mr. Hassan Javed is a leather technologist from Nene College United Kingdom and Shoe 
Technologist from ISMS School Czech Republic. He is the Chief Executive Officer of Service 
Global Footwear Limited. He is also serving as a Director on the Boards of Service Industries 
Limited, Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited and Servis Foundation. Mr. Javed has 
also served Service Industries Limited in various capacities most notably as the Resident 
Director of Gujrat for more than fifteen years. He served as the Chairman, Board of Directors 
of Gujranwala Electricity Supply Company. He has also served as the Chairman of Pakistan 
Footwear Manufacturers Association.

Mr. Arif Saeed graduated from the University of Oxford. He is currently the Chief Executive 
Officer of Service Industries Limited and serves as a Director on the Board of Service Long 
March Tyres (Private) Limited as well as Servis Foundation. 

He was the founding Chairman of Quaid-e-Azam Solar Power (Private) Limited, Quaid-e-Azam 
Thermal Power (Private) Limited and the National Power Parks Management Company (Private) 
Limited which successfully set up four leading power projects in the public sector. 

Mr. Saeed serves on the Board of Governors of Aitchison College and the Divisional Public 
School, Lahore. He was one of the founders of the Pakistan Rugby Union and currently serves 
as its Chairman. He has also served on the Pakistan Cricket Board. 

He has been Chairman of the All Pakistan Textile Mills Association (APTMA) as well as the 
Lahore Stock Exchange. 

He currently also serves as the Chairman of Engineering Development Board (EDB) and as an 
Independent Director on the Board of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL).

Mr. Omar Saeed graduated with high honors from Brown University and did his Master’s in 
Business Administration from Harvard Business School. He is the Chief Executive Officer of 
Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited and Servis Foundation. Omar also serves as a Director 
on the Boards of Nestle Pakistan Limited, Systems Limited, Service Industries Limited, Service 
Global Footwear Limited and The Hunar Foundation. Omar has served as the Chief Executive 
Officer of Service Industries Limited (SIL) from 2011 to 2018. Under his stewardship, SIL won 
the highly prestigious Pakistan Stock Exchange Top 25 Companies Award for the years 2011, 
2013, 2014 and 2015.

Omar has set up multiple new companies for the Servis Group in the healthcare, trading, 
manufacturing and technology industries.
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2023 2022
(Rs in ‘000) % (Rs in ‘000) %

Wealth Generated

Sales  15,061,817  11,753,088 
Other Income  1,246,168  459,730 
Bought-in-material & Services  (9,833,290)  (8,031,958)

 6,474,695 100%  4,180,860 100%
Wealth Distributed 

To Employee

Remuneration , Benefits,and Facilties  3,596,734 56%  2,820,602 67%

To Government

Taxation  412,200 6%  345,891 8%
Workers welfare fund  32,527 1%  14,040 0%

To Society

Donation  -   0%  4,226 0%

To Lenders

Dividend  1,029,588 16%  717,807 17%
Mark up & finance Cost  1,007,721 16%  467,180 11%

Retained for Reinvestment & Future Growth

Depreciation  243,906 4%  186,862 4%
Retained Profit 152,019 2%  (375,748) -9%
Unappropriated profit,depreciation & amortization 395,925 6%  (188,886) -5%

 6,474,695 100%  4,180,860 100%

Value Added and its Distribution
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Wealth Generated and Distributed

Amount %

Bought in material & Services  9,833,290 60.30%
To Employees  3,596,734 22.06%
To Government  444,727 2.73%
To Society  -   0.00%
To Lenders  2,037,309 12.49%
Retained for reinvestment & Future 
Growth  395,925 2.43%

Total  16,307,985 100%

2023

Amount %

Bought in material & Services  8,031,958 65.77%
To Employees  2,820,602 23.10%
To Government  359,931 2.95%
To Society  4,226 0.03%
To Lenders  1,184,987 9.70%
Retained for reinvestment & Future 
Growth  (188,886) -1.55%

Total  12,212,818 100%

2022

2023

2022
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Analytical Review

Fixed Assets 

(Rs. in Million)

Current Assets 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

6,318

8,420

6,355
7,779

 12,337 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 1,029 

 2,088  2,131 
 2,595 

 3,068 

Current Liabilities

 11,861 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 4,468 
 5,795  5,463 

 7,683 

Long Term Liabilites

594

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 383 

 496 

 369 

 518 

Reserve

 6,501 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 2,512 

 4,231 
 6,729 

 6,165 

Contribution to Exchequer

 267 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

76
 62 

 113 

 254 

Net Sales

 15,062 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 3,651 

 6,895  7,040 

 11,753 

Cost of Sales

 11,761 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 2,835 

 5,525  5,802 

 9,567 

Gross Profit

 3,301 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 816 

 1,369  1,238 

 2,186 

Operating Profit

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 574 
 966 

749

1,379

2,127

Net Profit

 1,182 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 493 

 709 

 403 
 342 

EBITDA

 2,845 

2019        2020        2021        2022        2023

 639 

 1,050  928 

 1,342 
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Breakup Value

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

497.5

25.9 32.9 30.1  31.6 

Cash Flows from Financing
 Activities

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

2,399  2,558 

1,293

1,612

655

Net Profit Margin

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

13.5%

10.3%

5.7%

2.9%

7.8%

EBITDA Margins to Sales

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

18%

15%

13%

11%

19%

Gross Profit Margin

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

22%
18%

20% 19%

22%

Cash Flows from Operating 
Activities

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

(2,030)

682
344

(562)

(1,387)

Return on Equity

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

20%
17%

18%

6% 6%

Earning per share

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

46.75

8.25
2.10 1.67

 5.75 

Cash Flows from Investing 
Activities

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

(842)
(727)

(2,277)

601

745

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

12%

9%

4%

6%
5%

Debt to Equity Ratio

Return on Capital Employed

2019       2020       2021       2022      2023

18%

16%

8%
10%

22%
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Five Years at a Glance

Description 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
(6 months)

Sales  15,062  11,753  7,040  6,895  3,651 
Gross profit  3,301  2,186  1,238  1,369  816 
Operational profit  2,127  1,379  749  918  594 
Profit before tax  1,594  688  573  777  532 
Profit after tax  1,182  342  403  709  493 
Share capital  205.92  205.09  204.44  163.55   5.05  
Share holder's equity  6,501  6,164  6,729  4,231  2,512 
Property, plant & equipment  3,068  2,595  2,131  2,088  1,029 
Total assets  18,955  14,365  12,562  10,522  7,402 
Net current assets  476  96  891  2,625  1,850 
Market Value Per Share (Rs.)  60  33  46  -    -   

Dividend (%)

Cash - Interim  30  25  -    -    -   
Cash - Final  20  10  20  -    -   

Profitibility (%)

Gross Profit  21.92  18.60  17.58  19.86  22.34 
Operating profit  14.12  11.73  10.64  13.31  16.28 
Profit Before Tax  10.58  5.85  8.14  11.28  14.56 
Profit After Tax  7.85  2.91  5.73  10.28  13.52 

Return to Shareholders

R.O.E -Before Tax (%)  24.52  11.16  8.51  18.38  21.16 
R.O.E -After Tax (%)  18.18  5.54  5.99  16.75  19.64 
E.P.S-After Tax (Rs.)  5.75  1.67  2.10  8.25  46.75 
Price Earning Ratio  10.49  19.84  22.08  -    -   

Activity (Times)

Sales To Total Assets  0.79  0.82  0.56  0.66  0.49 
Sales To Fixed Assets  4.91  4.53  3.30  3.30  3.55 
Inventory Turnover Ratio  2.58  2.85  2.77  4.00  1.80 
Interest Coverage Ratio  2.58  2.47  4.11  6.54  9.48 

Liquidity/Leverage

Current Ratio  1.04  1.01  1.16  1.45  1.41 
Break-up Value per Share  31.57  30.06  32.92  25.87  497.45 
Total Liabilities To Equity  1.92  1.33  0.87  1.49  1.95 
Debt Equity Ratio  05:95  06:94  04:96  09:91  12:88 
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"There are no dreams 
too large no innovation 
unimaginable and no 
frontiers beyond our reach" 
– John S.Herrington
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Horizontal Analysis
2023 2022 2021 2020

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 %
Balance Sheet

Equity & Reserve  6,500,843 5%  6,164,524 -8%  6,729,388 59.1%  4,230,787 68.4%
Long term financing facilities  310,565 -14%  360,852 43%  252,589 -35.8%  393,429 23.1%
Non Current Liability  283,197 80%  157,391 35%  116,625 14.2%  102,118 60.0%
Current Liabilities  11,860,656 54%  7,682,519 41%  5,463,321 -5.7%  5,795,184 29.7%

18,955,261 32% 14,365,286 14% 12,561,923 19.4% 10,521,518 42.9%

Non-Current Asset

Property Plant and Equipment  3,067,982 18%  2,594,578 22%  2,131,404 2.1%  2,087,874 102.9%
long term investment  2,780,856 25%  2,217,650 23%  1,805,402 0.0%  -   0.0%
long term loan &deposit  769,424 -57%  1,774,206 -22%  2,270,404 16993.8%  13,282 -18.6%

Current Asset    
Stores and spares  123,493 51%  81,956 90%  43,061 -1.1%  43,535 20.6%
Stock in-trade  4,554,136 36%  3,360,359 61%  2,093,095 51.6%  1,381,029 -12.5%
Trade Debts  1,710,366 -7%  1,839,720 125%  817,714 -12.6%  936,041 42.0%
Loans & Advances  1,457,205 18%  1,230,354 -21%  1,557,662 -50.5%  3,149,790 32.2%
Trade Deposits and Prepayments  8,316 -36%  12,988 98%  6,564 0.3%  6,546 110.6%
Other recievables  1,580,433 45%  1,091,855 21%  901,200 -45.3%  1,647,008 -0.2%
Cash and Balance  2,903,050 1696%  161,620 -83%  935,417 -25.5%  1,256,413 14541.8%

18,955,261 32% 14,365,286 14.4% 12,561,923 19.4% 10,521,518 42.9%

2023 2022 2021 2020

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Increase/(Decrease) 
from last year

Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 %
Profit & Loss
Net Sales  15,061,817 28.2%  11,753,088 66.9%  7,040,157 2.1%  6,894,711 88.9%
Cost of Sales  11,760,696 22.9%  9,567,437 64.9%  5,802,423 5.0%  5,525,411 94.9%
Gross Profit  3,301,121 51.0%  2,185,651 76.6%  1,237,734 -9.6%  1,369,300 67.9%
Administration and selling expenses  1,945,761 30.6%  1,490,251 46.5%  1,017,231 17.3%  867,498 77.4%
Other income  772,129 12.9%  683,804 29.5%  528,133 13.8%  464,069 87.5%
Operating profit  2,127,489 54.3%  1,379,204 84.2%  748,636 -22.5%  965,871 68.3%
Financial charges  1,007,721 115.7%  467,180 153.8%  184,057 31.2%  140,320 123.9%
Share of profit  474,039 311.6%  (224,074) -2831.9%  8,202 -117.0%  (48,110) -337.6%
Profit before taxation  1,593,807 131.7%  687,950 20.1%  572,781 -26.3%  777,441 46.2%
Provision for taxation  412,200 19.2%  345,891 104.0%  169,560 147.0%  68,646 79.8%
Profit after taxation  1,181,607 245.4%  342,059 -15.2%  403,221 -43.1%  708,795 43.6%
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Vertical Analysis
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) 

Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 %
Balance Sheet

Equity & Reserve  6,500,843 34.3%  6,164,524 42.9%  6,729,388 53.6%  4,230,787 40.2%  2,512,143 34.1%
Long term financing facilities  310,565 1.6%  360,852 2.5%  252,589 2.0%  393,429 3.7%  319,484 4.3%
Non Current Liability  283,197 1.5%  157,391 1.1%  116,625 0.9%  102,118 1.0%  63,817 0.9%
Current Liabilities  11,860,656 62.6%  7,682,519 53.5%  5,463,321 43.5%  5,795,184 55.1%  4,468,062 60.7%

18,955,261 100.0% 14,365,286 100.0% 12,561,923 100.0% 10,521,518 100.0% 7,363,506 100.0%

Non-Current Asset

Property Plant and Equipment  3,067,982 16.2%  2,594,578 18.1%  2,131,404 17.0%  2,087,874 19.8%  1,029,030 14.0%
Long term investment  2,780,856 14.7%  2,217,650 15.4%  1,805,402 14.4%  -   0.0%  -   0.0%
Long term loans & deposit  769,424 4.1%  1,774,206 12.4%  2,270,404 18.1%  13,282 0.1%  16,318 0.2%

Current Asset

Stores and spares  123,493 0.7%  81,956 0.6%  43,061 0.3%  43,535 0.4%  36,112 0.5%
Stock in-trade  4,554,136 24.0%  3,360,359 23.4%  2,093,095 16.7%  1,381,029 13.1%  1,577,779 21.4%
Trade Debts  1,710,366 9.0%  1,839,720 12.8%  817,714 6.5%  936,041 8.9%  659,099 9.0%
Loans & Advances  1,457,205 7.7%  1,230,354 8.6%  1,557,662 12.4%  3,149,790 29.9%  2,382,786 32.4%
Trade Deposits and Prepayments  8,316 0.0%  12,988 0.1%  6,564 0.1%  6,546 0.1%  3,108 0.0%
Other recievables  1,580,433 8.3%  1,091,855 7.6%  901,200 7.2%  1,647,008 15.7%  1,650,692 22.4%
Cash and Balance  2,903,050 15.3%  161,620 1.1%  935,417 7.4%  1,256,413 11.9%  8,582 0.1%

18,955,261 100.0% 14,365,286 100.0% 12,561,923 100.0% 10,521,518 100.0% 7,363,506 100.0%

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) 

Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 % Rs '000 %
Profit & Loss
Net Sales  15,061,817 100.0%  11,753,088 100.0%  7,040,157 100.0%  6,894,711 100.0%  3,650,875 100.0%
Cost of Sales  11,760,696 78.1%  9,567,437 81.4%  5,802,423 82.4%  5,525,411 80.1%  2,835,367 77.7%
Gross Profit  3,301,121 21.9%  2,185,651 18.6%  1,237,734 17.6%  1,369,300 19.9%  815,508 22.3%
Administration and selling expenses  1,945,761 12.9%  1,490,251 12.7%  1,017,231 14.4%  867,498 12.6%  488,983 13.4%
Other income  772,129 5.1%  683,804 5.8%  528,133 7.5%  464,069 6.7%  247,517 6.8%
Operating profit  2,127,489 14.1%  1,379,204 11.7%  748,636 10.6%  965,871 14.0%  574,042 15.7%
Financial charges  1,007,721 6.7%  467,180 4.0%  184,057 2.6%  140,320 2.0%  62,678 1.7%
Share of profit  474,039 3.1%  (224,074) -1.9%  8,202 0.1%  (48,110) -0.7%  20,248 0.6%
Profit before taxation  1,593,807 10.6%  687,950 5.9%  572,781 8.1%  777,441 11.3%  531,612 14.6%
Provision for taxation  412,200 2.7%  345,891 2.9%  169,560 2.4%  68,646 1.0%  38,185 1.0%
Profit after taxation  1,181,607 7.8%  342,059 2.9%  403,221 5.7%  708,795 10.3%  493,427 13.5%
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Balance Sheet Composition     
Fixed and Current Assets

2023

Fixed assets 16%
Long term investments 15%
Long term loans and deposits 4%
Stores and spares 1%
Stock in trade 24%
Trade debts - net 9%
Advances and prepayments 8%
Other receivables 8%
Cash and bank balances 15%

Equities and Liabilities

2023

Equity & Reserves 34%
Long term financing 2%
Non Current Liabilities 1%
Current liabilities 63%

2022

Equity & Reserves 43%
Long term financing 3%
Non Current Liabilities 1%
Current liabilities 53%

2022

Fixed assets 18%
Long term investments 15%
Long term loans and deposits 12%
Stores and spares 1%
Stock in trade 23%
Trade debts - net 13%
Advances and prepayments 9%
Other receivables 8%
Cash and bank balances 1%

18%

2022
15%

12%

1%23%

13%

9%

8%
1%

2023

16%15%

15%

4%
1%

24%

9%

8%

8%

34%

2%
1%

63% 2023

43%

3%

1%

53% 2022
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"The principle mark of 
genius is not perfection 
but originality, the 
opening of new frontiers." 
– Arthur Koestler
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Chairman’s Review

I am pleased to report that the performance of the Board remained 
par excellence throughout the year and their contributions 
effectively steered the Company towards achievement of its 
objectives and creation of new benchmarks, while maintaining its 
reputation for good governance and providing steady returns to 
our shareholders.

The Company has a nine (9) member Board of Directors (“the 
Board”) which comprises of individuals with diverse background 
having core competencies, knowledge, and experience relevant 
to the business of the Company. The Composition of the Board 
and its Committees is in accordance with the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019. 

The Board has developed a mechanism for annual evaluation 
of Board’s own performance, members of the Board and 
its Committees in compliance with the provisions of Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. 
The performance evaluation mechanism also ensures that all 
statutory and legal requirements are fulfilled with regard to 
procedures, meetings and oversight role of the Board. 

During the financial year 2023, the Board successfully achieved 
targets and objectives set for the growth of the Company by 
performing the following functions:

• Ensured effective and robust oversight. 
• Supervised overall corporate strategy, key financial 

performance indicators and other budgetary targets. 
• Ensured the quality and appropriateness of financial reporting 

and the transparency of disclosures.
• Carried out risk assessment especially relating to regulatory 

and legal requirements, market trends, materials’ supply 
and price, energy availability and cost, foreign exchange 
fluctuations, interest rate and liquidity.

• Reviewed effectiveness of internal control system.
• Evaluated the significant investments.
• Reviewed details of financing facilities availed by the Company.
• Ensured timely dissemination of price sensitive and inside 

information to relevant regulatory authorities. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present to you the Annual Report 
of Service Global Footwear Limited (“the Company”) showing overall performance of 
the Company and effectiveness of the leadership in attaining the Company’s aims 
and objectives for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The Board of the company is fully committed to add value to 
the shareholders’ wealth. Consistent with our commitment to 
provide steady returns to our shareholders, the Board is pleased 
to propose a final dividend of Rs. 2/- per share. 

Arif Saeed
Chairman

February 21, 2024
Lahore
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Net Sales for the financial year 2023 reached a record high of over 
Rs. 15 billion, representing an exceptional growth of 28% in comparison 
to the previous year. The YOY increase in Gross Profit from Rs. 2.2 billion 
to Rs. 3.3 billion (51%) and Operating Profit from Rs. 1.4 billion to Rs. 
2.1billion (53%) is even more promising. This signifies the ability of 
SGFL to manage its operations effectively in face of economic challenges 
caused by unprecedented local inflation and swelling cost of production.
 
SGFL's strategic move of investing in Service Long March Tyres (SLM) has 
gained a share of profit of Rs. 474 million, resulting in an increase in 
profit before tax from Rs.688 million to Rs. 1,594 million (132%). The 
investment in SLM is not only yielding immediate rewards, but it is 
also expected to have a lasting impact on the future profitability of the 
company resulting in  positive shareholder value. The Net Profit after tax 
has reached Rs. 1,182 million as compared to  last profit after tax of year 
Rs. 342 million. This has resulted in an increase of EPS from Rs. 1.67 to 
Rs. 5.75 in the current year.

These results are not achieved on the back of an easy sailing, in fact it is 
an outcome of proactive anticipation and a well thought out strategy to 
manage growth in the aftermath of Covid. To give you some perspective, 
in the year 2023, the economic conditions in our key export markets 
(EU & US) exerted an immense pressure on the sales of footwear, which 
resulted in shrinking of businesses of all our existing clients by 15~20%. 
The volume of footwear imports in EU is seeing a continuous decline 
reaching 2.3 billion pairs as compared to 2.4 billion pairs in 2022 and 
2.8 billion pairs in 2021 (numbers from statista.com). Similarly, a report 
issued by FDRA (Footwear Distributors & Retailers of America) states, “the 
volume of footwear imports retreated year over year for the fifteenth 
straight month in November’23, retreating -9.1%, barely avoiding a 
tenth straight double-digit decline”.

On the backend, the company was required to counter unprecedented 
inflation, increasing wages, political instability, high interest rates, and 
difficulty in the import of raw materials. All these factors caused a rapid 
increase in the cost of production and negatively impacted production 
efficiencies, resulting in a significant drop in profit margins.

The management values the significance of introducing innovative 
techniques and well-planned growth initiatives to counter prevailing 
economic challenges and operational hurdles in a tough global 
landscape. The company remains steadfast in its commitment to 
delivering substantial value to its shareholders, creating a positive impact 
on its overall performance, and reinforcing the trust and confidence of its 
investor base.

The Directors of Service Global Footwear Limited (“SGFL” or the 
“Company”) are pleased to present the Annual Report along with the 
audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 
(“FY 2023”).

The Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 226-227  and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2017. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

SGFL is a prominent player in the footwear industry, operating 
manufacturing facilities that exclusively produce footwear products 
for export markets. As the largest exporter of footwear from Pakistan, 
SGFL places a primary emphasis on catering the comfort shoe 
category as its specialty and a key driver of revenue.

The registered Head Office of SGFL is situated at Servis House, 2-Main 
Gulberg, Lahore. 

The Company is the subsidiary of Service Industries Limited (SIL).

REVIEW OF BUSINESS

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIS) FOR FY 2023 V/S FY 
2022 
Service Global Footwear Limited (SGFL) has shown growth in 2023 
despite prevailing conditions of national and international economic 
meltdown. Below chart demonstrates the key performance indicators 
of SGFL for the year ended December 31, 2023, against the results of 
year ended December 31, 2022. 

PARTICULARS
2023 2022

Amount In 
Thousands

Percentage
To Sales

Amount In 
Thousands

Percentage
To Sales

Net Sales 15,061,817 11,753,088

Gross Profit 3,301,121 22% 2,185,651 19%

Operating Profit 2,127,489 14% 1,379 204 12%

Profit before tax 1,593,807 11% 687,950 6%

Net profit after tax 1,181,607 8% 342,059 3%

Earning Per Share (EPS) 5.75 1.67

Net sales (Rs in Mil.) Gross profit (Rs in Mil.)

Net profit (Rs in Mil.)
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GROUP REPORTING – SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Group comprises of Service Global Footwear Limited and Dongguan 
Service Global Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company of Service 
Global Footwear Limited.

Dongguan Service Global Limited

Dongguan Service Global Limited is a limited liability company 
(wholly owned by foreign legal person) registered with Dongguan 
Administration of Market Regulations, China. Business scope of 
Dongguan Service Global Limited is wholesale of shoes and hats, sales 
of leather products, sales of needle textiles and raw materials, wholesale 
of hardware products, sales of bags, sales of daily necessities, inspection 
of clothing and apparel, finishing services, technical services and other 
related matters. Commercial address of Dongguan Service Global 
Limited is Room 302, No. 18, Houjie Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong 
Province, China. Service Global Footwear Limited owns 100% shares of 
Dongguan Service Global Limited.

Consolidated financial results of Service Global Footwear 
Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary: 

PARTICULARS
2023 2022

Amount In 
Thousands

Percentage
To Sales

Amount In 
Thousands

Percentage
To Sales

Net Sales 15,071,163 11,753,088

Gross Profit 3,346,474 22% 2,185,651 19%

Operating Profit 2,118,693 14% 1,379,204 12%

Profit before tax 1,583,534 11% 687,950 6%

Net profit after tax 1,171,334 8% 342,059 3%

Earning Per Share (EPS) 5.70 1.67

Information and explanation in regard  to contents of 
modification in Auditors Report  on Consolidated Financial 
Statements:

The auditors have qualified their opinion on consolidated financial 
statements on the basis that financial statements of Dongguan 
Service Global Limited, a subsidiary of Service Global Footwear 
Limited for the period ended December 31, 2023 are un-audited. 
As per local Chinese statutory guidelines, there is no requirement 
for external audit of the financial statements of Dongguan Service 
Global Limited. Moreover, the financial statements of Dongguan 
Service Global Limited are totally immaterial as part of the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
31 December 2023, therefore, keeping in view of immateriality, no 
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is mandated as per IFRS.   

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the company in their meeting held on 
December 19, 2023 has declared an interim cash dividend of Rs. 3 

per share amounting to Rs. 618 million (2022: interim cash dividend 
of Rs. 2.5 per share). The interim dividend was disbursed to members 
on January 11, 2024.

The Board of Directors of the company in their meeting held on 
February 21, 2024 has declared a final cash dividend of Rs. 2 per 
share (2022: Rs. 1 per share) which is subject to approval of members 
in the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 26, 2024.

INVESTMENT IN SERVICE LONG MARCH TYRES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 
(SLM)

The calendar year 2023 has been a good year for SLM. SLM is 
presently operating at full capacity. Expansion of production capacity 
is underway and letter of credits for new machinery have been 
established.

EVALUATION OF COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The Board of SGFL has established a systematic mechanism for 
ongoing performance evaluation. Each board member actively 
participates in board meetings, engaging in detailed discussions on 
strategic matters and providing clear directives to the management. 
The Board and its committees consistently monitor these directions 
to ensure their effective implementation.

To assess the Company's performance, the management employs a 
range of indicators, including industry growth, the standing of peer 
companies in the relevant business segment, past performance, 
macroeconomic indicators, and the overall business environment 
affecting the Company. Budgets are meticulously formulated, and 
the actual performance is regularly measured against these budgets 
throughout the year. This approach allows for timely identification of 
any deviations, enabling prompt corrective actions.

SGFL's management is dedicated to upholding the best practices of 
corporate governance. Quarterly reviews of business performance 
aim at continuous improvement against budget and previous year 
results. Importantly, the company has maintained a record of not 
defaulting on any debts throughout the year, indicating financial 
discipline and stability. This commitment to thorough evaluation, 
adherence to corporate governance practices, and financial 
responsibility reflects SGFL's dedication to sustained success and 
responsible business practices.

RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND MITIGATIONS

Principal Risks and Uncertainties and Mitigations:

SGFL has implemented a comprehensive risk management program 
with the primary objective of minimizing potential adverse impacts 
on the company's performance. The senior management team 
assumes responsibility for overseeing the overall risk management 
process, and the outcomes of these efforts are communicated to the 
Board of Directors.
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
The risk management program involves the identification, 
evaluation, and mitigation of strategic, financial, commercial, and 
operational risks that the company may encounter. By addressing 
these various dimensions of risk, SGFL aims to fortify its resilience in 
the face of uncertainties.

Additionally, the senior management team engages in an extensive 
budgeting and planning exercise, which includes a SWOT analysis 
of the company and its business segments. This thorough analysis 
allows for the identification of key challenges and opportunities. 
Action plans are then developed and executed to address challenges 
and capitalize on opportunities, aligning with the company's long-
term strategic objectives.

By integrating risk management into its overall business strategy 
and planning processes, SGFL demonstrates a proactive approach to 
navigating challenges, ensuring robust financial health, and pursuing 
sustainable growth. This commitment to strategic risk management 
positions the company to adapt to changing circumstances and 
capitalize on emerging opportunities in its industry.

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties and mitigation 
strategies:

Risk Description of 
Risk

Mitigation Strategies

Financial 
Risks

Financial 
risks include 
Economic Risk, 
Credit Risk and 
Liquidity Risk.

The Company has carefully 
designed strategies to cope up 
with these risks. These include 
budgeting, forecasting, planning, 
timely decision making, hedging, 
increasing exports, optimizing 
working capital levels, adequate 
credit lines from banks and close 
watch on government policy 
making etc.

Other 
Risks

Other risks 
include 
political risk, 
technological 
risk, competition 
risk, laws & 
environmental 
regulations.

The Company has developed 
strategies at various levels to deal 
with the said risks. These includes 
BMR, effective and efficient 
management of resources, strong 
and well-established distribution 
network, strong supply chain, 
brand development, economies 
of scale, technological efficiencies 
and engagement of professional 
resources.

IMPACT OF COMPANY’S BUSINESS ON ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)

SGFL strives for leadership in best practices. We maintain excellence 
in all areas of ESG (Environmental, Social & Corporate Governance).

a) Environment
 Our commitment towards Green and Clean Environment can 

be established from the fact that we are one of the first solar 
powered factories in the region. This mission of environmental 
leadership started in 2017 before demerger from SIL with 
installation of 1MW solar power park and we continued to 
enhance our reliance on green energy and currently operates 
2MW solar power which serves half of our electricity needs. 
A project that started with the objective of reducing carbon 
footprint, is in fact paying dividends as a cost-effective method 
of producing electricity as well.

 Additionally, SGFL is also certified by HIGG FEM (Facility 
Environmental Module), this testifies best eco-friendly 
practices across all areas of our production process. We have 
also integrated our sourcing of materials with RCS (Recycled 
Claim Standard). The packaging material follows FSC standards, 
which helps to minimize wastage and pursue best practices of 
procurement and utilization.

b) Social
We take pride in being a noble organization which not only 
fulfills its legal obligations of our worker’s safety and care, but 
also values cultural norms and promotes societal wellbeing. We 
are certified by various governing bodies like: 

• SEDEX (Supplier Ethical Data Exchange)
• BSCI (Business Social Compliance Initiative)
• SLCP (Social & Labor Convergence Program)
• HIGG FSLM (Facility Social & Labor module)

These certifications underscore our commitment towards 
fostering workplace conditions in alignment with human rights, 
International Labor Organization (ILO) conventions, and national 
labor laws. SGFL is committed towards ensuring fair, ethical, and 
preferential treatment of its workforce, promoting a healthy and 
respectful working environment.

Apart from these, we are certified by stringent COC (Code of 
Conduct) of various international brands. We always welcome all 
kinds of audits related to social compliance and keeps open door 
policy for suggestions on areas of improvement whereby we can 
safeguard interests and safety of our workforce. 

SGFL takes pride in being an equal opportunity employer and 
actively promotes diversity and inclusion in its workforce. The 
company encourages the participation of females and persons 
with special needs, demonstrating a commitment to fostering a 
diverse and equitable workplace.

SGFL also values its long serving people who have played key 
role in bringing the organization where it stands tall today. This 
year, we honored the contribution of 16 people with 25+ years 
of experience in vital positions and who have grown with the 
company.
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We will continue to be a place of opportunities for its people to 
make a difference, to fulfill our commitment of improving lives 
and bringing a positive change.
.

c) Governance
• Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance also holds a vital position in our 
scheme of things, SGFL has undergone comprehensive IMS 
implementation program which is certified by ISO 9001/2015 
(Quality Management), ISO 14001/2015 (Environmental 
Management), ISO 45001/2018 (Occupational Safety) & ISO 
17025/2017 (Laboratory Management System). We are also a 
CTPAT (Customs Trade Partnership Against Terrorism) certified 
facility.

These certifications endorse the health of our production 
processes, departmental structures, while providing the 
operational framework for Global Recognition, Quality 
Improvement, Productivity Enhancement, Risk Management, 
Market Access Methodology, Legal and Regulatory Compliance, 
Environmental Sustainability, Customer and Supplier Relations, 
Employee Engagement, and Continuous Improvement
 

• Business Ethics
Our commitment to conducting business with honesty and 
integrity, in full compliance with applicable laws and regulations, 
reflects a strong emphasis on ethical business practices. The 
Statement of Ethics & Business Practices, which highlights the 
company's policy to operate in accordance with the highest 
ethical considerations, underscores a dedication to maintaining 

a business culture that prioritizes integrity and compliance.
The commitment to comply with all statutory regulations 
and adhere to the best-accepted standards of good corporate 
citizenship is essential for building trust among stakeholders, 
including customers, employees, investors, and the broader 
community. This commitment not only aligns with legal 
requirements but also positions the company as a responsible 
corporate entity that values ethical conduct and social 
responsibility

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

SGFL has made a significant annual contribution to the national 
exchequer on account of taxes, duties and levies. In 2023, SGFL 
contributed PKR 267 million on this account.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

SGFL has been established with a vision to be a socially conscious 
business entity, aligning with its parent group's longstanding 
tradition of corporate giving. Over the past several decades, the 
Group has actively engaged in substantial philanthropic endeavors, 
particularly in the areas of health and education. SGFL aims to carry 
forward this legacy by aspiring to serve not only its employees, 
customers, and shareholders but also the broader communities and 
the environment.

The company's commitment is clear: to give back, share prosperity, 
and contribute to sustainable growth. This reflects a holistic approach 
to corporate social responsibility (CSR), emphasizing a positive 
impact on various stakeholders.
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"Anywhere you accept 
as a frontier will be 
your frontier! " 
– Mehmet Murat ildan
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In the pursuit of its social responsibility objectives, SGFL has 
allocated a sum of Rs. 10 million during the year for CSR activities. 
This financial commitment demonstrates the company's tangible 
efforts to contribute to societal well-being, community development, 
and environmental sustainability.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

We believe the outlook of SGFL in year 2024 and beyond is bright, 
in spite of the prevailing external circumstances. This confidence 
is gained from the fact that the company has accomplished extra-
ordinary results in the year 2023 while navigating through very 
tough business landscape in year 2023.

We strengthened our sales efforts by realigning the sales structure 
and approach for onboarding more customers of high potential. 
Some of the new leads have matured in the year 2023 already, while 
more customers have been engaged to enable growth in year 2024 
and beyond. Our penetration in the EU markets is strengthening 
further, while we have now found a sound foothold in the US market 
which brings bigger opportunities of rapid growth in future.

SGFL takes pride in being a customer friendly organization, we 
believe in forming a long-term collaboration with our valued clients 
and this approach has paid dividends by being the preferred supplier 
of our customers in difficult times. Our service towards new leads is 
no different which is establishing SGFL as a diverse and trustworthy 
supplier partner. This enables us to discuss long-term business plans 
with our customers and lay the foundation of our expansion strategy.
 
At the backend, SGFL will continue various initiatives to become 
more reliable and trustworthy partner for our valued customer base. 
The key areas include.

• Upgradation of production facility and processes to meet 
needs of new clients.

• Taking up new projects to enhance efficiency through skill 
development, product traceability and putting experienced 
foreign resources.

• We are investing heavily in human capital in terms of 
extensive trainings, hiring best of the best talent in the 
market both local and international.  

The exceptional performance of SLM has served as validation of our confidence 
in this venture. The outlook appears exceptionally promising, and we anticipate 
that it will make a substantial contribution to the future profitability of SGFL. .

ADHERENCE TO BEST PRACTICES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is determined to meet and, wherever possible, exceed 
all legal and ethical requirements and to conduct all businesses 
according to the highest professional and ethical standards and 
practices. The Board defines a path of continuous improvement 
constantly challenging existing processes. It also requires the 
Company to embrace change so that the Company is in the right 
place when new opportunities open. This also means attracting 

the best talent in the marketplace and giving them the skills and 
opportunities they need to become high achievers. The Company 
constantly reviews its portfolio to provide answers to society’s 
most vital challenges, enabling it to create sustainable value for its 
shareholders.

The company continues to evaluate internal controls and operations to 
ensure fair financial reporting processes, compliance with applicable 
laws and adherence with internal control systems. This also results in 
achieving our objective of adding value to our operations.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL 
REPORTING FRAMEWORK.

Following is the Directors’ statement on Corporate and Financial 
Reporting framework:

a. The financial statements prepared by the management of 
the Company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its 
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the 
Company.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently 
applied in the preparation of financial statements and 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as 
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation 
of financial statements.

e. The Company maintains a sound internal control system 
which gives reasonable assurance against any material 
misstatement or loss. The internal control system is regularly 
reviewed. This has been formalized by the Board’s Audit 
Committee and is updated as and when needed.

f. There are no significant doubts about the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.

g. There has been no material departure from the best practices 
of Corporate Governance. 

h. The Key operating and financial data for the last four years is 
annexed to the annual report

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Directors are responsible for the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls and review of its effectiveness. The Company has established 
an effective and efficient system of internal financial controls to 
safeguard the assets of the Company, prevent and detect fraud and 
ensure compliance with all statutory and legal requirements. While 
the Board maintain its overall responsibility, The internal control 
structure is regularly reviewed and monitored by the Internal Audit 
function duly established by the Board. Audit Committee of the 
Board reviews the adequacy of internal control system on quarterly 
basis in accordance with the term of its reference.

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and applicable laws and regulations, 
details of all related party transactions are placed before the Audit 
Committee and upon recommendations of the Audit Committee, 
the same are placed before the Board for review and approval. 
In addition to the above, as required under Companies Act, 2017, 
details of contracts or arrangements entered into along with the 
justifications for entering into such contracts or arrangements have 
been disclosed in relevant notes to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company has a formal policy and transparent procedure for the 
remuneration of its directors in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance), Regulations, 2019 and the Articles of Association of the 
Company. The main features of the policy, approved by the Board, 
are as follows:

• The Company shall not pay remuneration to its non-executive 
directors including independent directors except for meeting 
fee for attending Board and its Committees meetings.

• The Company will reimburse or incur expenses of travelling 
and accommodation of Directors in relation to attending 
meetings of the Board and its Committees. 

• The Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Directors from time to time.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the following amounts 
were charged in the financial statements for remuneration including 
benefits to Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors:

a) Rs. 107.199 million (2022: 72.312 million) on account of 
Chief Executive Officer.

b) Rs. 59.945 million (2022: 49.723 million) on account of two 
Executive Directors.

c) 100,000 share options were granted to the two Executive 
Directors under Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2020 
(ESOS) at exercise price of Rs. 30 per share (2022: 250,000 
share options were granted at exercise price of Rs. 10 per 
share). 

d) 250,000 shares (2022: 450,000 shares) were allotted to 
the two Executive Directors during the year against options 
granted to them in earlier years. 

e) Rs. 2.16 million (2022: Rs.1.84) was paid as meeting fee to 
three Directors. 

DIRECTORS

The existing Board of Directors (“Board”) was elected on May 26, 
2023. It comprises of nine (9) directors, three (3) independent 
directors including one (1) female director, three (3) non-executive  
directors including Chairman of the Board and three (3) executive 
directors including CEO. 

Following are the names of the persons, who, at any time during the 
financial year, were directors of the Company:

Mr. Arif Saeed, Chairman, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Omar Saeed, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha, Independent Director
Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone, Independent Director
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash, Independent Director
Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema, Executive Director
Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer, Executive Director

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, seven (07) meetings of the Board of 
Directors of the Company were held, and the attendance position is 
as follows:

NAME DESIGNATION ATTENDEES

Mr. Arif Saeed Chairman- Non-Executive 7/7

Mr. Hassan Javed Chief Executive Officer 7/7

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Director- Non-Executive 0/7

Mr. Omar Saeed Director- Non-Executive 6/7

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha Director- Independent 5/7

Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone Director- Independent 7/7

Ms. Maleeha Humayun 
Bangash

Director- Independent 5/7

Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema Director- Executive 7/7

Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer Director- Executive 7/7

The Board has constituted two (02) Committees i.e. Audit Committee 
and Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. The 
Committees comprised of following members:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of three members, one of whom is 
Non-Executive Director and two are Independent Directors. The 
Chairman of the committee is an Independent Director. The terms 
of reference of this Committee have been determined in accordance 
with the guidelines provided in the Code of Corporate Governance 
and advised to the Committee for compliance:

 

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
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The Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance 
by each member was as follows:

NAME DESIGNATION ATTENDEES

Mr.  Abdul Rashid Lone Chairman / Independent 
Director

4/4

Mr. Omar Saeed Member / Non-Executive 
Director

3/4

Ms. Maleeha Humayun 
Bangash

Member / Independent 
Director

4/4

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee comprises of 
three members one of whom is Independent Director, one is Non-
Executive Director and one is Executive Director. The chairman of the 
Committee is an Independent Director. The Committee is involved 
in making recommendations to the Board regarding executives’ 
remuneration, performance evaluation and succession planning etc. 
The Committee held two (02) meetings during the year. Attendance 
by each member was as follows:

NAME DESIGNATION ATTENDEES

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha Chairman / Independent 
Director

2/2

Mr. Hassan Javed Member / Executive 
Director

2/2

Mr. Omar Saeed Member / Non-Executive 
Director

2/2

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The present Auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, retire and being eligible, offered themselves for 
re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommended their re-
appointment as auditors of the Company.  

INVESTMENTS IN RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company maintains retirement benefits plans for its employees 
which are regulated through the respective Board of trustees. The 
value of investments of these funds, as per respective un-audited 
financial statements, is duly disclosed in Directors' Report of SIL.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The information about pattern of holding of the shares as at 
December 31, 2023 in the prescribed Form 34 is included in the 
Annual Report. The statement of purchase and sale of shares of the 
Company undertaken by Directors, Executives and their spouses and 
minor children is also annexed.

Executives include Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The statement of compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 as per prescribed format 
is published in the Annual Report which is reviewed and certified by 
the statutory auditors of the Company. The statement of compliance 
is approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company occurred between December 31, 2023 and 
February 21, 2024 (date of audit report) except for declaration of 
final cash dividend of Rs. 2 per share (i.e. 20 %) for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 which is subject to approval of members in the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to express their deep appreciation to the 
shareholders who have consistently demonstrated their trust in the 
Company.

We would also like to place on record our sincere appreciation for 
the tireless efforts, dedication and commitment of all employees of 
the Company and are confident that they shall continue to do so in 
future.

We also thank our customers, suppliers and bankers for their 
continuous support and commitment to the Company.

We look forward to delivering better results in the coming years.

For and on behalf of the board

Arif Saeed Hassan Javed
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

February 21, 2024
Lahore
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

About Service Footwear Global 
Limited (SGFL)
SGFL has been formed with the vision to become a socially 
conscious business following its parent group’s tradition of 
corporate giving. Over the last several decades, the Group 
has been involved in significant philanthropic undertakings 
in health and education. SGFL’s aim is to strive to serve its 
employees, customers, shareholders, communities and the 
environment. The intention is simple: to give back, share 
prosperity and help people build and grow in a sustainable 
way. In 2018, the Group (Service Industries Limited) decided 
to consolidate the delivery of this work by establishing an 
independent corporate foundation by the name of Servis 
Foundation (SF). SF, as the Group’s philanthropic arm, aims 
to deliver its CSR goals through a programmatic and targeted 
mechanism. In the coming years, it is anticipated that SF 
will shoulder much SGFL’s philanthropic efforts also. At the 
Group level, our portfolio of CSR & ethical business practices 
comprises internal initiatives, directly-owned projects and 
institutional contributions through Servis Foundation. For 
details on the CSR activities of the Group, refer to Service 
Industries Limited 2023 Annual Report.

We use a section in the Annual Report to share how we are 
managing and measuring progress against our CSR goals, as 
well as to respond broadly to stakeholder expectations in this 
area. The newly established SGFL envisions to take forward 
the Group’s CSR activities within current factory catchment i.e. 
Muridke, Sheikhupura.

Environment
SGFL houses Asia’s first solar powered footwear manufacturing 
facility. The factory completed the installation of a 2MW Solar 
Power Park. It is spread over four acres of land, consisting of 
5,699 solar panels with an annual power generation of 2,570 
MWh, becoming the first solar powered footwear factory in 
Asia. The initiative is equivalent to planting 200 trees daily, 
reducing carbon dioxide emissions by 1,350 tons annually. 
This initial step on the road to go green gives SGFL’s customers 
the benefit to market their products as eco-friendly in an 
increasingly environmentally conscious global population.

Industrial Relations 
SGFL is Business Social Compliance Initiative (BSCI) certified, 
promoting workplace conditions in accordance with human 
rights, ILO conventions and national labor law. Additionally, 
SGFL is a member of SEDEX (Supplier Ethical Data Exchange), 
ensuring our dedication to driving improvements in 
responsible and ethical business practices in the global supply 
chain, providing our family the best working conditions for 
increased productivity.

Inclusion and diversity
SGFL is proud to be an equal opportunity employer and 
encourages the participation of females and persons with 
special needs in the workforce. SGFL has taken steps to create 
a work environment conducive to females by dedicating 
separate production lines employing ~135 females.

Consumer protection measures
SGFL is endeavouring to ensuring a Quality Management 
System focused on consistently providing products that meet 
the requirements of customers and applicable statutory 
and regulatory rules. We have the following buyer-driven 
certifications of compliance: BSCI(Business Social Compliance 
Initiative), SEDEX, SLCP (Social and Labor Convergence 
Program), HIGG FEM (Facility Environmental Module) and 
HIGG FSLM (Facility Social & Labor Module).

Contribution to national exchequer
SGFL has a multi-million Rupee annual contribution to the 
national exchequer on account of taxes, duties and levies. In 
2023, SGFL contributed PKR 267 million to the government’s 
nation building efforts.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: Service Global Footwear Limited
Year ended:  31 December 2023 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations 
in the following manner:

1. The total number of Directors are nine (9) as per the following:

 a.        Male:                  8
 b.        Female:             1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent 
Directors

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha 
Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash 
(Female Director)

Non-Executive 
Directors

Mr. Arif Saeed 
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed 
Mr. Omar Saeed 

Executive Directors Mr. Hassan Javed 
Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema
Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as 
a Director on more than seven listed companies, including 
this company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured 
that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the company along with its supporting policies 
and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall 
corporate strategy and significant policies of the company. 
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of 
the significant policies along with their date of approval or 
updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and 
decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board / 
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the 
Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director elected by the 
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of 
the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures 
for remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and 
the Regulations;

9. Following Directors have attained the directors training 
program certification: 

Names of Directors

Mr. Omar Saeed

Mr. Hassan Javed

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash

 Following Director meets the exemption criteria of minimum 
of 14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the 
Boards of listed companies, hence is exempt from Directors’ 
training program:    

Name of Director

Mr. Arif Saeed

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment and complied with relevant requirements of 
the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly 
endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 
Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members 
given below:

 a)  Audit Committee

Names Designation held

Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone Chairman

Mr. Omar Saeed Member

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Member
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 b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Names Designation held

Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha Chairman

Mr. Hassan Javed Member

Mr. Omar Saeed Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have 
been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 
compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of 
the committee were as per following:

 a) Audit Committee

 Four quarterly meetings were held during the year ended 31 
December 2023. 

 b) HR and Remuneration Committee

 Two meetings of HR and Remuneration Committee were 
held during the year ended 31 December 2023.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who 
are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the 
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures 
of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed 
that they have been given a satisfactory rating under 
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with 
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their 
partners are in compliance with International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and 
that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit 
are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary 
or Director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them 
have not been appointed to provide other services except 
in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other 
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that 
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 
32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with; 
and

19. Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other 
than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below: 
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Sr. 
No.

Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation
Number

1 Responsibilities of the Board and its members 
The Board is responsible for adoption of corporate 
governance practices by the company.  

Non-mandatory provisions of the Regulations are 
partially complied. The company is deliberating on full 
compliance with all the provisions of the Regulations.     

10(1)

2 Directors’ Training
It is encouraged that by 30 June 2022, all directors on 
the Board have acquired the prescribed certification 
under any director training program offered by 
institutions, local or foreign, that meet the criteria 
specified by the Commission and approved by it.

4 out of 9 directors of the Company have acquired 
Directors' Training Program certification. One director 
is exempt from Directors’ Training Program. The 
Company has planned to arrange Directors' Training 
Program certification for remaining 4 directors by end 
of next financial year.

19(1)

3 Directors’ Training
Companies are encouraged to arrange training for at 
least one head of department every year under the 
Directors’ Training program from July 2022.

The Company has planned to arrange Directors’ 
Training Program certification for head of departments 
over the next few years.

19(3)

4 Nomination Committee
The Board may constitute a separate committee, 
designated as the nomination committee, of such 
number and class of directors, as it may deem 
appropriate in its circumstances.

Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate 
nomination committee and the functions are being 
performed by the human resource and remuneration 
committee. 

29

5 Risk Management Committee
The Board may constitute the risk management 
committee, of such number and class of directors, as 
it may deem appropriate in its circumstances, to carry 
out a review of effectiveness of risk management 
procedures and present a report to the Board.

Currently, the Board has not constituted a risk 
management committee and a senior officer of the 
Company performs the requisite functions and apprise 
the Board accordingly.  

30

6 Disclosure of significant policies on website
The Company may post key elements of its significant 
policies, brief synopsis of terms of reference of the 
Board’s committees on its website and key elements 
of the directors’ remuneration policy.

Although these are well circulated among the relevant 
employees and directors, the Board shall consider 
posting such policies and synopsis on its website in 
near future.

35

7 Representation of Minority shareholders
The minority members as a class shall be facilitated 
by the Board to contest election of directors by proxy 
solicitation.

No nomination was received to contest election as 
director representing minority shareholders.

5

Arif Saeed 
Chairman
 
February 21, 2024
Lahore

 Hassan Javed
 Chief Executive
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report

To the members of Service Global Footwear Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the 
Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Service Global Footwear Limited (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2023 in 
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether 
the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not 
and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s 
personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems 
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement 
on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate 
governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before 
the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of 
this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately 
reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company 
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants 

Lahore.
Date: 21 February 2024

UDIN: CR202310168rEpKSDwox
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the members of Service Global Footwear Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  
We have audited the annexed financial statements of Service Global Footwear Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting 
policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, the 
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the 
state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2023 and of the profit, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of 
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

1 Revenue recognition

The Company recognized net revenue of Rupees 15,061.817 
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit matter 
because revenue is one of the key performance indicator of 
the Company and gives rise to an inherent risk that revenue 
could be subject to misstatement to meet expectations or 
targets.

For further information on revenue, refer to the following:

• Material accounting policy information, 
Revenue recognition note 2.25 to the financial 
statements. 

• Revenue-net, note 27 to the financial 
statements.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue, 
amongst others, included the following:

• Obtaining an understanding of the process relating 
to recognition of revenue and testing the design, 
implementation and operating effectiveness of key 
internal controls over recording of revenue;

• Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded 
during the year with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery 
documents and other relevant underlying documents;

• Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded 
around the year end with the sales orders, sales invoices, 
delivery documents and other relevant underlying 
documentation to assess if the related revenue was 
recorded in the appropriate accounting period;

• Assessing whether the accounting policies for revenue 
recognition complies with the requirements of IFRS 15 
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’;

• We also considered the appropriateness of disclosures in 
the financial statements.

2 Stock-in-trade 

As at 31 December 2023, stock-in-trade is stated at Rupees 
4,554.136 million. 

Stock-in-trade is measured at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value.

We identified existence and valuation of stock-in-trade as 
a key audit matter due to its size, representing 24.03 % of 
total assets of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and the 
judgement involved in valuation.

For further information on stock-in-trade, refer to the 
following:

• Material accounting policy information, Stock-
in-trade note 2.22 to the financial statements.

 
• Stock-in-trade note 19 to the financial 

statements.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of stock-in-trade, 
amongst others, included the following:

• Assessing the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of key internal controls over valuation of 
stock-in-trade including determination of net realizable 
values;

• Attending inventory counts and reconciling the count 
results to the inventory listings to test the completeness 
of data;

• Assessing the net realizable value of stock-in-trade by 
comparing, on a sample basis, management’s estimation 
of future selling prices for the products with selling prices 
achieved subsequent to the end of the reporting period;

• Comparing the net realizable value to the cost of a sample 
of stock-in-trade and comparison to the associated 
provision to assess whether stock-in-trade provisions are 
complete.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

• Assessing accuracy of inventory ageing reports and 
adequacy of provisions;

• In the context of our testing of the calculation, we 
analysed individual cost components and traced them 
back to the corresponding underlying documents. 
We furthermore challenged changes in unit costs; 

• We also made enquires of management, including those 
outside of the finance function, and considered the results 
of our testing above to determine whether any specific 
write downs were required.

3 Capital expenditures 

The Company is investing significant amounts in its operations 
and there are a number of areas where management 
judgement impacts the carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment and its respective depreciation profile. These 
include among other the decision to capitalize or expense 
costs; and review of useful life of the assets including the 
impact of changes in the Company’s strategy.

We focused on this area since the amounts have a significant 
impact on the financial position of the Company and there 
is significant management judgment required that has 
significant impact on the reporting of the financial position 
for the Company. Therefore, considered as one of the key audit 
matters. 

For further information, refer to the following:

• Material accounting policy information, Fixed 
assets note 2.8 to the financial statements.

 
• Fixed assets note 13 to the financial statements.

Our procedures included, but were not limited to:

• We tested operating effectiveness of controls in place over 
the property, plant and equipment cycle including the 
controls over whether costs incurred on activities is capital  
or operating in nature;

• We evaluated the appropriateness of capitalization 
policies and depreciation rates;

• We performed tests of details on costs capitalized;

• We verified the accuracy of management’s calculation 
used for the impairment testing.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
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financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s 
business; and  

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Syed Mustafa Ali.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants 

Lahore.
Date: 21 February 2024

UDIN: AR202310168rUI7hvX6A
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Financial Statements



Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2023

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital
250,000,000 (2022: 250,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each  2,500,000  2,500,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 3  2,059,175  2,050,875 
Reserves 4  4,441,668  4,113,649 
Total equity  6,500,843  6,164,524 

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 5  310,565  360,852 
Employees' retirement benefit 6  216,104  157,391 
Deferred liabilities 7  67,093  -   

 593,762  518,243 
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 8  2,734,702  1,972,206 
Accrued mark-up 9  169,111  176,187 
Short term borrowings 10  8,282,347  5,488,314 
Current portion of long term financing 5  51,799  40,962 
Dividend payable 11  617,753  -   
Unclaimed dividend  4,944  4,850 

 11,860,656  7,682,519 
Total liabilities  12,454,418  8,200,762 
Contingencies and commitments 12
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  18,955,261  14,365,286 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)

52 Service Global Footwear Limited



2023 2022
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets 13  3,067,982  2,594,578 
Long term security deposits 14  11,057  10,572 
Long term loans to employees 15  8,367  13,634 
Long term investments 16  2,780,856  2,217,650 
Long term loan to Holding Company 17  750,000  1,750,000 

 6,618,262  6,586,434 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 18  123,493  81,956 
Stock-in-trade 19  4,554,136  3,360,359 
Trade debts 20  1,710,366  1,839,720 
Loans and advances 21  1,457,205  1,230,354 
Accrued mark-up 22  5,357  -   
Short term deposits and prepayments 23  8,316  12,988 
Other receivables 24  1,441,511  871,505 
Advance income tax - net 25  133,565  220,350 
Cash and bank balances 26  2,903,050  161,620 

 12,336,999  7,778,852 

TOTAL ASSETS  18,955,261  14,365,286 

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
Revenue - net 27  15,061,817  11,753,088 
Cost of sales 28  (11,760,696)  (9,567,437)
Gross profit  3,301,121  2,185,651 

 

Distribution cost 29  (1,186,780)  (920,784)
Administrative expenses 30  (671,194)  (523,342)
Other expenses 31  (87,787)  (46,125)

 (1,945,761)  (1,490,251)
 1,355,360  695,400 

Other income 32  772,129  683,804 
Profit from operations  2,127,489  1,379,204 
Finance cost 33  (1,007,721)  (467,180)

 1,119,768  912,024 

Share of profit / (loss) from equity accounted investee - net of taxation 16.2.1  474,039  (224,074)
Profit before taxation  1,593,807  687,950 
Taxation 34  (412,200)  (345,891)
Profit after taxation  1,181,607  342,059 

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC (RUPEES) 35  5.75  1.67 

EARNINGS PER SHARE - DILUTED (RUPEES) 35  5.75  1.67 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand
Profit after taxation  1,181,607  342,059 
Other comprehensive loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of employees' retirement benefit obligation - net of tax  (31,642)  (16,860)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  -    -   
Other comprehensive loss for the year - net of tax  (31,642)  (16,860)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  1,149,965  325,199 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS 36  727,207  (1,929,900)

Finance cost paid  (1,013,527)  (317,080)
Income tax paid  (258,322)  (221,661)
Workers' profit participation fund paid 8.3  (18,883)  (18,300)
Workers' welfare fund paid 8.4  (13,759)  (11,455)
Employees' retirement benefit paid - net  (5,848)  (2,978)
Net decrease / (increase) in long term loans to employees  5,477  (6,579)
Net decrease in security deposits  1,742  796 
Insurance claim received against loss of assets due to fire and business interruption loss  13,963  477,492 
NET CASH USED IN OPERATIONS  (561,950)  (2,029,665)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on fixed assets  (722,721)  (684,225)
Interest on term deposit receipts and saving accounts received  11,041  28,115 
Loan given to Holding Company  (11,589,162)  (9,886,995)
Loans repaid by Holding Company  12,596,780  11,156,097 
Interest on loans to Holding Company received  532,170  599,986 
Investment made  (89,167)  (636,322)
Insurance claim received against loss on operating fixed assets and
capital work-in-progress due to fire  -  18,101 
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets  6,550  6,270 
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  745,491  601,027 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options  8,300  6,500 
Proceeds from long term financing  -  149,306 
Repayment of long term financing  (39,450)  (148,460)
Short term borrowings - net  2,794,033  1,564,239 
Dividends paid  (204,994)  (916,744)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  2,557,889  654,841 
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  2,741,430  (773,797)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 26  161,620  935,417 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 26  2,903,050  161,620 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)

Annual Report 2023 57



1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Service Global Footwear Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited Company on 19 July 2019 in Pakistan under the 
Companies Act, 2017 and got listed on 28 April 2021. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The registered office of the Company is located at Servis House, 2- Main Gulberg, Lahore. The principal activities of the Company 
are manufacturing, sale, marketing, import and export of footwear, leather and allied products. The Company is the subsidiary of 
Service Industries Limited. These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company. Consolidated financial 
statements of the Company are prepared separately. Details of the Company’s investment in subsidiary and associate are stated in 
note 16 to these financial statements.

1.2  Geographical location

 Geographical location and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Offices, Manufacturing units, Retail outlets Addresses

Registered Office and Head Office Servis House, 2 – Main Gulberg, Lahore
Factory site 10 - KM, Muridke – Sheikhupura Road, Lahore
Land for factory site Hadbast Manga Otar, Raiwind, Lahore
Factory outlet 10 - KM, Muridke – Sheikhupura Road, Lahore

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

 The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. Further, 
accounting policies related to material class of accounts does not necessarily means it is material. These policies have been consistently 
applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified 
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued 
under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b) Accounting convention

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the respective 
accounting policies.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting 
policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting 
policies are as follows:

i) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

 Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis 
of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment on an annual 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

58 Service Global Footwear Limited



basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of operating fixed assets, 
with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

ii) Inventories

 Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of similar 
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each reporting date on 
inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an allowance is recorded against the 
inventory balances for any such declines. 

 
iii) Income tax

 In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the current 
income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

iv) Allowance for expected credit losses

 The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifetime 
expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate 
for each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

v) Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

 When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Company is 
considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains 
control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

vi) Provisions

 As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations, 
technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed 
at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized 
provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an 
asset.  

vii) Contingencies

 The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on the judgment and 
the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual 
outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the statement 
of financial position date.

viii) Impairment of investment in subsidiary company and equity method accounted for associated company

 In making an estimate of recoverable amount of the Company's investment in subsidiary company and equity method 
accounted for associated company, the management considers future cash flows.

ix) Employees’ retirement benefit

 The actuarial valuation of employees' retirement benefit requires the use of certain assumptions related to future periods, 
including increase in future salary, expected returns on plan assets and the discount rate used to discount future cash flows to 
present values.

d) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and are relevant to the Company

 Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning 
on or after 01 January 2023:

• Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current;
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• Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IFRS Practice Statement 2 ‘Making Materiality Judgement’ - 
Disclosure of Accounting Policies;

• Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’ - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction;
• Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ - Change in definition of Accounting 

Estimate;
• Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes' - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules.

 The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior 
period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods

e) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to the Company

 There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023 but 
are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not 
detailed in these financial statements.

f) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the Company

 Following amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2024 or later periods:  

 On 31 October 2022, the IASB issued 'Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)' to clarify how conditions with 
which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the classification of a liability. The amendments are 
effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

 On 22 September 2022, the IASB issued 'Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)' with amendments that 
clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be 
accounted for as a sale. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

 Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ (deferred 
indefinitely) to clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associates or joint venture, as follows: 
require full recognition in the investor’s financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or contribution of assets that 
constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’); require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets 
do not constitute a business, i.e. a gain or loss is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or 
joint venture. These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or contribution of assets 
occur by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of control of the subsidiary), or by the 
direct sale of the assets themselves.

 Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’). 
The amendments add disclosure requirements, and ‘signposts’ within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities to provide 
qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangements. The amendments are effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

 
 Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’). The amendments contain 

guidance to specify when a currency is exchangeable and how to determine the exchange rate when it is not. The amendments are 
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2025.

 The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements.

g) Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and not considered relevant to the 
Company

 There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 
01 January 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements 
and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.
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2.2 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the Company operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency. Figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Pak Rupees.

2.3 Foreign currency transactions and translation

 All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting 
date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange 
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are charged or credited to statement of profit or loss. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Pak Rupees at 
exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are 
stated at fair value are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.

2.4 Employees’ retirement benefits

i) Contributory provident fund

 There is an approved contributory provident fund for employees of the Company. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the 
employees and the Company to the fund in accordance with the fund rules. The Company’s contributions to the fund are charged to 
statement of profit or loss.

ii) Defined benefit plan

 The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme as a defined benefit plan for its permanent employees other than those who 
participate in the provident fund scheme. The managerial staff is entitled to participate in both the provident fund trust and gratuity 
fund scheme.

 The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The 
calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When 
the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits 
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value 
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding 
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. 
The Company determines the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the period by applying 
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined 
benefit liability / (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability / (asset) during the period as a result of 
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognized in profit 
or loss.

 When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the 
gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of 
a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

iii) Compensated absences

 The Company provides for liability in respect of employees' compensated absences in the period in which these are earned.

2.5 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation 
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of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if 
enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and tax credits can be utilized. 

 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.6 Borrowings

 Financing and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between 
the proceeds and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the 
effective interest method.

2.7 Borrowing costs

 Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective qualifying 
assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are recognized in 
statement of profit or loss.

2.8 Fixed assets

 Fixed assets except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses (if any). Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction 
period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition. Freehold land and capital 
work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any). All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred 
during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to operating fixed assets 
as and when these are available for use.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method so as to 
write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in note 13.1. Depreciations on 
additions is charged from the month in which the assets are available for use up to the month prior to disposal. The residual values and 
useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

 De-recognition

 An item of operating fixed assets is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is 
de-recognized.

2.9 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognized at cost, which comprise purchase price, 
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non-refundable purchase taxes and other directly attributable expenditures relating to their implementation and customization. After 
initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets 
are amortized from the month, when these assets are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of the 
intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Company. The 
useful life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

2.10 Right-of-use assets

 A right-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss (if any). Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as 
applicable, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct 
costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and 
removing the underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

 Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the 
asset, whichever is shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the 
depreciation is charged over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement 
of lease liabilities.

 The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with terms of 12 
months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

2.11 Lease liabilities

 A lease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognized at the present value of the 
lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives 
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, 
exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination 
penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

 Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re-measured if there 
is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease 
term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the 
corresponding right-of use asset, or to statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down.

2.12 Employees’ share option scheme

 The Company operates an equity settled share based Employees Stock Option Scheme. The compensation committee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees and approves the grant of options. These options 
vest with employees over a specific period subject to fulfillment of certain conditions. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply 
and secure allotment of Company’s shares at a price determined on the date of grant of options.

 At the grant date of share options to the employees, the Company initially recognizes employee compensation expense with 
corresponding credit to equity as employee share options reserve at the fair value of option at the grant date. The fair value of option 
determined at the grant date is recognized as an employee compensation expense on a straight line basis over the vesting period. Fair 
value of options is arrived at using Black Scholes pricing model.

 When share options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and 
share premium.

2.13 Investment in subsidiary company

 Investment in subsidiary company is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 27 'Separate 
Financial Statements'. 
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2.14 Investment in associate – (with significant influence)

 Associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint control. Investment in associate is 
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost. 

 Under the equity method of accounting, the investment is initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the 
Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Company’s share of movements 
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associate is 
recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. 

 When the Company’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other 
unsecured long-term receivables, the Company does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments 
on behalf of the other entity. 

 Unrealized gains on transactions between the Company and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s interest in 
these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 
Accounting policies of equity accounted investee have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Company. 

 Investment in equity method accounted for associate is tested for impairment in accordance with the provision of IAS 36 `Impairment 
of Assets`

2.15 Ijarah contracts

 Under the Ijarah contracts the Company obtains usufruct of an asset for an agreed period for an agreed consideration. The Company 
accounts for its Ijarah contracts in accordance with the requirements of IFAS 2 ‘Ijarah’. Accordingly, the Company as a Mustaj’ir (lessee) 
in the Ijarah contract recognises the Ujrah (lease) payments as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over 
the Ijarah term.

2.16 Investments and other financial assets

a) Classification

 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
- those to be measured at amortized cost

 The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For 
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account 
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and 
only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

b) Measurement

 At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of 
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

  Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely 
payment of principal and interest. 
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 Debt instruments

 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow 
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

 Amortized cost

 Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income 
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss 
and presented in other income / (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are 
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss. 

 
 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash 
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are 
taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment 
losses), interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income / (other expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other 
income / (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

 
 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument 
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or loss and presented net within other income / (other 
expenses) in the period in which it arises.   

 
 Equity instruments

 The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments quoted in an active market, the 
fair value corresponds to a market price (level 1). For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value 
is determined using valuation techniques including reference to recent arm’s length market transactions or transactions involving 
financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible 
extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3).  

 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment 
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value.   

 Fair value through profit or loss

 Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other income / (other 
expenses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.  

 Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive 
payments is established.

2.17 Financial liabilities - classification and measurement

 Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified 
as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at 
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses 
are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in profit or loss.
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2.18 Impairment of financial assets

 The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on: 

-  Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
-  Debt investments measured at FVTOCI; and
-  Contract assets.

 The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month 
ECLs:

- Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 

financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date 
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating 
ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This 
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed 
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a reasonable 
period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date 
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating 
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

 The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based 
on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted 
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When determining whether the credit risk of a 
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and 
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking 
information.

 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

 The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a 
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and 
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from 
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply 
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt securities at FVTOCI are 
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

 Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;
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- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

2.19 De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

a) Financial assets

 The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and 
does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or retained 
by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities

 The Company shall derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of financial position when 
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.20 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legal 
enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

2.21 Impairment of non-financial assets

 Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are 
subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each statement of financial position date or whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which 
assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of 
the impairment at each reporting date. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if impairment losses had 
not been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.22 Inventories

 Inventories, except for stock-in-transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as 
follows:

 Stores, spares and loose tools

 Usable stores, spares and loose tools are valued principally at cost using first-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula, while items considered 
obsolete are carried at nil value Items-in-transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

 Stock-in-trade

 Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

 (i) For raw materials: First-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula
 (ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Direct material, labor and appropriate manufacturing overheads
 (iii) Finished goods purchased for resale: Moving average  

 Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stocks are valued at net 
realizable value.

 Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.
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2.23 Trade and other payables

 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.24 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less 
any allowance for expected credit losses. 

 Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

2.25 Revenue recognition

 (a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is 
generally at the time of delivery.

 (b) Interest

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset.

 (c) Dividend

Dividend on equity investments is recognized when right to receive the dividend is established.

2.26 Contract assets

 Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the customer 
pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.  

2.27 Customer acquisition costs

 Customer acquisition costs are capitalised as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer and are 
expected to be recovered. Customer acquisition costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

 Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained or which are not otherwise 
recoverable from a customer are expensed as incurred to profit or loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract where the contract 
term is less than one year is immediately expensed to profit or loss.

2.28 Customer fulfilment costs

 Customer fulfilment costs are capitalised as an asset when all the following are met: (i) the costs relate directly to the contract or 
specifically identifiable proposed contract; (ii) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used to satisfy 
future performance obligations; and (iii) the costs are expected to be recovered. Customer fulfilment costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the contract.

2.29 Right of return assets

 Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who may 
exercise their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was previously 
carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment.

2.30 Contract liabilities

 Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received consideration 
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the 
payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the 
contract.
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2.31 Refund liabilities

 Refund liabilities are recognised where the Company receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some, or all, of 
that consideration to the customer. A refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received or receivable for which the 
Company does not expect to be entitled and is updated at the end of each reporting period for changes in circumstances. Historical 
data is used across product lines to estimate such returns at the time of sale based on an expected value methodology.

2.32 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term highly 
liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
values.

2.33 Provisions 

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of obligation.

2.34 Earnings per share - basic and diluted

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.35 Contingent assets

 Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes certain.

2.36 Contingent liabilities

 Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. In 
the event that the outflow of resources associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can 
be reliably estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements.

2.37 Derivative financial instruments

 Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Any directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in the statement of profit or 
loss as incurred. They are subsequently remeasured at fair value on regular basis and at each reporting date as a minimum, with all 
their gains and losses, realized and unrealized, recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.38 Share capital

 Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as 
a deduction, net of tax.

2.39 Government grants

 Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
the Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

 Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the 
costs that they are intended to compensate. 
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 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred 
income and are credited to profit or loss over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.40 Dividend and other appropriations
 Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the period 

in which the dividends are declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board 
of Directors.

2.41 Goodwill
 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non controlling interests in the 

acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date 
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts 
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non 
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain. Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least 
annually.

3. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022 2023 2022
 (Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid-up in cash  54,437,500  54,437,500  544,375  544,375 
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued pursuant to the
Scheme (Note 3.1.1)  150,000,000  150,000,000  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Ordinary share of Rupees 10 each issued under Employees
Stock Option Scheme  1,480,000  650,000  14,800  6,500 

 205,917,500  205,087,500  2,059,175  2,050,875 

3.1 Movement during the year

2023 2022 2023 2022
 (Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

Balance at the beginning of the year  205,087,500  204,437,500  2,050,875  2,044,375 
Issue of ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each under Employees
Stock Option Scheme  830,000  650,000  8,300  6,500 
Balance at the end of the year  205,917,500  205,087,500  2,059,175  2,050,875 

3.1.1 As on 25 June 2020 (completion date for the purpose of the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction [the Scheme] 
under section 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies Act, 2017 between Service Industries Limited and its members and Service 
Global Footwear Limited and its members), net assets including surplus on revaluation of land, building and plant and machinery 
of the Company amounting to Rupees 2,890.684 million had been determined by Service Industries Limited - Holding Company 
in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. In return, the Company issued share capital of Rupees 
1,500 million (150,000,000 ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each) to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. Resultantly, capital 
reserve for issuance of bonus shares of Rupees 1,390.684 million was recorded in the books of account of the Company.  
        

3.2 163,550,000 (2022: 163,550,000) ordinary shares of the Company are held by Service Industries Limited - Holding Company.
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3.3 The share capital of the Company consists only of fully paid ordinary shares with a nominal (par) value of Rupees 10 per share. All 
shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital and represent one vote at shareholders’ meetings of the 
Company.

          
2023 2022

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

4 RESERVES

Composition of reserves is as follows:

Capital reserves 

Reserve for issuance of bonus shares (Note 3.1.1)  1,390,684  1,390,684 
Share premium (Note 4.1)  1,713,028  1,687,997 
Share options reserve (Note 4.2)  895  25,031 

 3,104,607  3,103,712 
Revenue reserve

Un-appropriated profit  1,337,061  1,009,937 
 4,441,668  4,113,649 

4.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.  
         

4.2 Share options reserve

4.2.1 Description of scheme:

 Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2020 was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on 25 November 
2020 which comprises of an entitlement pool of 4.350 million shares. Under the scheme, share options of the Company are granted 
to business head, vice president operations, vice president innovation and product strategy and employees of level MG 3 and above. 
The exercise period for options granted under the scheme is six months of the completion of respective vesting period. Initially, the 
Company planned to grant 1,500,000, 712,500, 712,500, 712,500 and 712,500 share options in grant year 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 
and 2024 respectively. However, according to the scheme, if in anyone year, the full number of options are not granted, then the un-
granted options maybe carried forward to the subsequent years. During the year, compensation committee granted 705,000 options 
having vesting period started from 01 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2026 with exercise price of Rupees 30 per share. 
Remaining 2,147,000 options will be granted in subsequent years in accordance with the scheme.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

4.2.2 Movement in share options reserve:

Balance at the beginning of the year  25,031  18,723 
Add: Recognized during the year at the fair value  895  25,031 
Less: Transferred to share premium  (25,031)  (18,723)
Balance at the end of the year  895  25,031 
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4.2.3 Movement in share options outstanding at end of the year is as follows:

 The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during 
the year:

2023 2022
Number of 

options
WAEP

(Rupees)
Number of 

options
WAEP

(Rupees)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  848,000  10  650,000  10 
Add: Options granted during the year  705,000  30  848,000  10 
Less: Options exercised during the year  (830,000)  10  (650,000)  10 
Less: Options lapsed during the year  (18,000)  10  -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  705,000  30  848,000  10 

Exercisable at the end of the year  176,250  30  848,000  10 

4.2.4 The weighted average share price at the date of the exercise of options exercised during the year was Rupees 34.95 (2022: Rupees 
38.96).

4.2.5 The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2023 is 1.5 years (2022: Nil).

4.2.6 The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rupees 2.14 (2022: Rupees 29.51).

4.2.7 Exercise price for options outstanding at the end of the year is Rupees 30 (2022: Rupees 10).

4.2.8 Measurement of fair value 

 The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model.  

 The inputs used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of the equity-settled share-based payment plans were as follows:  
 

2023 2022
Fair value at grant date Rupees  1.41 to 2.92  29.5180 
Share price at grant date Rupees  33.00  47.00 
Exercise price Rupees  30.00  10.00 
Expected volatility % 31.77% 15.96%
Expected life Years 1 - 4  1 
Expected dividend % 27% 20%
Risk-free interest rate % 15.03% 10.75%

 
 The expected life of the share options is based on current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may 

occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is 
indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.     
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

5. LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured

Long term loans (Note 5.1)  362,364  401,814 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities  (51,799)  (40,962)

 310,565  360,852 
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6 EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT BENEFIT

 The latest actuarial valuation of the fund as at 31 December 2023 was carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Details of 
the fund as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:         
         

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

6.1 Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation  247,100  185,141 
Fair value of plan assets  (30,996)  (27,750)
Net defined benefit obligation  216,104  157,391 

6.2 Movement in net defined benefit obligation

Net liability at the beginning of the year  157,391  113,864 
Current service cost   10,665  8,823 
Net interest on defined benefit obligation  22,254  13,204 
Net remeasurements for the year  31,642  16,860 
Contributions made during the year  (7,824)  (2,978)
Liability transferred from the Holding Company  1,976  7,618 
Net liability at the end of the year  216,104  157,391 

6.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  185,141  144,067 
Current service cost  10,665  8,823 
Interest cost  26,278  16,753 
Benefits paid during the year  (7,824)  (2,978)
Liability transferred from the Holding Company  1,976  7,618 
Remeasurements on obligation:
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions  14,761  680 
Experience adjustments  16,103  10,178 
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  247,100  185,141 

6.4 Movement in the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  27,750  30,203 
Contributions made during the year  7,824  2,978 
Interest income on plan assets  4,024  3,549 
Benefits paid during the year  (7,824)  (2,978)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  (778)  (6,002)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  30,996  27,750 
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6.4.1 Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust as a gratuity fund of the Holding Company is also managing all the affairs 
relating to gratuity fund of the employees of the Company. Hence, total plan assets of Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity 
Fund Trust as shown below have been allocated by the actuary for actuarial valuation purposes of the Company and Service Industries 
Limited - Holding Company.    
 

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Mutual funds  107,455  96,810 
Bank balances  1,660  880 
Total plan assets  109,115  97,690 
Allocated to the Company  (30,996)  (27,750)
Allocated to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company  (78,119)  (69,940)

 -    -   
 
6.5 Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss

Current service cost  10,665  8,823 
Interest cost  26,278  16,753 
Interest income on plan assets  (4,024)  (3,549)
Net expense charged in the statement of profit or loss  32,919  22,027 

6.5.1 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (Note.28)  28,985  19,096 
Distribution cost (Note.29)  185  103 
Administrative expenses (Note.30)  3,749  2,828 

 32,919  22,027 

6.6 Remeasurements recognized in statement of other comprehensive income 

Experience adjustments  16,103  10,178 
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions  14,761  680 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  778  6,002 

 31,642  16,860 
 

6.7 Principal actuarial assumptions used:

Discount rate used for interest cost % per annum 14.50  11.75 
Discount rate used for year end obligation % per annum 15.50  14.50 
Expected rate of salary increase % per annum 15.50  13.50 
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6.8 Historical information

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

-------------------------------------------Rupees in thousand-------------------------------------------

Present value of defined benefit obligation  247,100  185,141  144,067  126,819  89,273 
Fair value of plan assets  (30,996)  (27,750)  (30,203)  (28,177)  (25,456)
Deficit  216,104  157,391  113,864  98,642  63,817 

Remeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation  30,864  10,858  586  2,354  (2,909)

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on plan assets  (778)  (6,002)  (906)  42  1,784 

6.8.1 Amounts for 2019  relates to period started from 01 July 2019 (date of demerger) and ended on 31 December 2019.  
  

6.9 The expected charge to statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 31 December 2024 will be Rupees 46.713 million.  
    

6.10 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption at the reporting date: 
 

Defined benefit obligation

Changes in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

Bps Rupees in thousand

Discount rate  100  232,903  263,139 
Future salary increase  100  263,173  232,622 

 The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is 
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit 
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the 
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied.    
 

6.11 Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC 2001-2005 ultimate mortality rates, set back one year.  

6.12 The average duration of the benefit obligation is 6 years.    
 

6.13 Expected maturity profile of undiscounted defined benefit obligation:    

Less than a year Between 1 - 2 years Between 3 - 5 years Between 6 - 10 years Over 10 years Total

--------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand ---------------------------------------------------------------

 33,781  8,081  171,288  165,568  2,099,325  2,478,043
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

7. DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred income tax  (Note 7.1)  67,093  -   
Deferred income - Government grant (Note 7.2)  -  -   

 67,093  -   

7.1 This represents deferred income tax liability on investment in associate (with significant influence). The gross movement in deferred 
income tax liability recognised in these financial statements during the year is opening balance of Rupees Nil, charged to statement 
of profit or loss of Rupees 67.093 million and closing balance of Rupees 67.093 million. Provision for deferred income tax on other 
temporary differences was not considered necessary as the Company is chargeable to tax under section 169 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

7.2 Deferred income - Government grant
Balance at the beginning of the year  -    3,476 
Less: Amortized during the year  (Note 32)  -    (3,476)
Balance at the end of the year  -    -   

7.2.1 The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), through its Circular No. 06 of 2020 dated 10 April 2020 introduced a temporary refinance scheme 
for payment of wages and salaries to the workers and employees of business concerns (the Refinance Scheme). The refinance scheme 
was funded by SBP. Borrowers obtained loans from the banks and eased their cash flow constraints to avoid layoffs. One of the key 
feature of the refinance scheme was that borrowers could obtain loan at mark-up rates that are below normal lending rates. As 
per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance', the 
benefit of a Government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a Government Grant. The Company obtained this loan. 
In accordance with IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' loan obtained under the refinance scheme was initially recognised at its fair value 
which is the present value of loan proceeds received, discounted using prevailing market rates of interest for a similar instrument. 
Hence, the benefit of the below-market rate of interest was measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan 
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. This benefit was accounted for and presented as deferred grant in 
accordance with IAS 20. The grant was amortised in the statement of profit or loss, in line with the recognition of interest expense the 
grant is compensating.

   
2023 2022

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

8 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors (Note 8.1)  1,919,919  1,261,315 
Accrued liabilities  546,715  539,137 
Contract liabilities - unsecured  (Note 8.2)  142,885  88,014 
Fair value of forward exchange contracts  443  9,425 
Provident fund payable  31,281  25,699 
Workers' profit participation fund  (Note 8.3)  33,558  17,181 
Workers' welfare fund (Note 8.4)  45,199  26,431 
Income tax deducted at source  14,702  5,004 

 2,734,702  1,972,206 
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8.1 These include Rupees 8.199 million (2022: Rupees Nil), Rupees 6.912 million (2022: Rupees Nil) and Rupees 169.707 million 
(2022: Rupees Nil) due to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company, SIL GULF (FZE) - subsidiary of the Holding Company and 
Dongguan Service Global Limited - subsidiary company respectively. These are in ordinary course of business and interest free.

8.2 These include Rupees Nil (2022: Rupees 1.17 million) relating to Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary company of the 
Holding Company.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

8.3 Workers’ profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year  17,181  16,372 
Add: Provision for the year  (Note 31)  33,990  17,609 
Add: Interest for the year (Note 33)  1,270  1,500 
Less: Payments made during the year  (18,883)  (18,300)
Balance at the end of the year  33,558  17,181 

8.3.1 The Company retains workers' profit participation fund for its business operations till the date of allocation to workers. Interest is paid 
at prescribed rate under the Companies Profits (Workers Participation) Act, 1968 on funds utilized by the Company till the date of 
allocation to workers.   

 
8.4 Workers' welfare fund

Balance at the beginning of the year  26,431  23,846 
Add: Provision for the year  (Note 31)  32,527  14,040 
Less: Payments made during the year  (13,759)  (11,455)
Balance at the end of the year  45,199  26,431 

9. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long term financing  22,195  8,492 
Short term borrowings  146,916  167,695 

 169,111  176,187 

10. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Short term running finances (Note 10.1 and Note 10.2)  1,539,341  1,626,304 
Export refinances (Note 10.1 and Note 10.3)  3,485,726  3,712,595 
Export finance scheme  (Note 10.1 and Note 10.4)  2,708,589  149,415 
Export loans (Note 10.1 and Note 10.5)  548,691  -   

 8,282,347  5,488,314 

10.1 These finance facilities are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured by joint pari passu 
hypothecation charge over present and future current assets of the Company and ranking charge over present and future current 
assets of the Company. These form part of total credit facilities of Rupees 10,800 million (2022: Rupees 9,250 million).
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10.2 The rates of mark-up range from 16.65% to 23.91% (2022: 10.63% to 17.63%) per annum.

10.3 The rates of mark-up range from 9.25% to 19.00% (2022: 2.25% to 10%) per annum.   

10.4 The effective rates of mark-up range from 2% to 3% (2022: 1% to 3%) per annum. 

10.5 The rates of mark-up range from 6.5% to 6.75% (2022: Nil) per annum.   

11 DIVIDEND PAYABLE

 The board of directors of the Company declared an interim cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 of Rupees 3 per share 
(i.e. 30%) in their meeting held on 19 December 2023. This interim cash dividend has been credited electronically into the designated 
bank accounts of the shareholders of the Company, subsequent to the reporting period, on 11 January 2024.

12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

12.1 Contingencies

12.1.1 On 03 December 2013, the Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of first proviso to sub-
clause (x) of clause (4) of SRO 491(1)/2016 dated 30 June 2016 issued under sections 3 and 4 read with sections 8 and 71 of the 
Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby through amendment in the earlier SRO 1125(I)/2011 dated 31 December 2011 adjustment of input 
sales tax on packing material of all sorts has been disallowed. On 25 June 2019, the learned single judge of Honourable Lahore High 
Court has dismissed the writ petition of the Company, therefore intra-court appeal has been filled. Consequently, the Company has 
claimed input sales tax on packing material of Rupees 9.142 million (2022: Rupees 9.142 million) in its monthly sales tax returns. 
The management, based on advice of the legal counsel, is confident of favourable outcome of its appeal. 

12.1.2 On 10 September 2017, the Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of clauses (h) and (i) 
to sub-section (1) of section 8 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby claim of input sales tax in respect of building materials, electrical 
and gas appliances, pipes, fittings, wires, cables and ordinary electrical fittings and sanitary fittings have been disallowed. On 11 
September 2017, the Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore has passed order whereby tax department shall consider whether the 
Company is entitled to claim input sales tax on aforesaid goods that are used for the purpose of taxable supplies. Tax department 
shall consider the input sales tax adjustment for the relevant period. The Company has claimed input sales tax of Rupees 30.157 
million (2022: Rupees 11.168 million) on such goods in its respective monthly sales tax returns. The management, based on advice 
of the legal counsel, is confident of favourable outcome of this matter.    
 

12.1.3 Without considering the facts of the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction between Service Industries Limited 
and the Company, the tax authorities through order dated 29 October 2021 alleged that the Company  suppressed its sale by Rupees 
3,718.912 million during tax periods from  July 2019 to December 2019 and raised demand of Rupees 632.097 million and 
further tax of Rupees 111.547 million, along with penalty and default surcharge. Being aggrieved the Company filed appeal before 
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) - VI [CIR(A)] who upheld the order on 28 February 2022. The Company filed an appeal before 
the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) on 01 March 2022. ATIR on 20 June 2022 accepted the Company's contentions and 
remanded the issue on account of verification of the Company's claim that the sales tax liability (if any) on revenue reported by the 
Company in its audited financial statements, had been discharged by Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. On 14 November 
2022, ACIR raised the original demand through appeal effect order, ignoring the findings and directions of ATIR. The Company filed 
an appeal before CIR(A) on 27 December 2022 and CIR(A) by way of his order dated 30 January 2023 has set-aside the order dated 
14 November 2022 of ACIR with the direction to ACIR to verify / confirm different treatment of sales in income tax return vs sales tax 
returns and to check adequate disclosure of the demerger transaction in audited financial statements of the Company and Service 
Industries Limited - Holding Company in light of directions of ATIR order dated 20 June 2022. Based on grounds and facts, the matter 
is likely to be decided in favour of the Company.

12.1.4 Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) completed assessment proceedings and passed an order dated 22 June 2022, under 
section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 demanding sales tax amounting to Rupees 9.316 million and penalty amounting to Rupees 
0.400 million against claimed input tax for the periods from July 2020 to June 2021. The Company filed an appeal before ATIR which 
was heard on 13 December 2022 and was decided in favour of the Company.
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12.1.5 Post dated cheques have been issued to custom authorities in respect of duties amounting to Rupees 1,180.514 million (2022: 
Rupees 2,471.501 million) on imported material availed on the basis of consumption and export plans. In the event the documents 
of exports are not provided on due dates, cheques issued as security shall be encashable. The Company is availing Export Facilitation 
Scheme (EFS) License issued by Collector of Custom, Lahore with a face value of Rupees 2,000 million for the duty and tax free imports 
of plant, machinery, equipment, component parts, raw material, packing material and accessories. The said limit was allowed by 
Collector of Customs, Lahore after securing a post dated cheque of Rupees 2,000 million from the Company.

12.1.6 The Company's share in contingency of associate accounted for under equity method is Rupees 168.326 million (2022: Rupees 
109.672 million).

12.2 Commitments

12.2.1 Contracts for capital expenditure are approximately of Rupees 35.851 million (2022: Rupees 30.710 million).  
 

12.2.2 Letters of credit other than capital expenditure are of Rupees 504.628 million (2022: Rupees 363.578 million). 
 
12.2.3 Outstanding foreign currency forward contracts are of Rupees 3,194.370 million (2022: Rupees 2,133.05 million). 

 
12.2.4  The Company has obtained vehicles under ijarah arrangements from Bank AL Habib Limited for the period of four years and ijarah 

rentals are payable on monthly basis respectively. Future Ujrah payments under ijarah are as follows:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Not later than one year  10,926  10,508 
Later than one year and not later than five years  5,977  16,162 

 16,903  26,670 

12.2.5  Following represent commitments arising from short-term leases recognized on a straight-line basis as expense under the practical 
expedients applied by the Company. The amount of future payments under these leases and the period in which these payments 
will become due are as follows:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Not later than 1 year  2,020  4,310 

13. FIXED ASSETS

Operating fixed assets (Note 13.1)  2,967,697  2,321,674 
Capital work-in-progress (Note 13.4)  100,285  272,904 

 3,067,982  2,594,578 
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13.1.1 Detail of operating fixed assets, exceeding the book value of Rupees 500,000 disposed during the year

Description Quantity Cost
Accumulated 

depreciation 

Net book 

value 

 Sale 

proceeds 
Gain 

Mode of 

disposal 

Particular of 

purchasers 

---------------------------------------------------Rupees in thousand---------------------------------------------------

 Vehicles 

Changan Oshan X7 - 2022 1  6,200  1,274  4,926  5,946 1,020  Negotiation Mr. Hassan Ehsan 
-Director of the 
Company, Lahore

Aggregate of items of 

operating fixed assets 

with individual book 

values not exceeding 

Rupees 500,000 91  6,941  6,456  485  604  119 
 13,141  7,730  5,411  6,550  1,139 

13.1.2 During the previous year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Company at Muridke damaged certain items of operating fixed 
assets with an aggregate book value of Rupees 10.399 million. The Company claimed such loss from its insurance providers in 
accordance with the relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1.

2023 2022
Note (Rupees in thousand)

13.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales  (Note 28)  223,552  179,822 
Administrative expenses (Note 30)  20,354  7,040 

 243,906  186,862 

13.3 Particulars of immovable properties (i.e. land and buildings) are as follows:

Manufacturing unit and residential 
colony Address

Area of freehold 
land

(Square Feet)

Covered area
(Square Feet)

Muridke factory and residential colony 10 - KM, Muridke - Sheikhupura Road, Muridke  1,345,693  408,789 

Freehold land Hadbast Manga Otar, Raiwind, Lahore  211,500  -   
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13.4 Capital work in progress

Buildings 
on freehold 

land

Plant and 
machinery

Furniture, 
fixture and 

fittings

Service 
equipment Vehicles Total

---------------------------------------------------Rupees in thousand---------------------------------------------

At 31 December 2021  31,670  9,737  1,960  15,869  -  59,236 
Add: Additions during the year  339,580  220,844  5,778  71,615  1,478  639,295 
Less: Written off due to fire (Note 13.5)  (7,702)  -  -  -  -  (7,702)
Less: Transferred to operating fixed assets 
during the year  (104,119)  (221,053)  (7,738)  (85,015)  -  (417,925)
At 31 December 2022  259,429  9,528  -  2,469  1,478  272,904 
Add: Additions during the year  214,239  162,991  4,025  155,784  6,659  543,698 
Less: Transferred to operating fixed assets 
during the year  (438,036)  (131,194)  (3,852)  (141,757)  (1,478)  (716,317)
At 31 December 2023  35,632  41,325  173  16,496  6,659  100,285 

13.5 During the previous year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Company at Muridke damaged certain items of capital work-in-
progress with an aggregate book value of Rupees 7.702 million. The Company claimed such loss from its insurance providers in 
accordance with the relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

14. LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

Security deposits against Ijarah  6,756  7,920 
Security deposits - others  4,301  3,529 

 11,057  11,449 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets  (Note 23)  -    (877)

 11,057  10,572 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

84 Service Global Footwear Limited



2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

15. LONG TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES

Considered good:

Executives (Note 15.1, Note 15.2 and Note 15.3)  13,353  20,248 
Other employees (Note 15.3)  2,478  1,060 

 15,831  21,308 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 21)
Executives  (6,437)  (7,314)
Other employees  (1,027)  (360)

 (7,464)  (7,674)
 8,367  13,634 

15.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives:
Balance as at the beginning of the year  20,248  12,996 
Add: Disbursements  2,325  13,581 
Less: Repayments                            (9,220)  (6,329)
Balance as at the end of the year  13,353  20,248 

15.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 17.743 million (2022: Rupees 
22.126 million).

     
15.3 These represent interest free loans to executives and employees for general purposes and house building. These are recoverable in 

monthly instalments over the period of 1 to 6 years and are secured by amount due to the employees against retirement benefits.

15.4 The fair value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' arising in respect of staff loans is not 
considered material and hence not recognized.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16. LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Investment in subsidiary company - at cost (Note 16.1)  89,167  - 
Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method (Note 16.2)  2,691,689  2,217,650 

 2,780,856  2,217,650 

16.1 Investment in subsidiary company - at cost

Dongguan Service Global Limited
Equity held 100% (2022: Nil) (Note 16.1.1)
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16.1.1 Dongguan Service Global Limited is a limited liability company (wholly owned by foreign legal person) registered with Dongguan 
Administration of Market Regulations, China. Dongguan Service Global Limited was incorporated on 18 December 2022. Business 
scope of Dongguan Service Global Limited is wholesale of shoes and hats, sales of leather products, sales of needle textiles and 
raw materials, wholesale of hardware products, sales of bags, sales of daily necessities, sales of daily necessities, inspection of 
clothing and apparel, finishing services, technical services, technology development, technical consultation, technology exchange, 
technology transfer, technology promotion, import and export of goods, technology import and export (except for projects subject 
to approval according to law, independently carry out business activities according to law with a business license). Commercial 
address of Dongguan Service Global Limited  is Room 302, No. 18, Houjie Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, China. The 
registered capital of Dongguan Service Global Limited is USD 1,250,000 which is being subscribed by the Company. The Company 
wholly owns Dongguan Service Global Limited.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16.2 Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method

Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited

 242,331,650 (2022: 242,331,650) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each (Note 16.2.1)  2,691,689  2,217,650 

16.2.1 Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method

Cost of investment  2,434,575  2,434,575 

Share of post acquisition changes in investee's net assets:

As at the beginning of the year  (216,925)  7,149 
Add: Share of post acquisition profit / (loss) - net of tax  474,039  (224,074)

 257,114  (216,925)
Balance at the end of the year  2,691,689  2,217,650 

16.2.2 Summary of financial information of associate as per audited financial statements for the year:

Current assets  13,047,573  10,661,478 
Non-current assets  20,821,253  19,570,318 
Total assets  33,868,826  30,231,796 
Current liabilities  11,077,467  9,078,397 
Non-current liabilities  8,538,456  9,407,310 
Share deposit money  18,697  18,697 
Total liabilities  19,634,620  18,504,404 
Net assets  14,234,206  11,727,392 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16.2.3 Reconciliation to carrying amounts:

Balance at the beginning of the year  11,727,392  9,547,338 
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners  -  3,365,000 
Profit / (loss) after income tax  2,506,814  (1,184,946)
Other comprehensive income  -  -   

Balance at the end of the year  14,234,206  11,727,392 

Percentage of holding 18.91% 18.91%

Company's share  2,691,689  2,217,650 

16.2.4 Summarized statement of comprehensive income:

Revenue  26,768,189  8,307,127 

Profit / (loss) for the year  2,506,814  (1,184,946)
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -   
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year  2,506,814  (1,184,946)

16.2.5 Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing, sale, marketing, import and export 
of all steel radial truck, bus, light truck and off the road tyres. Its registered office is situated at Servis House, 2 – Main Gulberg, 
Lahore.    

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

17. LONG TERM LOAN TO HOLDING COMPANY

Balance at the beginning of the year  2,250,000  2,500,000 
Less: Loan repaid by the Holding Company  (1,000,000)  (250,000)

 1,250,000  2,250,000 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 21)  (500,000)  (500,000)
Balance at the end of the year  750,000  1,750,000 

17.1 This represents unsecured loan to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. This carries mark-up at 6-months KIBOR plus 0.25 
percent per annum or average borrowing cost of the Company, whichever is higher. The maximum aggregate amount receivable from 
the Holding Company at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 2,250 million (2022: Rupees 2,500 million). It is neither 
past due nor impaired. Effective rate of mark-up charged on this long term loan ranges from 17.29% to 23.22% (2022: 11.71% to 
17.29%) per annum.
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

18. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores  45,718  34,487 
Machinery spares  77,614  43,566 
Loose tools  8,617  11,146 

 131,949  89,199 
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items  (Note 18.1)  (8,456)  (7,243)

 123,493  81,956 

18.1 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items

Balance at the beginning of the year  7,243  3,918 
Add: Provision for the year  1,213  3,325 
Balance at the end of the year  8,456  7,243 

19. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials  (Note 19.1)  1,926,537  1,463,833 
Packing materials  69,899  70,413 
Work-in-process (Note 19.2)  877,342  802,489 
Finished goods (Note 19.3 and Note 19.4)  1,704,823  1,072,894 

 4,578,601  3,409,629 
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks (Note 19.7)  (24,465)  (49,270)

 4,554,136  3,360,359 

19.1 These include stock-in-transit of Rupees 478.231 million (2022: Rupees 143.205 million).
    
19.2 This includes stock of Rupees 166.903 million (2022: Rupees 160.843 million) sent to outside parties for processing.

19.3 These include stock in transit of Rupees 404.498 million (2022: Rupees 249.932 million).

19.4 Finished goods of Rupees 17.455 million (2022: Rupees 41.088 million) are being carried at net realizable value. 
 

19.5 The aggregate amount of Rupees 10.097 million (2022: Rupees 14.149 million) has been charged to cost of sales, being the cost of 
inventory written down during the year.

19.6 During the previous year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Company at Muridke damaged certain items of raw material, work-
in-process and finished goods. The carrying values of the assets damaged were Rupees 420.611 million, Rupees 15.795 million 
and Rupees 50.585 million respectively. The Company claimed such loss from its insurance providers in accordance with relevant 
insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1.

.  
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

19.7 Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks

Balance at the beginning of the year  49,270  45,190 

Less: (Reversal of provision) / provision for the year  (24,805)  4,080 
Balance at the end of the year  24,465  49,270 

20. TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Secured:
- Against irrevocable letters of credit  916,305  1,094,395 
Unsecured:
- Related parties  (Note 20.3, 20.4 and 20.5)  11,471  91,081 
- Others (Note 20.6)  788,890  662,854 

 800,361  753,935 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (Note 20.7)  (6,300)  (8,610)

 1,710,366  1,839,720 

20.1 Types of counterparties:   -
Export

Corporate  1,675,463  1,756,617 
Other  -  - 

 1,675,463  1,756,617 
Local

Corporate  37,630  45,702 
Other  3,573  46,011 

 41,203  91,713 
 1,716,666  1,848,330 

20.2 Foreign jurisdictions of trade debts:

Europe  1,081,412  1,211,012 
Asia, Africa and Australia  199,995  318,307 
United States of America and Canada  394,056  227,298 

 1,675,463  1,756,617 
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20.3 This represents amounts due from following related parties:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Service Industries Limited - Holding Company  11,471  -   
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary company of the Holding Company  -    85,123 
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited - associated company  -    5,958 

20.4 The maximum aggregate amount receivable from related parties at the end of any month during the year was as follows:

Service Industries Limited - Holding Company  87,462  26,922 
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary company of the Holding Company  81,924  194,314 
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited - associated company  8,994  65,230 

20.5 As at the reporting date, trade debts due from related parties amounting to Rupees 1.490 million (2022: Rupees 61.303 million) were 
past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of this trade debts is as follows:

Upto 1 month  1,490  26,175 
1 to 6 months  -    30,793 
More than 6 months  -    4,335 

 1,490  61,303 

20.6 As at the reporting date, trade debts due from other than related parties of Rupees 138.086 million (2022: Rupees 296.675 million) 
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default. 
The age analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

Upto 1 month  44,668  45,008 
1 to 6 months  77,214  250,406 
More than 6 months  16,204  1,261 

 138,086  296,675 

20.7 Allowance for expected credit losses 
Balance at the beginning of the year  8,610  4,243 
(Less) / Add: (Reversal of allowance) / allowance recognized during the year (Note 32 and Note 31)  (2,310)  4,367 
Balance at the end of the year  6,300  8,610 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

21. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:

Short term loan to Holding Company (Note 21.1)  -    7,618 
Current portion of long term loan to Holding Company (Note 17)  500,000  500,000 
Advances against letters of credit  847,564  423,452 
Advances to suppliers (Note 21.2)  95,195  288,910 
Advances to staff  6,982  2,700 
Current portion of long term loans to employees  (Note 15)  7,464  7,674 

 1,457,205  1,230,354 

21.1 This represented unsecured loan to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company for working capital requirement. This carried mark-
up at 1-month KIBOR plus 0.05 percent per annum or average borrowing cost of the Company, whichever is higher. The maximum 
aggregate amount receivable from the Holding Company at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 1,718.297 million 
(2022: Rupees 2,746.29 million). It is neither past due nor impaired. Effective rate of mark-up charged on this short term loan ranged 
from 17.57% to 22.66% per annum (2022: 10.40% to 16.63% per annum).

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

21.2 Advances to suppliers

Advances to suppliers  95,195  294,793 
Less: Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  -    (5,883)

 95,195  288,910 

21.2.1 Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers

Balance at the beginning of the year  5,883  -   
(Less) / Add: (Reversal of provision) / provision for doubtful
advances to suppliers (Note 32 and Note 31)  (5,883)  5,883 
Balance at the end of the year  -    5,883 

22. ACCRUED MARK-UP

On short term loan to Holding Company (Note 22.1)  -    -   
On long term loan to Holding Company (Note 22.2)  -    -   
On saving account  5,357  -   

 5,357  -   

22.1 This represented accrued mark-up on short term loan given to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. The maximum aggregate 
outstanding amount at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 62.475 million (2022: Rupees 37.074 million).
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22.2 This represented accrued mark-up on long term loan given to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company. The maximum aggregate 
outstanding amount at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 113.237 million (2022: Rupees 90.949 million). 

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

23. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Short term security deposits  3,300  4,650 
Prepayments  5,016  7,461 
Current portion of long term security deposits (Note 14)  -    877 

 8,316  12,988 

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Custom duty rebate  620,068  292,239 
Duty drawback  10,740  10,740 
Sales tax refundable  790,497  484,527 
Lab testing charges (Note 24.1)  14,065  3,159 
Claims receivable (Note 24.2)  -    53,529 
Insurance claim receivable (Note 32.1)  444  14,407 
Miscellaneous (Note24.3)  5,697  12,904 

 1,441,511  871,505 

24.1 Lab testing charges

Lab testing charges  14,065  4,214 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 24.1.1)  -    (1,055)

 14,065  3,159 

24.1.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,055  1,055 
Less: Reversal of allowance during the year (Note 32)  (1,055)  -   
Balance at the end of the year  -    1,055 

24.2 Claims receivable

Claims receivable  13,621  53,529 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 24.2.1)  (13,621)  -   

 -    53,529 

24.2.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Add: Allowance recognized during the year (Note 31)  13,621  -   
Balance at the end of the year  13,621  -   
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

24.3 Miscellaneous 

Miscellaneous  13,346  12,904 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 24.3.1)  (7,649)  -   

 5,697  12,904 

24.3.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Add: Allowance recognized during the year (Note 31)  7,649  -   
Balance at the end of the year  7,649  -   

25. ADVANCE INCOME TAX - NET

Advance income tax  721,692  630,715 
Less: Provision for taxation  (588,127)  (410,365)

 133,565  220,350 

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand  2,026  1,107 
With banks:
Current accounts:
Local currency  488,902  128,026 
Foreign currency  (Note 26.1)  259,024  32,487 

 747,926  160,513 
Saving accounts:
Local currency  (Note 26.2)  2,153,098  -   

 2,903,050  161,620 

26.1 This represents EURO 831,930.31 (2022: EURO 134,550.85).

26.2 Rate of profit on bank deposits range from 6.50% to 21.5% (2022: 4.25% to 6.50%) per annum.

27. REVENUE - NET

Revenue from contracts with customers:

Export sales  14,933,100  11,699,022 
Local sales (Note 27.1)  281,788  257,491 

 15,214,888  11,956,513 
Less: Discounts, commissions etc.  (153,071)  (203,425)

 15,061,817  11,753,088 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

27.1 Local sales

Local sales  334,174  297,890 
Less: Sales tax  (52,386)  (40,399)

 281,788  257,491 

27.2 The amount of Rupees 88.014 million (2022: Rupees 56.775 million) included in contract liabilities (Note 8) at 31 December 2022 
has been recognized as revenue in 2023.     
 

27.3 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

 In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products and 
service lines and timing of revenue recognition:

Description 2023 2022
Rupees in thousand

Region

Europe  11,783,358  9,293,188 
United States of America and Canada  2,170,311  1,356,869 
Asia, Africa, Australia  826,360  845,540 
Pakistan  281,788  257,491 

 15,061,817  11,753,088 

Timing of revenue recognition

Products and services transferred at a point in time  15,061,817  11,753,088 
Products and services transferred over time  -    -   

 15,061,817  11,753,088 

Major products / service lines

Raw material  -    170,400 
Footwear  15,061,817  11,582,688 

 15,061,817  11,753,088 

27.4 Revenue is recognized at point in time as per the terms and conditions of underlying contracts with customers.
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

28. COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed  (Note 28.1)  6,910,269  5,942,443 
Processing charges  117,502  165,341 
Salaries, wages and other benefits  (Note 28.2, Note 28.3 and Note 28.4)  3,003,986  2,386,761 
Packing materials consumed  878,626  700,049 
Stores and spares consumed  504,872  332,658 
Fuel and power  343,451  198,061 
Repair and maintenance  41,264  42,683 
Insurance  20,330  9,598 
Travelling  31,527  24,135 
Entertainment  6,715  4,166 
Rent, rates and taxes (Note 28.5)  642  2,951 
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory  (23,592)  7,405 
Depreciation (Note 13.2)  223,552  179,822 
Other manufacturing charges  72,653  44,008 

 12,131,797  10,040,081 
Work-in-process:
Opening stock  802,489  489,315 
Closing stock  (877,342)  (802,489)

 (74,853)  (313,174)
Cost of goods manufactured  12,056,944  9,726,907 

Finished goods:
Opening stock  1,072,894  854,374 
Finished goods purchased  335,681  59,050 
Closing stock  (1,704,823)  (1,072,894)

 (296,248)  (159,470)
 11,760,696  9,567,437 

28.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock  1,463,833  745,827 
Add: Purchases during the year (Note 28.6)  7,372,973  6,660,449 
Less: Closing stock  (1,926,537)  (1,463,833)

 6,910,269  5,942,443 

28.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 101.659 million (2022: Rupees 85.195 million) and Rupees 
28.985 million (2022: Rupees 19.096 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.
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28.3 Salaries, wages and other benefits include compensated absences expense of Rupees 26.176 million (2022: Rupees 19.426 million).

28.4 Salaries, wages and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 0.552 million (2022: Rupees 16.619 million).

28.5 These include rent expense of Rupees 0.428 million (2022: Rupees 2.445 million) related to short term leases.

28.6 Custom duty rebate for the year amounting to Rupees 507.770 million (2022: Rupees 368.933 million) has been adjusted against 
raw materials consumed.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

29. DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits  (Note 29.1 and Note 29.2)  104,018  80,735 
Freight and insurance  377,283  396,968 
Samples, claims and product development  501,024  317,859 
Postage and courier  116,972  82,908 
Fuel and power  12,377  7,864 
Travelling and conveyance  58,062  23,300 
Entertainment  12,890  9,273 
Rent, rates and taxes (Note 29.3)  4,154  1,877 

 1,186,780  920,784 

29.1 Salaries and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 3.734 million (2022: Rupees 2.892 million) and Rupees 0.185 million 
(2022: Rupees 0.103 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.

29.2 Salaries, and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 0.127 million (2022: Rupees 1.948 million).

29.3 These include rent expense of Rupees 4.154 million (2022: Rupees 1.324 million) related to short term leases. 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits (Note 30.1, Note 30.2 and Note 30.3)  454,740  335,497 
Communication  2,539  3,693 
Printing and stationery  8,565  7,266 
Travelling and conveyance  12,731  13,880 
Entertainment  15,393  11,897 
Vehicles' running  25,438  21,515 
Insurance  5,023  2,093 
Rent, rates and taxes  7,679  7,632 
Fuel and power  20,730  16,131 
Repairs and maintenance  10,116  12,011 
Auditor's remuneration  (Note 30.4)  3,629  2,963 
Legal and professional  30,562  33,820 
Subscription  112  138 
Depreciation  (Note 13.2)  20,354  7,040 
Ijarah rentals  11,876  13,192 
Computer running  11,548  11,605 
Advertisement  161  -   
General  29,998  22,969 

 671,194  523,342 

30.1 Salaries and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 13.605 million (2022: Rupees 10.063 million) and Rupees 3.749 million 
(2022: Rupees 2.828 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.

30.2 Salaries and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 0.216 million (2022: Rupees 6.464 million).

30.3 Salaries and other benefits include compensated absences  expense of Rupees 2.415 million (2022: Rupees 1.753 million).

30.4 Auditor's remuneration

Statutory audit fee  1,670  1,518 
Statutory audit fee of consolidated financial statements  354  - 
Half yearly review  605  550 
Certification charges  550  500 
Reimbursable expenses  450  395 

 3,629  2,963 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

31. OTHER EXPENSES

Donations  (Note 31.1)  -    4,226 
Allowance for expected credit losses - trade debts (Note 20.7)  -    4,367 
Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  -    5,883 
Allowance for expected credit losses - claims receivable (Note 24.2.1)  13,621  -   
Allowance for expected credit losses - miscellaneous other receivables (Note 24.3.1)  7,649  -   
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 8.3)  33,990  17,609 
Workers' welfare fund (Note 8.4)  32,527  14,040 

 87,787  46,125 

31.1 These represented donations given to Servis Foundation - related party. Mr. Chaudhry Ahmed Javed, Director, Mr. Arif Saeed, Chairman, 
Mr. Omar Saeed, Director and Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive are directors of Servis Foundation.

    
2023 2022

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

32. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Interest on loans to Holding Company  532,170  544,882 
Interest on term deposit receipts and saving accounts  16,398  25,382 
Exchange gain - net  182,352  88,284 

Income From Non-Financial Assets

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net (Note 13.1.1)  1,139  581 
Insurance claim against business interruption loss (Note 32.1)  -    4,908 
Amortization of deferred income - Government grant  (Note 7.2)  -    3,476 
Scrap sales  30,822  16,291 
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses - trade debts (Note 20.7)  2,310  -   
Reversal of provision for doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  5,883  -   
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses - Lab testing charges (Note 24.1.1)  1,055  -   

 772,129  683,804 

32.1 As referred to in notes 13.1.2, 13.5, and 19.6, during the previous year fire outbreak at factory premises of the Company at Muridke 
damaged certain items of operating fixed assets, capital work-in-progress and stock-in-trade. The Company filed the insurance claim 
in respect of these assets. The insurer appointed a surveyor who completed his survey during the previous year and assessed the 
insurance claim at Rupees 510.000 million including business interruption claim of Rupees 4.908 million. Out of the total claim, the 
Company has received proceeds of Rupees 509.556 million from the insurer as of 31 December 2023. Subsequent to the reporting 
period, remaining amount has been received.
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2022
Amount

Rupees in thousand

Carrying value of assets written off due to fire 

Operating fixed assets (Note 13.1)  10,399 
Capital work-in-progress (Note 13.4)  7,702 
Raw materials (Note 19)  420,611 
Work-in-process (Note 19)  15,795 
Finished goods (Note 19)  50,585 
Carrying value of assets written off due to fire  505,092 
Insurance claim verified to date  510,000 
Insurance claim against business interruption loss  4,908 

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

33. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on: 
- Short term borrowings  893,977  403,785 
- Long term financing  37,689  21,082 
Interest on workers’ profit participation fund  (Note 8.3)  1,270  1,500 
Bank charges and commission  74,785  40,813 

 1,007,721  467,180 

34. TAXATION

Current  (Note 34.1)  285,892  325,682 
Prior period adjustment  59,215  22,970 
Deferred tax  67,093  (2,761)

 412,200  345,891 

34.1 The Company falls under the ambit of presumptive tax regime under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Provision for 
income tax is made accordingly. Further, provision against income from other sources is made under the relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

34.2 Provision for deferred income tax is not required as the Company is chargeable to tax under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 and no temporary differences are expected to arise in the foreseeable future except for deferred tax liability as explained in note 7.
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

34.3 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit:

Accounting profit before taxation  1,593,807  687,950 
Applicable tax rate 29% 29%
Tax on accounting profit  462,204  199,506 
Prior period adjustment  59,215  22,970 
Deferred tax  67,093  (2,761)
Super tax  73,306  39,477 
Tax effect of final tax regime income taxed at a lower rate  (4,319,857)  (3,377,104)
Tax effect of expenses / income that are not considered in determining taxable liability  4,070,239  3,463,803 

 412,200  345,891 

2023 2022
35 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

35.1 Basic earnings per share

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousand)  1,181,607  342,059 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers)  (Note 35.3)  205,464,979  204,734,897 
Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 5.75 1.67

35.2 Diluted earnings per share 

 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion 
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has granted share options to employees as explained in note 4.2.

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousand)  1,181,607  342,059 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) (Note 35.3)  205,464,979  204,734,897 
Adjustment for share options (Numbers)  75,348  645,178 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share (Numbers)  205,540,327  205,380,075 
Diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 5.75 1.67

35.2.1 Share options issued by the Company have a dilutive effect on the earnings per share since the fair value of the ordinary shares during 
the year exceeds the exercise price of the options.

35.3 Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year :

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year  205,087,500  204,437,500 
Effect of ordinary shares issued under Employees Stock Option Scheme  377,479  297,397 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end of the year  205,464,979  204,734,897 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

36. CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation  1,593,807  687,950 
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation (Note 13.2)  243,906  186,862 
Provision for gratuity  (Note 6.5.1)  32,919  22,027 
Provision for workers' profit participation fund (Note 8.3)  33,990  17,609 
Provision for workers' welfare fund  (Note 8.4)  32,527  14,040 
Amortization of deferred income - Government grant (Note 7.2)  -  (3,476)
(Reversal of provision) / provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory (Note 28)  (23,592)  7,405 
(Reversal of allowance) / allowance for expected credit losses - trade debts (Note 20.7)  (2,310)  4,367 
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses - lab testing chargese (Note 24.1.1)  (1,055)  -   
Allowance for expected credit losses - claims receivable (Note 24.2.1)  13,621  -   
Allowance for expected credit losses - miscellaneous other receivables (Note 24.3.1)  7,649  -   
(Reversal of provision) / provision against doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  (5,883)  5,883 
Finance cost (Note 33)  1,007,721  467,180 
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net (Note 32)  (1,139)  (581)
Insurance claim against business interruption loss (Note 32)  -  (4,908)
Interest on loans to Holding Company (Note 32)  (532,170)  (544,882)
Interest on saving accounts and term deposit receipt (Note 32)  (16,398)  (25,382)
Exchange gain - net (Note 32)  (182,352)  (88,284)
Share of (profit) / loss of equity accounted investee - net of taxation (Note16.2.1)  (474,039)  224,074 
Employees' share option expense (Note 4.2.2)  895  25,031 
Working capital changes (Note 36.1)  (1,000,890)  (2,924,815)

 727,207  (1,929,900)

36.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools  (42,750)  (42,220)
Stock-in-trade  (1,168,972)  (1,758,335)
Trade debts  314,016  (938,089)
Loans and advances  (228,796)  (437,826)
Prepayments  2,445  (6,676)
Other receivables  (604,184)  (350,677)

 (1,728,241)  (3,533,823)
Increase in trade and other payables  727,351  609,008 

 (1,000,890)  (2,924,815)
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36.2 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Year ended 31 December 2023

 Liabilities from financing activities

Long term

financing

Short term 

borrowings

Unclaimed 

dividend

Dividend 

payable

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Balance at the beginning of the year  401,814  5,488,314  4,850  -   

Add: Borrowings obtained  -    32,169,613  -    -   

Less: Repayment of financing / borrowings  (39,450)  (29,375,580)  -    -   

Add: Dividends declared  -    -    205,088  617,753 

Less: Dividends paid  -    -    (204,994)  -   

Balance at the end of the year  362,364  8,282,347  4,944  617,753 

Year ended 31 December 2022
 Liabilities from financing activities

Long term
financing

Short term
borrowings

Unclaimed
dividend

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Balance at the beginning of the year  397,491  3,924,075  -   
Add: Financing / borrowings obtained  149,306  29,824,802  -   
Less: Repayment of financing / borrowings  (148,460)  (28,260,563)  -   
Add: Dividends declared  -    -    921,594 
Less: Dividends paid  -    -    (916,744)
Other changes - non-cash movement  3,477  -    -   
Balance at the end of the year  401,814  5,488,314  4,850 

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

36.3 Non-cash financing activities

Other changes - non-cash movement  -    3,477 
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37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration including all benefits to chief executive, directors and 
executives of the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
---------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) ---------------------------------------------

Managerial remuneration  46,431  40,375  26,629  21,791  150,165  89,003 
Bonus  48,000  20,833  13,236  5,673  55,906  36,020 
Allowances:
   House rent  4,643  4,038  7,135  5,516  42,200  32,834 
   Conveyance  4,643  4,038  489  480  17,287  7,293 
   Medical  -  -    3,867  3,269  21,598  12,476 
   Special allowance  -  -    4,304  4,034  1,886  4,233 
Retirement and other benefits  3,482  3,028  4,285  8,960  41,619  4,122 
Total  107,199  72,312  59,945  49,723  330,661  185,981 
Number of persons 1 1 2 2 61 39
Employee share options 
granted (No. of options) - -  100,000  250,000  605,000  598,000 
Issuance of ordinary shares 
(No. of shares) - -  250,000  450,000  580,000  200,000 

37.1 No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.

37.2 Chief Executive, directors and certain executives of the Company are provided with fully maintained vehicles.

37.3 Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for meeting fee to three (2022: three) directors was Rupees 2.16 million 
(2022: Rupees 1.840 million).

37.4 During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema, Executive Director, Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer, Executive 
Director, Mr. Amer Ahmad Javed, Key management personnel, Mr. Syed Arshad Hussain Shah, Key management personnel, Mr. 
Usman Liaqat, Key management personnel and Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq, Key management personnel were granted 50,000 (2022: 
150,000), 50,000 (2022: 100,000), 40,000 (2022: 35,000), 40,000 (2022: 35,000), 40,000 (2022: 101,500) and 40,000 (2022: 
100,000) employee share options respectively. 150,000 (2022: 250,000), 100,000 (2022: 200,000), 35,000 (2022: Nil), 35,000 
(2022: Nil), 101,500 (2022: Nil) and 100,000 (2022: 200,000) number of ordinary shares were issued during the year ended 31 
December 2023 to Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema, Executive Director, Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer, Executive Director, Mr. Amer Ahmad 
Javed, Key management personnel, Mr. Syed Arshad Hussain Shah, Key management personnel, Mr. Usman Liaqat, Key management 
personnel and Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq, Key management personnel respectively.

38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 The related parties comprise of the Holding Company, subsidiary company, subsidiaries of the Holding Company, associated 
companies, employees' gratuity fund trust, employees' provident fund trust and key management personnel. The Company in the 
normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than 
those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand
Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Holding Company

Service Industries Limited Sale of goods  305,772  68,244 
Expenses charged to the Company  280,647  235,853 
Purchase of goods  390,094  140,844 
Processing charges  109,186  118,947 
Loans given  11,589,162  9,886,995 
Loans repaid  12,596,780  11,156,097 
Interest income  532,170  544,882 
Dividend paid  163,550  735,975 

Sub-subsidiary of the Holding Company

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Sale of goods  -    170,401 
Purchase of goods  -    39,011 
Sale of operating fixed assets  -    6,189 

Subsidiary of the Holding Company

SIL GULF (FZE) Purchase of machinery  43,904  -   
Purchase of goods  73,391  -   

Subsidary company

Dongguan Service Global Limited Purchase of goods  422,686  -   
Investment made  89,167  -   

Associated company

Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited Sale of goods  3,035  11,985 
Purchase of goods  15,134  668 

Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited Investment made  -    636,322 
Service Foundation Donation made  -    4,226 

Key management personnel Dividends paid  2,888  10,794 
Post employment benefit plans Company's contribution to gratuity fund trust  32,919  22,027 

Company's contribution to provident fund trust  118,998  98,150 

38.1 Detail of compensation to key management personnel is disclosed in Note 37.
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38.2 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place:

Name of the related party Basis of Relationship

Transactions entered 
or agreements and / or 
arrangements in place 

during the financial year

Percentage of 
shareholding

2023 2022

Service Industries Limited Holding Company  Yes  Yes Nil
S2 Power Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
S2 Hydro Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Speed (Private) Limited Shareholding of the Holding Company  No  No Nil
SBL Trading (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited Common directorship  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited Common directorship and share holding No  Yes 18.91%
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) 

Limited (subsidiary company of Service 
Industries Limited - Holding Company)  No  Yes Nil

Servis Foundation Common directorship  No  Yes Nil
Shalamar Hospital Directors of the Company are Trustees  No  No Nil
Kidney Centre Gujrat Directors of the Company are members of 

Board of Governors  No  No Nil
Shahid Arif Investment (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
SIL GULF FZE Subsidiary of Holding Company  Yes  No Nil
Service Provident Fund Trust Post employment benefit plan  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund 
Trust Post employment benefit plan  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Charitable Trust Directors of the Company are Trustees  No  No Nil
Service Tyres (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Service Retail (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Dongguan Service Global Subsidiary Company  Yes  No 100%
Mr. Hassan Javed Chief Executive  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Arif Saeed Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Omar Saeed Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Director  Yes  Yes Nil
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38.3 Particulars of companies incorporated outside Pakistan with whom the Company had entered into transactions or had agreements and 
/ or arrangements in place is as follows:

Name Country of incorporation Basis of association  Percentage of 
shareholding 

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Sri Lanka Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital 
(Private) Limited (Subsidiary company of 
Service Industries Limited - Holding Company) Nil

SIL GULF (FZE) United Arab Emirates Subsidiary of Service Industries  Limited - 
Holding Company

Nil

Dongguan Service Global Limited China Subsidiary company 100%

38.4 As on 31 December 2023, disclosure relating to subsidiary company, subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited - 
associated company and subsidiary of Service Industries Limited - Holding Company incorporated outside Pakistan:

Particulars Details

Name of the company Service Shoes Lanka 
(Private) Limited 

SIL GULF (FZE) Dongguan Service 
Global Limited

Jurisdiction Sri Lanka United Arab Emirates China
Beneficial owner Service Industries Capital 

(Private) Limited
Service Industries 
Limited

Service Global Footwear 
Limited

Investment made during the year ended 31 December 2017 2022 2023
Investment in

Local currency PKR 62,770,000 PKR 7,215,000 PKR 89,166,721
Foreign currency USD 600,000 AED 150,000 EURO 287,645

Terms and conditions of investment Investment in shares of 
subsidiary company

Investment in shares of 
subsidiary company

Investment in shares of 
subsidiary company

Amount of returns received None None None
Litigation against investee company None None None
Default / breach related to foreign company None None None
Gain / (loss) on disposal of investment Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

39. PLANT CAPACITY

Installed capacity Actual production

(Pairs in thousand) (Pairs in thousand)

2023 2022 2023 2022

Strobel construction  1,662  1,600 1,467  1,526 
lasted construction  2,338  2,250 2,062  2,145 

 4,000  3,850  3,529  3,671 
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39.1 The deviation in actual production from installed capacity is due to rapidly growing trends as the Company has to change major shoe 
lines in accordance with the market trends. This involves change in manufacturing operations and product mix which causes variances 
not only between the installed capacity and actual production but also between the actual production of any two years.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

40.1 Financial risk factors

 The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest rate 
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

 Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The 
Company's finance department evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as 
well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and investment 
of excess liquidity. 

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist 
due to transactions in foreign currencies.

 The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the United States 
Dollar (USD), Euro, British Pound Sterling (GBP) and Chinese Yuan (CNY). Currently, the Company's foreign exchange risk 
exposure is restricted to bank balance, amounts receivable from / payable to the foreign entities and short term borrowings. 
The Company's exposure to currency risk was as follows:
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Cash at banks - EURO  831,930  134,551 
Trade debts - USD  2,252,146  2,892,102 
Trade debts - EURO  3,192,348  4,478,120 
Trade debts - GBP  124,857  75,526 
Other receivables - USD  33,566  207,918 
Other receivables - EURO  -  60,256 
Trade and other payables - USD  (1,401,560)  (2,096,919)
Trade and other payables - EURO  (281,673)  (702,812)
Trade and other payables - CNY  -  (65,725)
Trade and other payables - GBP  (1,526)  - 
Short term borrowings - USD  (1,925,000)  - 
Net exposure - USD  (1,040,848)  1,003,101 
Net exposure - EURO  3,742,605  3,970,115 
Net exposure - GBP  123,331  75,526 
Net exposure - CNY  -  (65,725)

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Rupees per US Dollar

Average rate 283.35 204.92
Reporting date rate 281.86 226.40

Rupees per EURO

Average rate 307.13 213.99
Reporting date rate 311.50 241.45

Rupees per GBP

Average rate 353.63 250.83
Reporting date rate 358.60 273.02

Rupees per CNY

Average rate 39.99 30.22
Reporting date rate 39.63 32.53

 Sensitivity analysis

 If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD, Euro, GBP and CNY with 
all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been higher / lower by Rupees 29.835 million 
(2022: Rupees 55.133 million), mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated 
financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis. In 
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management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does not 
reflect the exposure during the year.

    
(ii) Other price risk

 Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in 
the market. The Company is not exposed to equity and commodity price risks.

(iii) Interest rate risk

 This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates.

 The Company's significant interest-bearing financial assets are loans to Service Industries Limited - Holding Company and the 
Company's interest rate risk arises mainly from long term financing, short term borrowings, loans to the Holding Company 
and bank balances - saving accounts. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. 
Borrowings obtained at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

 At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

Fixed rate instruments

Financial asset -  -   

Financial liabilities

Long term financing  202,078  240,151 
Short term borrowings  6,743,006  3,862,010 

Floating rate financial instruments

Financial asset

Bank balances - saving accounts  2,153,098  -   
Loans to Holding Company  1,250,000  2,257,618 

Financial liabilities

Long term financing  160,286  161,663 
Short term borrowings  1,539,341  1,626,304 

 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change 
in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.
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 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

 If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for the 
year would have been Rupees 21.77 million (2022: Rupees 1.721 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest 
income / expense on floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and liabilities 
outstanding at reporting the dates were outstanding for the whole year.

(b) Credit risk

 Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

Security deposits  14,357  16,099 
Trade debts  1,710,366  1,839,720 
Loans and advances  1,272,813  2,281,626 
Accrued mark-up  5,357  -   
Other receivables  20,206  83,999 
Bank balances  2,901,024  160,513 

 5,924,123  4,381,957 

 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (If 
available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating 2023 2022
Short term Long term Agency Amount Amount

Banks (Rupees in thousand)
 

Meezan Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  2,142  10,975 
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  92  72 
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  21,856  4,430 
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  17,083  1,228 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1 A PACRA  3,309  21,659 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA  17,824  362 
Askari Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA  21,770  12,440 
Soneri Bank Limited A1+ AA- PACRA  2,592,081  81,594 
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA  3,097  316 
Bank AL Habib Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  21,527  562 
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  713  157 
Samba Bank Limited A1 AA VIS  -    22 
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited A1+ AA VIS  73,247  19 
BankIslami Pakistan Limited AA- A1 PACRA  91,555  26,591 
The Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ PACRA  34,728  86 

 2,901,024  160,513 
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 The Company's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note 20.

 Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their 
strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the 
Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

 Trade debts

 The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance 
for all trade debts.

 To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days 
past due. These trade receivables are netted off with the collateral obtained, if any, from these customers to calculate the net exposure 
towards these customers. The Company has concluded that the expected loss rates for trade debts against local sales are different from 
the expected loss rates for trade debts against export sales.

 The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 December 2023 and the 
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and 
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Company 
has identified the Gross Domestic Product, Unemployment, Interest and the inflation Index to be the most relevant factors, and 
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

 On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 was determined as follows:

At 31 December 2023

Local sales Export sales

Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

% (Rupees in thousand) % (Rupees in thousand)
Not past due 0%  36,435  - 0%  712,636  - 

Up to 30 days 9.88%  -  - 1.66%  34,487  574 

31 to 60 days 22.75%  1  - 6.53%  11,360  742 

61 to 90 days 29.21%  -  - 10.90%  -  - 

91 to 180 days 43.43%  4  1 22.13%  -  - 

181 to 360 days 50.57%  -  - 32.58%  675  220 

Above 360 days 100.00%  4,763  4,763 100.00%  -  - 

 41,203  4,764  759,158  1,536 

Trade debts which are not 
subject to risk of default  -  -  916,305  - 

Gross Trade debts  41,203  4,764  1,675,463  1,536 
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At 31 December 2022

Local sales Export sales
Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

Expected loss 
rate

Trade debts Loss allowance

% (Rupees in thousand) % (Rupees in thousand)

Not past due 0%  76,186  - 0.00%  449,292  - 
Up to 30 days 14.35%  2,357  339 2.25%  32,391  729 
31 to 60 days 34.52%  7,451  2,572 10.27%  19,121  1,964 
61 to 90 days 40.74%  24  10 15.65%  -  - 
91 to 180 days 53.47%  40  21 27.51%  7,285  2,004 
181 to 360 days 56.54%  99  56 36.43%  -  - 
Above 360 days 100.00%  915  915 100.00%  -  - 

 87,072  3,913  508,089  4,697 
Trade debts which are not 
subject to risk of default  4,641  -  1,248,528  - 
Gross Trade debts  91,713  3,913  1,756,617  4,697 

(c) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

 The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities. At 31 December 2023, the Company had Rupees 2,604.268 million (2022: Rupees 3,761.686 million) 
available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 2,903.050 million (2022: Rupees 161.620 million) cash and 
bank balances. The management believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, 
including interest payments. The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:

 Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2023:

Carrying
Amount

Contractual
cash flows

6 months
or less

6-12 
months

1-2
Years

More than
2 Years

--------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) --------------------------------------------------------
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing  362,364  505,719  25,644  40,356  94,749  344,971 

Trade and other payables  2,466,634  2,466,634  2,466,634  -  -    -   

Accrued mark-up  169,111  169,111  169,111  -  -    -   

Short term borrowings  8,282,347  8,428,134  8,428,134  -  -    -   

Dividend payable  617,753  617,753  617,753 

Unclaimed dividend  4,944  4,944  4,944  -  -    -   

Derivative financial liabilities  443  443  443  -  -    -   

 11,903,596  12,192,738  11,712,663  40,356  94,749  344,971 
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022:

Carrying
Amount

Contractual
cash flows

6 months
or less

6-12 
months

1-2
Years

More than
2 Years

--------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) --------------------------------------------------------
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing  401,814  518,224  31,015  31,478  80,939  374,792 
Trade and other payables  1,800,452  1,800,452  1,800,452  -  -  - 
Accrued mark-up  176,187  176,187  176,187  -  -  - 
Short term borrowings  5,488,314  5,639,405  5,056,264  583,141  -  - 
Unclaimed dividend  4,850  4,850  4,850  -  -  - 
Derivative financial liabilities  9,425  9,425  9,425  -  -  - 

 7,881,042  8,148,543  7,078,193  614,619  80,939  374,792 

 The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark up 
rates effective as at reporting date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in note 5 and note 10 to these financial 
statements.   
 

2023 2022
At amortized cost

(Rupees in thousand)
40.2 Financial instruments by categories

Assets as per statement of financial position

Security deposits  14,357  16,099 
Trade debts  1,710,366  1,839,720 
Loans and advances  1,272,813  2,281,626 
Accrued mark-up  5,357  - 
Other receivables  20,206  83,999 
Cash and bank balances  2,903,050  161,620 

 5,926,149  4,383,064 
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2023 2022
At amortized

cost
FVTPL

At amortized
cost

FVTPL

(Rupees in thousand)
Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term financing  362,364  -    401,814  - 
Trade and other payables  2,466,634  443  1,800,452  9,425 
Accrued mark-up  169,111  -    176,187  - 
Short term borrowings  8,282,347  -    5,488,314  - 
Dividend payable  617,753  -    -    -   
Unclaimed dividend  4,944  -    4,850  - 

 11,903,153  443  7,871,617  9,425 

40.2.1  Reconciliation of financial assets and financial liabilities to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

2023

 Financial 

assets 

 Non-financial 

assets 

 Assets as per 

statement 

of financial 

position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------
Assets

Long term security deposits  11,057  -  11,057 

Trade debts  1,710,366  -  1,710,366 

Loans and advances  1,272,813  942,759  2,215,572 

Accured markup  5,357  -  5,357 

Short term deposits and prepayments  3,300  5,016  8,316 

Other receivables  20,206  1,421,305  1,441,511 

Cash and bank balances  2,903,050  -  2,903,050 

 5,926,149  2,369,080  8,295,229 
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2023

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Non-financial 

liabilities 

 Liabilities as 

per statement 

of financial 

position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Liabilities

Long term financing  362,364  -  362,364 

Accrued mark-up  169,111  -  169,111 

Short term borrowings  8,282,347  -  8,282,347 

Trade and other payables  2,467,077  267,625  2,734,702 

Dividend payable  617,753  -  617,753 

Unclaimed dividend  4,944  -  4,944 

 11,903,596  267,625  12,171,221 

2022

 Financial assets 
 Non-financial 

assets 

 Assets as per 
statement 
of financial 

position 
-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Assets

Long term security deposits  11,449  -  11,449 
Trade debts  1,839,720  -  1,839,720 
Loans and advances  2,281,626  712,362  2,993,988 
Short term deposits and prepayments  4,650  7,461  12,111 
Other receivables  83,999  787,506  871,505 
Cash and bank balances  161,620  -  161,620 

 4,383,064  1,507,329  5,890,393 
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2022

 Financial 
liabilities 

 Non-financial 
liabilities 

 Liabilities as 
per statement 

of financial 
position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Liabilities

Long term financing  401,814  -  401,814 
Accrued mark-up  176,187  -  176,187 
Short term borrowings  5,488,314  -  5,488,314 
Trade and other payables  1,809,877  162,329  1,972,206 
Unclaimed dividend  4,850  -  - 

 7,881,042  162,329  8,038,521 

40.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

 As on the reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to off setting as there are no enforceable master netting 
arrangements and similar agreements.

40.4 Capital risk management

 The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company 
monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. 
Borrowings represent long term financing and short term borrowings obtained by the Company as referred to in note 5 and note 10 
respectively. Total capital employed includes 'total equity' as shown in the statement of financial position plus 'borrowings'.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Borrowings  8,644,711  5,890,128 
Total equity  6,500,843  6,164,524 
Total capital employed  15,145,554  12,054,652 
Gearing ratio 57.08% 48.86%

Increase in gearing is due to increase in short term borrowings of the Company.

41. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Fair value hierarchy 

 Judgements and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and measured at 
fair value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the 
Company has classified its financial instruments into the following three levels. An explanation of each level follows underneath the 
table.
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Recurring fair value measurements
Level 1  Level 2      Level 3 Total

At 31 December 2023
-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

 
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities  -    443  -    443 

Recurring fair value measurements
Level 1  Level 2      Level 3 Total

At 31 December 2022
-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

 
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities  -    9,425  -    9,425 

 The above table does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the 
carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets 
and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values 
are also not significantly different to their carrying amounts. 

 There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. Further there was no transfer 
out of level 3 measurements.

 The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
 
 Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) 

is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the 
Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is 
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is 
the case for unlisted equity securities.

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar 
instruments.

.    
42. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

 Employees provident fund of Service Industries Limited - Holding Company namely Service Provident Fund Trust is also managing 
provident fund benefits of the employees of the Company.

 As at the reporting date, the Service Provident Fund Trust is in the process of regularizing its investments in accordance with section 
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the regulations formulated for this purpose by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan.
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43. OPERATING SEGMENTS             
  These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. 
 
 1.87% (2022: 2.19%) of the sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan. Of the remaining sales of the Company relating to 

customers outside Pakistan, 40.39% (2022: 46.19%) of those sales are made to customers in Germany.

   All non-current assets of the Company as at 31 December 2023 were located in Pakistan. 

 13.32% (2022: 17.87%) of the local sales of the Company are made to a single customer in Pakistan.

44. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2023 2022

Number of employees  5,679  5,886 

Average number of employees during the year   5,714  5,522 

45. UNUTILIZED CREDIT FACILITIES

Non- funded Funded

2023 2022 2023 2022
(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

Total facilities  8,483,000  2,635,000  10,886,615  9,250,000 
Utilized at the end of the year  (912,030)  (228,352)  (8,282,347)  (5,488,314)

Unutilized at the end of the year  7,570,970  2,406,648  2,604,268  3,761,686 

46. DISCLOSURES BY COMPANY LISTED ON ISLAMIC INDEX

2023 2022
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)
Description 
Loan / advances obtained as per Islamic mode:
Loans  3,654,133  2,502,778 
Advances from customers  142,885  88,014 
Shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances
Bank balances  173,350  59,560 
Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances
Profit on deposits with banks  -    133 
Revenue earned from shariah compliant business  15,061,817  11,753,088 
Gain / (loss) or dividend earned from shariah compliant investments  -  - 
Exchange gain earned  182,352  88,284 
Mark-up paid on Islamic mode of financing  433,023  120,089 
Profits earned or interest paid on any conventional loan
Profits earned  16,398  25,249 
Interest paid on loans  504,449  154,646 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Relationship with shariah compliant banks

Name Relationship 

MCB Islamic Bank Limited Bank balance and short term borrowings
Meezan Bank Limited Bank balance and short term borrowings
Faysal Bank Limited (Barkat Islami) Bank balance and short term borrowings
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited Bank balance and short term borrowings
The Bank of Punjab (Taqwa Islamic banking) Short term borrowings
BankIslami Pakistan Limited Bank balance and short term borrowings
Bank AL Habib Limited Ijarah

47.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

 The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 of Rupees 2 per share 
(i.e 20%) at their meeting held on 21 February 2024. However, this event has been considered as non-adjusting event under IAS 10 
'Events after the Reporting Period' and has not been recognized in these financial statements.

48. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

 These financial statements were authorized for issue on 21 February 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

49. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, no significant 
rearrangements have been made.

50. General

 Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of rupees, except stated otherwise.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
On Consolidated Financial Statements
To the members of Service Global Footwear Limited

Qualified Opinion   
We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Service Global Footwear Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other 
explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and its consolidated financial 
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan.

Basis for Qualified Opinion  
The financial statements of Dongguan Service Global Limited – Subsidiary Company for the period from 03 April 2023 to 31 December 
2023 are un-audited and have been prepared by the management in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards for Small Business 
Enterprises. Hence, total assets of Rupees 283.666 million as at 31 December 2023 and total turnover and net loss of Rupees 432.032 million 
and Rupees 10.275 million respectively for the period from 03 April 2023 to 31 December 2023 pertaining to the aforesaid Subsidiary 
Company have been consolidated without incorporating adjustments necessary to give effect to uniform accounting policies adopted by the 
Group and disclosures required under the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.  

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the 
Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.  

Annual Report 2023 123



Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

1 Revenue recognition

The Group recognized net revenue of Rupees 15,071.163 
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit matter 
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of 
the Group and gives rise to an inherent risk that revenue could 
be subject to misstatement to meet expectations or targets.

For further information on revenue, refer to the following:

• Material accounting policy information, 
Revenue recognition note 2.24 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 

• Revenue – net note 27 to the consolidated 
financial statements.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue, 
amongst others, included the following:

• Obtaining an understanding of the process relating 
to recognition of revenue and testing the design, 
implementation and operating effectiveness of key 
internal controls over recording of revenue;

• Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded 
during the year with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery 
documents and other relevant underlying documents;

• Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded 
around the year end with the sales orders, sales invoices, 
delivery documents and other relevant underlying 
documentation to assess if the related revenue was 
recorded in the appropriate accounting year;

• Assessing whether the accounting policies for revenue 
recognition complies with the requirements of IFRS 15 
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’;

• We also considered the appropriateness of disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements.

2 Stock-in-trade 

As at 31 December 2023, stock-in-trade amounted to Rupees 
4,554.136 million. 

Stock-in-trade is measured at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value.

We identified existence and valuation of stock-in-trade as 
a key audit matter due to its size, representing 23.99% of 
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and the 
judgment involved in valuation.

For further information on stock-in-trade, refer to the following:

• Material accounting policy information, 
Stock-in-trade note 2.21 to the consolidated 
financial statements.

 
• Stock-in-trade note 19 to the consolidated 

financial statements.

Our audit procedures to assess the existence and valuation of 
stock-in-trade, amongst others, included the following:

• Assessing the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of key internal controls over valuation of 
stock-in-trade including determination of net realizable 
values;

• Attending inventory counts and reconciling the count 
results to the inventory listings to test the completeness 
of data;

• Assessing the net realizable value of stock-in-trade by 
comparing, on a sample basis, management’s estimation 
of future selling prices for the products with selling prices 
achieved subsequent to the end of the reporting year;

• Comparing the net realizable value to the cost of a 
sample of stock-in-trade and comparison to the associated 
provision to assess whether stock-in-trade provisions are 
complete;
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, the Group should have consolidated Dongguan Service Global 

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

• Assessing accuracy of inventory ageing reports and 
adequacy of provisions;

• In the context of our testing of the calculation, we analysed 
individual cost components and traced them back to the 
corresponding underlying documents. We furthermore 
challenged changes in unit costs;

• We also made enquires of management, including those 
outside of the finance function, and considered the results 
of our testing above to determine whether any specific 
write downs were required.

3 Capital expenditures 

The Group is investing significant amounts in its operations and 
there are a number of areas where management judgement 
impacts the carrying value of property, plant and equipment 
and its respective depreciation profile. These include among 
other the decision to capitalize or expense costs; and review 
of useful life of the assets including the impact of changes in 
the Group’s strategy.

We focused on this area since the amounts have a significant 
impact on the financial position of the Group and there 
is significant management judgment required that has 
significant impact on the reporting of the financial position 
for the Group. Therefore, considered as one of the key audit 
matters. 

For further information, refer to the following:

• Material accounting policy information, 
Fixed assets note 2.9 to the consolidated 
financial statements.

 
• Fixed assets note 13 to the consolidated 

financial statements.

Our procedures included, but were not limited to:

• We tested operating effectiveness of controls in place over 
the property, plant and equipment cycle including the 
controls over whether costs incurred on activities is capital 
or operating in nature;

• We evaluated the appropriateness of capitalization 
policies and depreciation rates;

• We performed tests of details on costs capitalized;

• We verified the accuracy of management’s calculation 
used for the impairment testing.
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Limited (Subsidiary Company) based on audited financial statements prepared on the basis of uniform accounting policies adopted by the 
Group and disclosures required under the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is materially misstated with 
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements   
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.
 
From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Syed Mustafa Al.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants 

Lahore.
Date: 21 February 2024

UDIN : AR202310168QWH8kyAp2
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2023

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital
250,000,000 (2022: 250,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each  2,500,000  2,500,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 3  2,059,175  2,050,875 
Reserves 4  4,426,786  4,113,649 
Total equity  6,485,961  6,164,524 

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 5  310,565  360,852 
Employees' retirement benefit 6  216,104  157,391 
Deferred liabilities 7  67,093  -   

 593,762  518,243 
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 8  2,774,376  1,972,206 
Accrued mark-up 9  169,111  176,187 
Short term borrowings 10  8,282,347  5,488,314 
Current portion of long term financing 5  51,799  40,962 
Dividend payable 11  617,753  -   
Unclaimed dividend  4,944  4,850 

 11,900,330  7,682,519 
Total liabilities  12,494,092  8,200,762 
Contingencies and commitments 12
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  18,980,053  14,365,286 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets 13  3,082,262  2,594,578 
Long term security deposits 14  11,057  10,572 
Long term loans to employees 15  8,367  13,634 
Long term investment 16  2,691,689  2,217,650 
Long term loan to Ultimate Holding Company 17  750,000  1,750,000 

 6,543,375  6,586,434 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 18  123,733  81,956 
Stock-in-trade 19  4,554,136  3,360,359 
Trade debts 20  1,710,366  1,839,720 
Loans and advances 21  1,479,789  1,230,354 
Accrued mark-up 22  5,357  -   
Short term deposits and prepayments 23  9,011  12,988 
Other receivables 24  1,469,492  871,505 
Advance income tax - net 25  133,565  220,350 
Cash and bank balances 26  2,951,229  161,620 

 12,436,678  7,778,852 

TOTAL ASSETS  18,980,053  14,365,286 

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
Revenue - net 27  15,071,163  11,753,088 
Cost of sales 28  (11,724,689)  (9,567,437)
Gross profit  3,346,474  2,185,651 

 

Distribution cost 29  (1,230,663)  (920,784)
Administrative expenses 30  (681,460)  (523,342)
Other expenses 31  (87,787)  (46,125)

 (1,999,910)  (1,490,251)
 1,346,564  695,400 

Other income 32  772,129  683,804 
Profit from operations  2,118,693  1,379,204 
Finance cost 33  (1,009,198)  (467,180)

 1,109,495  912,024 

Share of profit / (loss) from equity accounted investee - net of taxation 16.1  474,039  (224,074)
Profit before taxation  1,583,534  687,950 
Taxation 34  (412,200)  (345,891)
Profit after taxation  1,171,334  342,059 

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC (RUPEES) 35  5.70  1.67 

EARNINGS PER SHARE - DILUTED (RUPEES) 35  5.70  1.67 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand
Profit after taxation  1,171,334  342,059 
Other comprehensive loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of employees' retirement benefit obligation - net of tax  (31,642)  (16,860)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  -    -   
Exchange difference on translation of foreign subsidiary  (4,609)  -   
Other comprehensive loss for the year - net of tax  (36,251)  (16,860)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  1,135,083  325,199 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Note Rupees in thousand
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS 36  708,796  (1,929,900)

Finance cost paid  (1,015,004)  (317,080)
Income tax paid  (258,322)  (221,661)
Workers' profit participation fund paid 8.3  (18,883)  (18,300)
Workers' welfare fund paid 8.4  (13,759)  (11,455)
Employees' retirement benefit paid - net  (5,848)  (2,978)
Net decrease / (increase) in long term loans to employees  5,477  (6,579)
Net decrease in security deposits  1,210  796 
Insurance claim received against loss of assets due to fire and business interruption loss  13,963  477,492 
NET CASH USED IN OPERATIONS  (582,370)  (2,029,665)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on fixed assets  (738,759)  (684,225)
Interest on term deposit receipts and saving accounts received  11,041  28,115 
Loans given to Ultimate Holding Company  (11,589,162)  (9,886,995)
Loans repaid by Ultimate Holding Company  12,596,780  11,156,097 
Interest on loans to Ultimate Holding Company received  532,170  599,986 
Investment made  -  (636,322)
Insurance claim received against loss on operating fixed assets andcapital work-in-progress due to fire  -  18,101 
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets  6,550  6,270 
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  818,620  601,027 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options  8,300  6,500 
Proceeds from long term financing  -  149,306 
Repayment of long term financing  (39,450)  (148,460)
Short term borrowings - net  2,794,033  1,564,239 
Dividends paid  (204,994)  (916,744)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  2,557,889  654,841 
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (4,530)  - 
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  2,789,609  (773,797)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 26  161,620  935,417 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 26  2,951,229  161,620 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)
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1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

a) The Group consists of:

  Holding Company

- Service Global Footwear Limited

  Subsidiary Company

- Dongguan Service Global Limited

 Service Global Footwear Limited

 Service Global Footwear Limited was incorporated as a public limited company on 19 July 2019 in Pakistan under the Companies 
Act, 2017 and got listed on 28 April 2021. The shares of the Holding Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal 
activities of the Holding Company are manufacturing, sale, marketing, import and export of footwear, leather and allied products. The 
Holding Company is a subsidiary of Service Industries Limited (Ultimate Holding Company). Geographical location and addresses of 
all business units are as follows:

Offices, Manufacturing units, Factory outlet Addresses

Registered Office and Head Office Servis House, 2 – Main Gulberg, Lahore
Factory site 10 - KM, Muridke – Sheikhupura Road, Lahore
Freehold land Hadbast Manga Otar, Raiwind, Lahore
Factory outlet 10 - KM, Muridke – Sheikhupura Road, Lahore

 Dongguan Service Global Limited

 Dongguan Service Global Limited is a limited liability company (wholly owned by foreign legal person) registered with Dongguan 
Administration of Market Regulations, China. Date of incorporation of Dongguan Service Global Limited is 18 December 2022. 
Business scope of Dongguan Service Global Limited is wholesale of shoes and hats, sales of leather products, sales of needle textiles 
and raw materials, wholesale of hardware products, sales of bags, sales of daily necessities, inspection of clothing and apparel, 
finishing services, technical services, technology development, technical consultation, technology exchange, technology transfer, 
technology promotion, import and export of goods, technology import and export (except for projects subject to approval according 
to law, independently carry out business activities according to law with a business license). Commercial address of Dongguan Service 
Global Limited  is Room 302, No. 18, Houjie Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, China. The registered capital of Dongguan 
Service Global Limited is USD 1,250,000 which is being subscribed by the Holding Company. The Holding Company wholly owns 
Dongguan Service Global Limited.

b) Significant restrictions

 Cash and bank balances held in foreign country are subject to local exchange control regulations. These regulations provide for 
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal dividends. The carrying amount of these assets included 
within the consolidated financial statements to which these restrictions apply is Rupees 48.180 million (2022: Rupees Nil).

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

 The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. 
Further, accounting policies related to material class of accounts does not necessarily means it is material. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified 
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
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 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued 
under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b) Accounting convention

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the 
respective accounting policies.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use 
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the 
Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's consolidated financial statements or where judgments were exercised in 
application of accounting policies are as follows:

i) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

 Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis 
of the management of the Group. Further, the Group reviews the value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. 
Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of operating fixed assets, with a 
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

ii) Inventories

 Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of similar 
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each reporting date on 
inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an allowance is recorded against the 
inventory balances for any such declines. 

 
iii) Income tax

 In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Group, the management takes into account the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

iv) Allowance for expected credit losses

 The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifetime 
expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate 
for each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

v) Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

 When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Group is 
considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains 
control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

vi) Provisions

 As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations, 
technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed 
at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized 
provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognized as part of 
cost of an asset. 
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vii) Contingencies

 The Group reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Group. Based on the judgment and the advice of 
the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual outcome of these 
litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the consolidated statement of 
financial position date.

viii) Impairment of investment in equity method accounted for associated company

 In making an estimate of recoverable amount of the Group's investment in equity method accounted for associated company, 
the management considers future cash flows.

ix) Employees’ retirement benefit

 The actuarial valuation of employees' retirement benefit requires the use of certain assumptions related to future periods, 
including increase in future salary, expected returns on plan assets and the discount rate used to discount future cash flows to 
present values.

d) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and are relevant to the Group

 Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on 
or after 01 January 2023:

• Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current;
• Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IFRS Practice Statement 2 ‘Making Materiality Judgement’ - 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies;
• Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’ - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction;
• Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ - Change in definition of Accounting 

Estimate;
• Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes' - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules.

 The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior 
period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

e) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to the Group

 There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023 
but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements and are 
therefore not detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

f) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the Group

 Following amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning 
on or after 01 January 2024 or later periods: 

 On 31 October 2022, the IASB issued 'Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)' to clarify how conditions with 
which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the classification of a liability. The amendments are 
effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

 On 22 September 2022, the IASB issued 'Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)' with amendments that 
clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be 
accounted for as a sale. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

 Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ (deferred 
indefinitely) to clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associates or joint venture, as follows: 
require full recognition in the investor’s financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or contribution of assets that 
constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’); require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets 
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do not constitute a business, i.e. a gain or loss is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or 
joint venture. These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or contribution of assets 
occur by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of control of the subsidiary), or by the 
direct sale of the assets themselves.

 Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’). 
The amendments add disclosure requirements, and ‘signposts’ within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities to provide 
qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangements. The amendments are effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

 Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’). The amendments contain 
guidance to specify when a currency is exchangeable and how to determine the exchange rate when it is not. The amendments are 
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2025.

 The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

g) Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and not considered relevant to the 
Group

 There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 
01 January 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements and are therefore not detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation

a) Subsidiary

 Subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities 
of the entity. Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from 
the date that control ceases.

 The assets and liabilities of Subsidiary Company has been consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value of investments held 
by the Holding Company is eliminated against Holding Company's share in paid up capital of the Subsidiary Company.

 Intragroup balances and transactions have been eliminated.

 Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of the operations and of net assets of Subsidiary Company attributable to interest 
which is not owned by the Holding Company. Non-controlling interest is presented as separate item in the consolidated financial 
statements.

b) Associate

 Associate is entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. Investment in associate is accounted 
for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

 Under the equity method of accounting, the investment is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the 
Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investees in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other 
comprehensive income of the investees in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associate is recognised 
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

 When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other 
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments 
on behalf of the other entity.
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 Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these 
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 
Accounting policies of equity accounted investee have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Group.

 Investment in equity method accounted for associate is tested for impairment in accordance with the provision of IAS 36 `Impairment 
of Assets`

c) Translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiary

 The financial statements of foreign subsidiary of which the functional currency is different from that used in preparing the Group’s 
financial statements are translated in functional currency of the Group. Statement of financial position items are translated at the 
exchange rate at the reporting date and statement of profit or loss items are converted at the average rate for the period. Any resulting 
translation differences are recognized under exchange translation reserve in consolidated reserves.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Group operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak 
Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. Figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Pak Rupees.

2.4 Foreign currency transactions and translation

 All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting 
date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange 
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are charged or credited to consolidated statement of profit 
or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Pak 
Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency 
that are stated at fair value are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.

2.5 Employees’ retirement benefits

i) Contributory provident fund

 There is an approved contributory provident fund for employees of the Holding Company. Equal monthly contributions are made both 
by the employees and the Holding Company to the fund in accordance with the fund rules. The Holding Company’s contributions to 
the fund are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

ii) Defined benefit plan

 The Holding Company operates a funded gratuity scheme as a defined benefit plan for its permanent employees other than those who 
participate in the provident fund scheme. The managerial staff is entitled to participate in both the provident fund trust and gratuity 
fund scheme.

 The Holding Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The 
calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When 
the calculation results in a potential asset for the Holding Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic 
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the 
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding 
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. 
The Holding Company determines the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the period by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net 
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defined benefit liability / (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability / (asset) during the period as a 
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognized 
in profit or loss.

 When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or 
the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Holding Company recognizes gains and losses on the 
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

iii) Compensated absences

 The Holding Company provides for liability in respect of employees' compensated absences in the period in which these are earned.

2.6 Taxation

 Current

a) Holding Company

 Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for 
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit 
for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax 
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

b) Subsidiary  Company

 Provision for current tax is computed in accordance with the tax legislation inforce in the country where the income is taxable.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred 
tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. 

 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax 
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.7 Borrowings

 Financing and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between 
the proceeds and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings 
using the effective interest method.

2.8 Borrowing costs

 Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective qualifying 
assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are recognized in 
consolidated statement of profit or loss

2.9 Fixed assets

 Fixed assets except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses (if any). Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction 
period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition. Freehold land and capital 
work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any). All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred 
during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to operating fixed assets 
as and when these are available for use.
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 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are 
incurred.

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on operating fixed assets except for leasehold improvements is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss 
applying the reducing balance method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates given in note 13.1. Depreciation on leasehold improvements is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss 
applying the straight line method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives or 
the shorter lease term at the rates given in note 13.1. Depreciations on additions is charged from the month in which the assets are 
available for use up to the month prior to disposal. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each 
financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

 De-recognition

 An item of operating fixed assets is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year 
the asset is de-recognized.

2.10 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognized at cost, which comprise purchase price, 
non-refundable purchase taxes and other directly attributable expenditures relating to their implementation and customization. After 
initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets 
are amortized from the month, when these assets are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of the 
intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group. The useful 
life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

2.11 Right-of-use assets

 A right-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss (if any). Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as 
applicable, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct 
costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and 
removing the underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

 Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of 
the asset, whichever is shorter. Where the Group expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the 
depreciation is charged over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement 
of lease liabilities.

 The Group has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with terms of 12 
months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

2.12 Lease liabilities

 A lease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognized at the present value of the 
lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives 
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, 
exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination 
penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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 Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re-measured if there 
is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease 
term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the 
corresponding right-of use asset, or to consolidated statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully 
written down.

2.13 Employees’ share option scheme

 The Holding Company operates an equity settled share based Employees Stock Option Scheme. The compensation committee of the 
Board of Directors of the Holding Company evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees and approves the grant of 
options. These options vest with employees over a specific period subject to fulfillment of certain conditions. Upon vesting, employees 
are eligible to apply and secure allotment of Holding Company’s shares at a price determined on the date of grant of options.

 At the grant date of share options to the employees, the Holding Company initially recognizes employee compensation expense with 
corresponding credit to equity as employee share options reserve at the fair value of option at the grant date. The fair value of option 
determined at the grant date is recognized as an employee compensation expense on a straight line basis over the vesting period. Fair 
value of options is arrived at using Black Scholes pricing model.

 When share options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and 
share premium.

2.14 Ijarah contracts

 Under the Ijarah contracts the Group obtains usufruct of an asset for an agreed period for an agreed consideration. The Group accounts 
for its Ijarah contracts in accordance with the requirements of IFAS 2 ‘Ijarah’. Accordingly, the Group as a Mustaj’ir (lessee) in the Ijarah 
contract recognises the Ujrah (lease) payments as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over 
the Ijarah term.

2.15 Investments and other financial assets

a) Classification

 The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
- those to be measured at amortized cost

 The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For 
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for 
the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only 
when its business model for managing those assets changes.

b) Measurement

 At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

 Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely 
payment of principal and interest
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 Debt instruments

 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow 
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

 Amortized cost

 Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income 
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss 
and presented in other income / (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are 
presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

 
 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash 
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are 
taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment 
losses), interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income / (other expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other 
income / (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss.

 
 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument 
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other income / (other 
expenses) in the period in which it arises.   

 
 Equity instruments

 The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments quoted in an active market, the fair 
value corresponds to a market price (level 1). For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value is 
determined using valuation techniques including reference to recent arm’s length market transactions or transactions involving 
financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible 
extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3).   

 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment 
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value.   

 Fair value through profit or loss

 Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other income / (other 
expenses) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.

 Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive 
payments is established.

2.16 Financial liabilities - classification and measurement

 Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified 
as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at 
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fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses 
are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in profit or loss.

2.17 Impairment of financial assets

 The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on: 

-  Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
-  Debt investments measured at FVTOCI; and
-  Contract assets.

 The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month 
ECLs:

- Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 

financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date 
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating 
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This 
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit 
assessment and including forward-looking information.

 The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a reasonable 
period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date 
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating 
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

 The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on 
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset 
has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable 
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and 
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.

 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

 The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial 
asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-
off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written 
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's 
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

 At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt securities at FVTOCI are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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 Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

2.18 De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

a) Financial assets

 The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and 
does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or retained 
by the Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities

 The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its consolidated statement of financial position 
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.19 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements when 
there is a legal enforceable right to set off and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

2.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

 Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject 
to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each consolidated statement of financial position date or whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for 
which assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to 
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of 
the impairment at each reporting date. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if impairment losses had 
not been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.21 Inventories

 Inventories, except for stock-in-transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as 
follows:

 Stores, spares and loose tools

 Usable stores, spares and loose tools are valued principally at cost using first-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula, while items considered 
obsolete are carried at nil value Items-in-transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

 Stock-in-trade

 Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

 (i) For raw materials: First-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula
 (ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Direct material, labor and appropriate manufacturing overheads
 (iii) Finished goods purchased for resale: Moving average  
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 Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stocks are valued at net 
realizable value.

 Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.

2.22 Trade and other payables

 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.23 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less 
any allowance for expected credit losses.

 Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses

2.24 Revenue recognition

 (a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is 
generally at the time of delivery.

 (b) Interest

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset.

 (c) Dividend

Dividend on equity investments is recognized when right to receive the dividend is established.

2.25 Contract assets

 Contract assets arise when the Group performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the customer 
pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.  

2.26 Customer acquisition costs

 Customer acquisition costs are capitalised as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer and are 
expected to be recovered. Customer acquisition costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

 Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained or which are not otherwise 
recoverable from a customer are expensed as incurred to profit or loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract where the contract 
term is less than one year is immediately expensed to profit or loss.

2.27 Customer fulfilment costs

 Customer fulfilment costs are capitalised as an asset when all the following are met: (i) the costs relate directly to the contract or 
specifically identifiable proposed contract; (ii) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used to satisfy future 
performance obligations; and (iii) the costs are expected to be recovered. Customer fulfilment costs are amortised on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the contract.

2.28 Right of return assets

 Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who may 
exercise their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was previously 
carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment.

Annual Report 2023 145



2.29 Contract liabilities

 Contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods to a customer for which the Group has received consideration from 
the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment 
is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs its performance obligations under the contract.

2.30 Refund liabilities

 Refund liabilities are recognised where the Group receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some, or all, of that 
consideration to the customer. A refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received or receivable for which the Group 
does not expect to be entitled and is updated at the end of each reporting period for changes in circumstances. Historical data is used 
across product lines to estimate such returns at the time of sale based on an expected value methodology.

2.31 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term highly 
liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
values.

2.32 Provisions 

 Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of obligation.

2.33 Earnings per share - basic and diluted

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for ordinary shares of the Holding Company. Basic EPS is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares of Holding Company outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Holding Company 
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares of the Holding Company.

2.34 Contingent assets

 Contingent assets are disclosed when the Group has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. 
Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes certain.

2.35 Contingent liabilities

 Contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. In 
the event that the outflow of resources associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can 
be reliably estimated, a provision is recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

2.36 Derivative financial instruments

 Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Any directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss as incurred. They are subsequently remeasured at fair value on regular basis and at each reporting date as a minimum, 
with all their gains and losses, realized and unrealized, recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.37 Share capital

 Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as 
a deduction, net of tax.
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2.38 Government grants

 Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
the Group will comply with all attached conditions. 

 Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the 
costs that they are intended to compensate. 

 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred 
income and are credited to profit or loss over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.39 Dividend and other appropriations
 Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which the 

dividends are declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

2.40 Goodwill
 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non controlling interests in the 

acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date 
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts 
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non 
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain. Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least 
annually.

3 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital

2023 2022 2023 2022
 (Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid-up in cash  54,437,500  54,437,500  544,375  544,375 
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued pursuant to the Scheme (Note 3.1.1)  150,000,000  150,000,000  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Ordinary share of Rupees 10 each issued under Employees Stock Option Scheme  1,480,000  1,480,000  14,800  6,500 

 205,917,500  205,087,500  2,059,175  2,050,875 

3.1 Movement during the year

2023 2022 2023 2022
 (Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

Balance at the beginning of the year  205,087,500  204,437,500  2,050,875  2,044,375
Issue of ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each under Employees Stock Option Scheme  830,000  650,000  8,300  6,500 
Balance at the end of the year  205,917,500  205,087,500  2,059,175  2,050,875 

3.1.1 As on 25 June 2020 (completion date for the purpose of the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction [the Scheme] 
under section 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies Act, 2017 between Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company and 
its members and Service Global Footwear Limited - Holding Company and its members), net assets including surplus on revaluation 
of land, building and plant and machinery of the Holding Company amounting to Rupees 2,890.684 million had been determined by 
Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
In return, the Holding Company issued share capital of Rupees 1,500 million (150,000,000 ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each) to 
Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company. Resultantly, capital reserve for issuance of bonus shares of Rupees 1,390.684 
million was recorded in the books of account of the Holding Company.
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3.2 163,550,000 (2022: 163,550,000) ordinary shares of the Holding Company are held by Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding 
Company.           

3.3 The share capital of the Holding Company consists only of fully paid ordinary shares with a nominal (par) value of Rupees 10 per share. 
All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital and represent one vote at shareholders’ meetings of 
the Holding Company.

         
2023 2022

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

4 RESERVES

Composition of reserves is as follows:

Capital reserves 

Exchange translation reserve [Note 2.2(c)]  (4,609)  -   
Reserve for issuance of bonus shares (Note 3.1.1)  1,390,684  1,390,684 
Share premium (Note 4.1)  1,713,028  1,687,997 
Share options reserve (Note 4.2)  895  25,031 

 3,099,998  3,103,712 
Revenue reserve

Un-appropriated profit  1,326,788  1,009,937 
 4,426,786  4,113,649 

4.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Holding Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017. 

4.2 Share options reserve

4.2.1 Description of scheme:

 Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2020 was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on 25 November 
2020 which comprises of an entitlement pool of 4.350 million shares. Under the scheme, share options of the Holding Company are 
granted to business head, vice president operations, vice president innovation and product strategy and employees of level MG 3 and 
above. The exercise period for options granted under the scheme is six months of the completion of respective vesting period. Initially, 
the Holding Company planned to grant 1,500,000, 712,500, 712,500, 712,500 and 712,500 share options in grant year 2020, 2021, 
2022, 2023 and 2024 respectively. However, according to the scheme, if in anyone year, the full number of options are not granted, 
then the un-granted options maybe carried forward to the subsequent years. During the year, compensation committee granted 
705,000 options having vesting period started from 01 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2026 with exercise price of Rupees 
30 per share. Remaining 2,147,000 options will be granted in subsequent years in accordance with scheme.  
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

4.2.2 Movement in employees' share options reserve:

Balance at the beginning of the year  25,031  18,723 
Add: Recognized during the year at the fair value  895  25,031 
Less: Transferred to share premium  (25,031)  (18,723)
Balance at the end of the year  895  25,031 

4.2.3 Movement in share options outstanding at end of the year is as follows:

 The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during 
the year:

2023 2022
Number of 

options
WAEP

(Rupees)
Number of 

options
WAEP

(Rupees)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  848,000  10  650,000  10 
Add: Options granted during the year  705,000  30  848,000  10 
Less: Options exercised during the year  (830,000)  10  (650,000)  10 
Less: Options lapsed during the year  (18,000)  10  -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  705,000  30  848,000  10 

Exercisable at the end of the year  176,250  30  848,000  10 

4.2.4 The weighted average share price at the date of the exercise of options exercised during the year was Rupees 34.95 (2022: Rupees 
38.96).

4.2.5 The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2023 is 1.5 years (2022: Nil). 
          

4.2.6 The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rupees 2.14 (2022: Rupees 29.51).

4.2.7 Exercise price for options outstanding at the end of the year is Rupees 30 (2022: Rupees 10).

4.2.8 Measurement of fair value 

 The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model. 

 The inputs used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of the equity-settled share-based payment plans were as follows:
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2023 2022
Fair value at grant date Rupees  1.41 to 2.92  29.5180 
Share price at grant date Rupees  33.00  47.00 
Exercise price Rupees  30.00  10.00 
Expected volatility % 31.77% 15.96%
Expected life Years 1 - 4  1 
Expected dividend % 27% 20%
Risk-free interest rate % 15.03% 10.75%

 
 The expected life of the share options is based on current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may 

occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is 
indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.     

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

5 LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured

Long term loans (Note 5.1)  362,364  401,814 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities  (51,799)  (40,962)

 310,565  360,852 
 

Notes to the Cosolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

150 Service Global Footwear Limited



5.
1 

Lo
ng

 te
rm

 lo
an

s

LE
ND

ER
20

23
20

22
RA

TE
 O

F 
M

AR
K-

UP
 

PE
R 

AN
NU

M
NU

M
BE

R 
OF

 IN
ST

AL
M

EN
TS

IN
TE

RE
ST

 
RE

PR
IC

IN
G

IN
TE

RE
ST

 
PA

YA
BL

E
SE

CU
RI

TY

----
----

----
-(R

up
ee

s i
n t

ho
us

an
d)

 ---
----

----
---

Se
rv

ice
 G

lo
ba

l F
oo

tw
ea

r L
im

ite
d 

- H
ol

di
ng

 C
om

pa
ny

Ha
bib

 Ba
nk

 Li
m

ite
d

 6
5,

58
7 

 80
,46

0 
SB

P r
ate

 fo
r L

TF
F +

 
0.5

0%
Th

ree
 h

un
dr

ed
 an

d 
eig

ht
 u

ne
qu

al 
ins

tal
m

en
ts 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

on
 2

2 
Ju

ne
 2

01
9 

an
d 

en
din

g 
on

 
08

 Au
gu

st 
20

28
. (N

ote
 5.

2)

-
Qu

art
erl

y
Fir

st 
joi

nt
 p

ari
 p

as
su

 h
yp

oth
e-

ca
tio

n 
ch

arg
e 

of 
Ru

pe
es

 7
88

 
m

illi
on

 on
 pl

an
t a

nd
 m

ac
hin

ery
 

of 
th

e 
Ho

ldi
ng

 C
om

pa
ny

 w
ith

 
25

% 
m

arg
in.

 1
49

,3
06

 
 14

9,3
06

 
6-m

on
th

s K
IB

OR
 +

 
0.5

0%
Th

irt
y t

hr
ee

 u
ne

qu
al 

ins
tal

m
en

ts 
co

m
m

en
cin

g 
on

 16
 Ap

ril
 20

24
 an

d e
nd

ing
 on

 16
 Ap

ril
 20

32
.

Se
m

i a
nn

ua
lly

Se
m

i a
nn

ua
lly

 2
14

,8
93

 
 22

9,7
66

 
Ha

bib
 Ba

nk
 Li

m
ite

d
 3

2,
19

3 
 40

,77
6 

SB
P r

ate
 fo

r L
TF

F +
 

0.5
0%

Th
irt

y 
nin

e 
eq

ua
l q

ua
rte

rly
 in

sta
lm

en
ts 

co
m

-
m

en
ce

d o
n 0

6 J
an

ua
ry 

20
18

 an
d e

nd
ing

 on
 06

 
Ju

ly 
20

27
.

-
Qu

art
erl

y

All
ied

 Ba
nk

 Li
m

ite
d

 3
8,

66
6 

 43
,83

4 
SB

P r
ate

 fo
r L

TF
F +

 
0.2

5%
Th

ree
 h

un
dr

ed
 a

nd
 th

irt
y-t

wo
 u

ne
qu

al 
ins

tal
-

m
en

ts 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
on

 2
3 

Ju
ly 

20
20

 an
d 

en
d-

ing
 on

 16
 Ju

ly 
20

31
.

-
Qu

art
erl

y
Fir

st 
joi

nt
 p

ari
 p

as
su

 h
yp

oth
e-

ca
tio

n 
ch

arg
e o

f R
up

ee
s 1

96
.5 

`of
 th

e 
Ho

ldi
ng

 C
om

pa
ny

 a
nd

 
ex

clu
siv

e 
ch

arg
e 

of 
Ru

pe
es

 
46

6.6
67

 m
illi

on
 o

n 
lan

d 
an

d 
bu

ild
ing

 o
f t

he
 H

old
ing

 C
om

-
pa

ny
 w

ith
 25

% 
m

arg
in.

 1
0,

98
0 

 12
,35

7 
3-m

on
th

s K
IB

OR
 +

 
0.2

5%
Qu

art
erl

y
Qu

art
erl

y
 4

9,
64

6 
 56

,19
1 

All
ied

 Ba
nk

 Li
m

ite
d 

(N
ote

 5.
2)

 6
5,

63
2 

 75
,08

1 
SB

P r
ate

 fo
r L

TF
F +

 
0.2

5%
On

e h
un

dr
ed

 an
d s

ev
en

ty-
nin

e u
ne

qu
al 

ins
tal

-
m

en
ts 

co
m

m
en

ce
d o

n 2
1 A

pr
il 2

02
1 a

nd
 en

d-
ing

 on
 29

 O
cto

be
r 2

03
0.

-
Qu

art
erl

y

 3
62

,3
64

 
 40

1,8
14

 

5.
2 

Re
pa

ym
en

t p
eri

od
 of

 th
es

e l
oa

ns
 in

clu
de

s d
efe

rm
en

t o
f r

ep
ay

m
en

t o
f p

rin
cip

al 
loa

n a
m

ou
nt

 by
 on

e y
ea

r in
 ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 St
ate

 Ba
nk

 of
 Pa

kis
tan

 BP
RD

 Ci
rcu

lar
 Le

tte
r N

o. 
13

 of
 

20
20

 da
ted

 26
 M

arc
h 2

02
0.

Annual Report 2023 151



2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

6 EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Service Global Footwear Limited - Holding Company (Note 6.1 and Note 6.2)  216,104  157,391 

6.1 Service Global Footwear Limited - Holding Company

 The latest actuarial valuation of the fund as at 31 December 2023 was carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Details of 
the fund as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

6.2 Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation  247,100  185,141 
Fair value of plan assets  (30,996)  (27,750)
Net defined benefit obligation  216,104  157,391 

6.3 Movement in net defined benefit obligation

Net liability at the beginning of the year  157,391  113,864 
Current service cost   10,665  8,823 
Net interest on defined benefit obligation  22,254  13,204 
Net remeasurements for the year  31,642  16,860 
Contributions made during the year  (7,824)  (2,978)
Liability transferred from the Ultimate Holding Company  1,976  7,618 
Net liability at the end of the year  216,104  157,391 

6.4 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  185,141  144,067 
Current service cost  10,665  8,823 
Interest cost  26,278  16,753 
Benefits paid during the year  (7,824)  (2,978)
Liability transferred from the Ultimate Holding Company  1,976  7,618 
Remeasurements on obligation:

Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions  14,761  680 
Experience adjustments  16,103  10,178 
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  247,100  185,141 

6.5 Movement in the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  27,750  30,203 
Contributions made during the year  7,824  2,978 
Interest income on plan assets  4,024  3,549 
Benefits paid during the year  (7,824)  (2,978)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  (778)  (6,002)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  30,996  27,750 
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6.5.1 Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust as a gratuity fund of the Ultimate Holding Company is also managing all 
the affairs relating to gratuity fund of the employees of the Holding Company. Hence, total plan assets of Service Industries Limited 
Employees Gratuity Fund Trust as shown below have been allocated by the actuary for actuarial valuation purposes of the Holding 
Company and Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company. 

     
2023 2022

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

Mutual funds  107,455  96,810 
Bank balances  1,660  880 
Total plan assets  109,115  97,690 
Allocated to the Holding Company  (30,996)  (27,750)
Allocated to Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company  (78,119)  (69,940)

 -    -   
 
6.6 Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Current service cost  10,665  8,823 
Interest cost  26,278  16,753 
Interest income on plan assets  (4,024)  (3,549)
Net expense charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss  32,919  22,027 

6.6.1 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (Note.28)  28,985  19,096 
Distribution cost (Note.29)  185  103 
Administrative expenses (Note.30)  3,749  2,828 

 32,919  22,027 

6.7 Remeasurements recognized in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income 

Experience adjustments  16,103  10,178 
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions  14,761  680 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  778  6,002 

 31,642  16,860 
 

6.8 Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate used for interest cost % per annum 14.50  11.75 
Discount rate used for year end obligation % per annum 15.50  14.50 
Expected rate of salary increase % per annum 15.50  13.50 
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6.9 Historical information

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Present value of defined benefit obligation  247,100  185,141  144,067  126,819  89,273 
Fair value of plan assets  (30,996)  (27,750)  (30,203)  (28,177)  (25,456)
Deficit  216,104  157,391  113,864  98,642  63,817 

Remeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation  30,864  10,858  586  2,354  (2,909)

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on plan assets  (778)  (6,002)  (906)  42  1,784 

6.9.1 Amounts for 2019  relates to period started from 01 July 2019 (date of demerger) and ended on 31 December 2019.
    
6.10 The expected charge to statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 31 December 2024 will be Rupees 46.713 million.

6.11 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption at the reporting date:
  

Defined benefit obligation

Changes in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

Bps Rupees in thousand

Discount rate  100  232,903  263,139 
Future salary increase  100  263,173  232,622 

 The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is 
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit 
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the 
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied. 

     
6.12 Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC 2001-2005 Ultimate mortality rates, set back one year.

6.13 The average duration of the benefit obligation is 6 years.
  
6.14 Expected maturity profile of undiscounted defined benefit obligation:     

    
Less than a year Between 1 - 2 years Between 3 - 5 years Between 6 - 10 years Over 10 years Total

--------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand ---------------------------------------------------------------

 33,781  8,081  171,288  165,568  2,099,325  2,478,043
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

7 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax  (Note 7.1)  67,093  -   
Deferred income - Government grant (Note 7.2)  -  -   

 67,093  -   

7.1 This represents deferred income tax liability on investment in associate (with significant influence). The gross movement in deferred 
income tax liability recognised in these consolidated financial statements during the year is opening balance of Rupees Nil, charged to 
consolidated statement of profit or loss of Rupees 67.093 million and closing balance of Rupees 67.093 million. Provision for deferred 
income tax on other temporary differences was not considered necessary as the Holding Company is chargeable to tax under section 
169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

7.2 Deferred income - Government grant

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    3,476 
Less: Amortized during the year  (Note 32)  -    (3,476)
Balance at the end of the year  -    -   

7.2.1 The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), through its Circular No. 06 of 2020 dated 10 April 2020 introduced a temporary refinance scheme 
for payment of wages and salaries to the workers and employees of business concerns (the Refinance Scheme). The refinance scheme 
was funded by SBP. Borrowers obtained loans from the banks and eased their cash flow constraints to avoid layoffs. One of the key 
feature of the refinance scheme was that borrowers could obtain loan at mark-up rates that are below normal lending rates. As per 
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance', the benefit 
of a Government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a Government Grant. The Holding Company obtained this loan. 
In accordance with IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' loan obtained under the refinance scheme was initially recognised at its fair value 
which is the present value of loan proceeds received, discounted using prevailing market rates of interest for a similar instrument. 
Hence, the benefit of the below-market rate of interest was measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan 
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. This benefit was accounted for and presented as deferred grant in 
accordance with IAS 20. The grant was amortised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, in line with the recognition of interest 
expense the grant is compensating.

   
2023 2022

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

8 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors (Note 8.1)  1,942,404  1,261,315 
Accrued liabilities  563,904  539,137 
Contract liabilities - unsecured  (Note 8.2)  142,885  88,014 
Fair value of forward exchange contracts  443  9,425 
Provident fund payable  31,281  25,699 
Workers' profit participation fund  (Note 8.3)  33,558  17,181 
Workers' welfare fund (Note 8.4)  45,199  26,431 
Income tax deducted at source  14,702  5,004 

 2,774,376  1,972,206 
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8.1 These include Rupees 8.199 million (2022: Rupees Nil) and Rupees 6.912 million (2022: Rupees Nil) due to Service Industries 
Limited - Ultimate Holding Company and SIL GULF (FZE) - subsidiary company of the Ultimate Holding Company respectively. These 
are in ordinary course of business and interest free.

8.2 These include Rupees Nil (2022: Rupees 1.17 million) relating to Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary company of the 
Ultimate Holding Company.    
   

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

8.3 Workers’ profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year  17,181  16,372 
Add: Provision for the year  (Note 31)  33,990  17,609 
Add: Interest for the year (Note 33)  1,270  1,500 
Less: Payments made during the year  (18,883)  (18,300)
Balance at the end of the year  33,558  17,181 

8.3.1 The Holding Company retains workers' profit participation fund for its business operations till the date of allocation to workers. Interest 
is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profits (Workers Participation) Act, 1968 on funds utilized by the Holding Company till 
the date of allocation to workers.   

 
8.4 Workers' welfare fund

Balance at the beginning of the year  26,431  23,846 
Add: Provision for the year  (Note 31)  32,527  14,040 
Less: Payments made during the year  (13,759)  (11,455)
Balance at the end of the year  45,199  26,431 

9. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long term financing  22,195  8,492 
Short term borrowings  146,916  167,695 

 169,111  176,187 

10. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Short term running finances (Note 10.1 and Note 10.2)  1,539,341  1,626,304 
Export refinances (Note 10.1 and Note 10.3)  3,485,726  3,712,595 
Export finance scheme  (Note 10.1 and Note 10.4)  2,708,589  149,415 
Export loans (Note 10.1 and Note 10.5)  548,691  -   

 8,282,347  5,488,314 

10.1 These finance facilities are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured by joint pari passu 
hypothecation charge over present and future current assets of the Holding Company and ranking charge over present and future 
current assets of the Holding Company. These form part of total credit facilities of Rupees 10,800 million (2022: Rupees 9,250 
million).
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10.2 The rates of mark-up range from 16.65% to 23.91 % (2022: 10.63% to 17.63 %) per annum.   
    

10.3 The rates of mark-up range from 9.25% to 19.00% (2022: 2.25% to 10%) per annum.   

10.4 The effective rates of mark-up range from 2% to 3% (2022: 1% to 3%) per annum.   
 

10.5 The rates of mark-up range from 6.5% to 6.75% (2022: Nil) per annum.   

11 DIVIDEND PAYABLE

 The board of directors of the Holding Company declared an interim cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 of Rupees 
3 per share (i.e. 30%) in their meeting held on 19 December 2023. This interim cash dividend has been credited electronically into 
the designated bank accounts of the shareholders of the Holding Company, subsequent to the reporting period, on 11 January 
2024. 

12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

12.1 Contingencies

12.1.1 On 03 December 2013, the Holding Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of first 
proviso to sub-clause (x) of clause (4) of SRO 491(1)/2016 dated 30 June 2016 issued under sections 3 and 4 read with sections 
8 and 71 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby through amendment in the earlier SRO 1125(I)/2011 dated 31 December 2011 
adjustment of input sales tax on packing material of all sorts has been disallowed. On 25 June 2019, the learned single judge 
of Honourable Lahore High Court has dismissed the writ petition of the Holding Company, therefore intra-court appeal has been 
filled. Consequently, the Holding Company has claimed input sales tax on packing material of Rupees 9.142 million (2022: Rupees 
9.142 million) in its monthly sales tax returns. The management of the Holding Company, based on advice of the legal counsel, is 
confident of favourable outcome of its appeal.    
 

12.1.2 On 10 September 2017, the Holding Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of clauses 
(h) and (i) to sub-section (1) of section 8 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby claim of input sales tax in respect of building materials, 
electrical and gas appliances, pipes, fittings, wires, cables and ordinary electrical fittings and sanitary fittings have been disallowed. 
On 11 September 2017, the Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore has passed order whereby tax department shall consider 
whether  the Holding Company is entitled to claim input sales tax on aforesaid goods that are used for the purpose of taxable 
supplies. Tax department shall consider the input sales tax adjustment for the relevant period. The Holding Company has claimed 
input sales tax of Rupees 30.157 million (2022: Rupees 11.168 million) on such goods in its respective monthly sales tax returns. 
The management of the Holding Company, based on advice of the legal counsel, is confident of favourable outcome of this matter.

     
12.1.3 Without considering the facts of the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction between Service Industries Limited 

- Ultimate Holding Company and the Holding Company, the tax authorities through order dated 29 October 2021 alleged that the 
Holding Company  suppressed its sale by Rupees 3,718.912 million during tax periods from  July 2019 to December 2019 and 
raised demand of Rupees 632.097 million and further tax of Rupees 111.547 million, along with penalty and default surcharge. 
Being aggrieved the Holding Company filed appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) - VI [CIR(A)] who upheld the 
order on 28 February 2022. The Holding Company filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) on 01 March 
2022. ATIR on 20 June 2022 accepted the Holding Company's contentions and remanded the issue on account of verification of the 
Holding Company's claim that the sales tax liability (if any) on revenue reported by the Holding Company in its audited financial 
statements, had been discharged by Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company. On 14 November 2022, ACIR raised 
the original demand through appeal effect order, ignoring the findings and directions of ATIR. The Holding Company filed an 
appeal before CIR(A) on 27 December 2022 and CIR(A) by way of his order dated 30 January 2023 has set-aside the order dated 
14 November 2022 of ACIR with the direction to ACIR to verify / confirm different treatment of sales in income tax return vs sales 
tax returns and to check adequate disclosure of the demerger transaction in audited financial statements of the Holding Company 
and Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company in light of directions of ATIR order dated 20 June 2022. Based on 
grounds and facts, the matter is likely to be decided in favour of the Holding Company. 
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12.1.4 Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) completed assessment proceedings and passed an order dated 22 June 2022, 
under section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 demanding sales tax amounting to Rupees 9.316 million and penalty amounting to 
Rupees 0.400 million against claimed input tax for the periods from July 2020 to June 2021. The Holding Company filed an appeal 
before ATIR which was heard on 13 December 2022 and was decided in favour of the Holding Company.

12.1.5 Post dated cheques have been issued to custom authorities in respect of duties amounting to Rupees 1,180.514 million (2022: 
Rupees 2,471.501 million) on imported material availed on the basis of consumption and export plans. In the event the documents 
of exports are not provided on due dates, cheques issued as security shall be encashable. The Company is availing Export Facilitation 
Scheme (EFS) License issued by Collector of Custom, Lahore with a face value of Rupees 2,000 million for the duty and tax free 
imports of plant, machinery, equipment, component parts, raw material, packing material and accessories. The said limit was 
allowed by Collector of Customs, Lahore after securing a post dated cheque of Rupees 2,000 million from the Company.

12.1.6 The Holding Company's share in contingency of associate accounted for under equity method is Rupees 168.326 million (2022: 
Rupees 109.672 million).

12.2 Commitments

12.2.1 Contracts for capital expenditure are approximately of Rupees 35.851 million (2022: Rupees 30.710 million). 
  
12.2.2 Letters of credit other than capital expenditure are of Rupees 504.628 million (2022: Rupees 363.578 million).
  
12.2.3  Outstanding foreign currency forward contracts are of Rupees 3,194.370 million (2022: Rupees 2,133.05 million).
  
12.2.4  The Holding Company has obtained vehicles under ijarah arrangements from Bank AL Habib Limited for the period of four years and 

ijarah rentals are payable on monthly basis respectively. Future Ujrah payments under ijarah are as follows:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Not later than one year  10,926  10,508 
Later than one year and not later than five years  5,977  16,162 

 16,903  26,670 

12.2.5  Following represent commitments arising from short-term leases recognized on a straight-line basis as expense under the practical 
expedients applied by the Holding Company. The amount of future payments under these leases and the period in which these 
payments will become due are as follows:

Not later than 1 year  2,020  4,310 

13. FIXED ASSETS

Operating fixed assets (Note 13.1)  2,981,977  2,321,674 
Capital work-in-progress (Note 13.4)  100,285  272,904 

 3,082,262  2,594,578 
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13.1.1 Detail of operating fixed assets, exceeding the book value of Rupees 500,000 disposed during the year.

Description Quantity Cost
Accumulated 

depreciation 

Net book 

value 

 Sale 

proceeds 
Gain 

Mode of 

disposal 

Particular of 

purchasers 

---------------------------------------------------Rupees in thousand---------------------------------------------------

 Vehicles 

Changan Oshan X7 - 2022 1  6,200  1,274  4,926  5,946 1,020  Negotiation Mr. Hassan Ehsan 
-Director of the 
Company, Lahore

Aggregate of items of 

operating fixed assets 

with individual book 

values not exceeding 

Rupees 500,000 91  6,941  6,456  485  604  119 
 13,141  7,730  5,411  6,550  1,139 

13.1.2 During the previous year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Holding Company at Muridke damaged certain items of operating 
fixed assets with an aggregate book value of Rupees 10.399 million. The Holding Company claimed such loss from its insurance 
providers in accordance with the relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1.

2023 2022
(Rupees in thousand)

13.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales  (Note 28)  223,552  179,822 
Distribution expenses  (Note 29)  163  -   
Administrative expenses (Note 30)  21,870  7,040 

 245,585  186,862 

13.3 Particulars of immovable properties (i.e. land and buildings) are as follows:

Manufacturing unit and residential 
colony Address

Area of freehold 
land

(Square Feet)

Covered area
(Square Feet)

Muridke factory and residential colony 10 - KM, Muridke - Sheikhupura Road, Muridke  1,345,693  408,789 

Freehold land Hadbast Manga Otar, Raiwind, Lahore  211,500  -   
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13.4 Capital work in progress

Buildings 
on freehold 

land

Plant and 
machinery

Furniture, 
fixture and 

fittings

Service 
equipment Vehicles Total

---------------------------------------------------Rupees in thousand---------------------------------------------

At 31 December 2021  31,670  9,737  1,960  15,869  -  59,236 
Add: Additions during the year  339,580  220,844  5,778  71,615  1,478  639,295 
Less: Written off due to fire (Note 13.5)  (7,702)  -  -  -  -  (7,702)
Less: Transferred to operating fixed assets 
during the year  (104,119)  (221,053)  (7,738)  (85,015)  -  (417,925)
At 31 December 2022  259,429  9,528  -  2,469  1,478  272,904 
Add: Additions during the year  214,239  162,991  4,025  155,784  6,659  543,698 
Less: Transferred to operating fixed assets 
during the year  (438,036)  (131,194)  (3,852)  (141,757)  (1,478)  (716,317)
At 31 December 2023  35,632  41,325  173  16,496  6,659  100,285 

13.5 During the previous year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Holding Company at Muridke damaged certain items of capital 
work-in-progress with an aggregate book value of Rupees 7.702 million. The Holding Company claimed such loss from its insurance 
providers in accordance with the relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

14. LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

Security deposits against Ijarah  6,756  7,920 
Security deposits - others  4,301  3,529 

 11,057  11,449 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 23)  (Note 23)  -    (877)

 11,057  10,572 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

15. LONG TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES

Considered good:

Executives (Note 15.1, Note 15.2 and Note 15.3)  13,353  20,248 
Other employees (Note 15.3)  2,478  1,060 

 15,831  21,308 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 21)
Executives  (6,437)  (7,314)
Other employees  (1,027)  (360)

 (7,464)  (7,674)
 8,367  13,634 

15.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives:
Balance as at the beginning of the year  20,248  12,996 
Add: Disbursements  2,325  13,581 
Less: Repayments                            (9,220)  (6,329)
Balance as at the end of the year  13,353  20,248 

15.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 17.743 million (2022: Rupees 
22.126 million).

     
15.3 These represent interest free loans to executives and employees for general purposes and house building. These are recoverable in 

monthly instalments over the period of 1 to 6 years and are secured by amount due to the employees against retirement benefits.

15.4 The fair value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' arising in respect of staff loans is not 
considered material and hence not recognized.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16. LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method

Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited

 242,331,650 (2022: 242,331,650) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each (Note 16.1)  2,691,689  2,217,650 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16.1 Cost of investment  2,434,575  2,434,575 

Share of post acquisition changes in investee's net assets:

As at the beginning of the year  (216,925)  7,149 
Add: Share of post acquisition profit / (loss) - net of tax  474,039  (224,074)

 257,114  (216,925)
Balance at the end of the year  2,691,689  2,217,650 

16.2 Summary of financial information of associate as per audited financial statements for the year:

Current assets  13,047,573  10,659,078 
Non-current assets  20,821,253  19,572,718 
Total assets  33,868,826  30,231,796 
Current liabilities  11,077,467  9,078,646 
Non-current liabilities  8,538,456  9,407,310 
Share deposit money  18,697  18,448 
Total liabilities  19,634,620  18,504,404 
Net assets  14,234,206  11,727,392 

16.3 Reconciliation to carrying amounts:

Balance at the beginning of the year  11,727,392  9,547,338 
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners  -  3,365,000 
Profit / (loss) after income tax  2,506,814  (1,184,946)
Other comprehensive income  -  -   
Balance at the end of the year  14,234,206  11,727,392 

Percentage of holding 18.91% 18.91%

Company's share  2,691,689  2,217,650 

16.4 Summarized statement of comprehensive income:

Revenue  26,768,189  8,307,127 

Profit / (loss) for the year  2,506,814  (1,184,946)
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -   
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year  2,506,814  (1,184,946)
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16.5 Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing, sale, marketing, import and export 
of all steel radial truck, bus, light truck and off the road tyres. Its registered office is situated at Servis House, 2 – Main Gulberg, Lahore.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

17. LONG TERM LOAN TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Balance at the beginning of the year  2,250,000  2,500,000 
Less: Loan repaid by the Ultimate Holding Company  (1,000,000)  (250,000)

 1,250,000  2,250,000 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 21)  (500,000)  (500,000)
Balance at the end of the year  750,000  1,750,000 

17.1 This represents unsecured loan to Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company. This carries mark-up at 6-months KIBOR 
plus 0.25 percent per annum or average borrowing cost of the Holding Company, whichever is higher. The maximum aggregate 
amount receivable from the Ultimate Holding Company at the  end of any month during the year was Rupees 2,250 million (2022: 
Rupees 2,500 million). It is neither past due nor impaired. Effective rate of mark-up charged on this long term loan ranges from 
17.29% to 23.22% (2022: 11.71% to 17.29%) per annum.

  
2023 2022

Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

18. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores  45,718  34,487 
Machinery spares  77,614  43,566 
Loose tools  8,857  11,146 

 132,189  89,199 
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items  (Note 18.1)  (8,456)  (7,243)

 123,733  81,956 

18.1 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Balance at the beginning of the year  7,243  3,918 
Add: Provision for the year  1,213  3,325 
Balance at the end of the year  8,456  7,243 

19. STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials  (Note 19.1)  1,926,537  1,463,833 
Packing materials  69,899  70,413 
Work-in-process (Note 19.2)  877,342  802,489 
Finished goods (Note 19.3 and Note 19.4)  1,704,823  1,072,894 

 4,578,601  3,409,629 
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks (Note 19.7)  (24,465)  (49,270)

 4,554,136  3,360,359 
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19.1 These include stock-in-transit of Rupees 478.231 million (2022: Rupees 143.205 million). 
   
19.2 This includes stock of Rupees 166.903 million (2022: Rupees 160.843 million) sent to outside parties for processing.

19.3 These include stock in transit of Rupees 404.498 million (2022: Rupees 249.932 million). 

19.4 Finished goods of Rupees 17.455 million (2022: Rupees 41.088 million) are being carried at net realizable value. 
 

19.5 The aggregate amount of Rupees 10.097 million (2022: Rupees 14.149 million) has been charged to cost of sales, being the cost of 
inventory written down during the year.

19.6 During the previous year, fire outbreak at factory premises of the Holding Company at Muridke damaged certain items of raw material, 
work-in-process and finished goods. The carrying values of the assets damaged were Rupees 420.611 million, Rupees 15.795 million 
and Rupees 50.585 million respectively. The Holding Company claimed such loss from its insurance providers in accordance with 
relevant insurance policies as referred to in note 32.1.     
   

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

19.7 Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks

Balance at the beginning of the year  49,270  45,190 

Add: (Reversal of provision) / provision for the year  (24,805)  4,080 
Balance at the end of the year  24,465  49,270 

20. TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Secured:
- Against irrevocable letters of credit  916,305  1,094,395 
Unsecured:
- Related parties  (Note 20.3, 20.4 and 20.5)  11,471  91,081 
- Others (Note 20.6)  788,890  662,854 

 800,361  753,935 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (Note 20.7)  (6,300)  (8,610)

 1,710,366  1,839,720 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

20.1 Types of counter-parties   -
Export

Corporate  1,675,463  1,756,617 
Other  -  - 

 1,675,463  1,756,617 
Local

Corporate  37,630  45,702 
Other  3,573  46,011 

 41,203  91,713 
 1,716,666  1,848,330 

20.2 Foreign jurisdictions of trade debts:

Europe  1,081,412  1,211,012 
Asia, Africa and Australia  199,995  318,307 
United States of America and Canada  394,056  227,298 

 1,675,463  1,756,617 

20.3 This represents amounts due from following related parties:

Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company  11,471  -   
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary company of the Ultimate Holding Company  -    85,123 
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited - associated company of the Holding Company  -    5,958 

20.4 The maximum aggregate amount receivable from related parties at the end of any month during the year was as follows:

Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company  87,462  26,922 
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary company of the Ultimate Holding Company  81,924  194,314 
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited - associated company  8,994  65,230 

20.5 As at the reporting date, trade debts due from related parties amounting to Rupees 1.490 million (2022: Rupees 61.303 million) were 
past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of this trade debts is as follows:

Upto 1 month  1,490  26,175 
1 to 6 months  -    30,793 
More than 6 months  -    4,335 

 1,490  61,303 
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20.6 As at the reporting date, trade debts due from other than related parties of Rupees 138.086 million (2022: Rupees 296.675 million) 
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default. 
The age analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

Upto 1 month  44,668  45,008 
1 to 6 months  77,214  250,406 
More than 6 months  16,204  1,261 

 138,086  296,675 

20.7 Allowance for expected credit losses 
Balance at the beginning of the year  8,610  4,243 
(Less) / Add: (Reversal of allowance) / allowance recognized during the year (Note 32 and Note 31)  (2,310)  4,367 
Balance at the end of the year  6,300  8,610 

21. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good:
Short term loan to Ultimate Holding Company (Note 21.1)  -    7,618 
Current portion of long term loan to Ultimate Holding Company (Note 17)  500,000  500,000 
Advances against letters of credit  847,564  423,452 
Advances to suppliers (Note 21.2)  117,779  288,910 
Advances to staff  6,982  2,700 
Current portion of long term loans to employees  (Note 15)  7,464  7,674 

 1,479,789  1,230,354 

21.1 This represented unsecured loan to Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company for working capital requirement. This 
carried mark-up at 1 - month KIBOR plus 0.05 percent per annum or average borrowing cost of the Holding Company, whichever is 
higher. The maximum aggregate amount receivable from the Ultimate Holding Company at the end of any month during the year was 
Rupees 1,718.297 million (2022: Rupees 2,746.29 million). It is neither past due nor impaired. Effective rate of mark-up charged on 
this short term loan ranged from 17.57% to 22.66% per annum (2022: 10.40% to 16.63% per annum).

21.2 Advances to suppliers

Advances to suppliers  117,779  294,793 
Less: Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  -    (5,883)

 117,779  288,910 

21.2.1 Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers

Balance at the beginning of the year  5,883  -   
(Less) / Add: (Reversal of provision) / provision for doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 31 and Note 32)  (5,883)  5,883 
Balance at the end of the year  -    5,883 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

22. ACCRUED MARK-UP

On short term loan to Ultimate Holding Company (Note 22.1)  -    -   
On long term loan to Ultimate Holding Company (Note 22.2)  -    -   
On saving account  5,357  -   

 5,357  -   

22.1 This represented accrued mark-up on short term loan given to Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company. The maximum 
aggregate outstanding amount at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 62.475 million (2022: Rupees 37.074 
million). 

22.2 This represented accrued mark-up on long term loan given to Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company. The maximum 
aggregate outstanding amount at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 113.237 million (2022: Rupees 90.949 million).  

23. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Short term security deposits  3,832  4,650 
Prepayments  5,179  7,461 
Current portion of long term security deposits (Note 14)  -    877 

 9,011  12,988 

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Custom duty rebate  620,068  292,239 
Duty drawback  10,740  10,740 
Sales tax refundable  818,478  484,527 
Lab testing charges (Note 24.1)  14,065  3,159 
Claims receivable (Note 24.2)  -    53,529 
Insurance claim receivable (Note 32.1)  444  14,407 
Miscellaneous (Note24.3)  5,697  12,904 

1,469,492  871,505 

24.1 Lab testing charges

Lab testing charges  14,065  4,214 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 24.1.1)  -    (1,055)

 14,065  3,159 

24.1.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,055  1,055 
Less: Reversal of allowance recognized during the year (Note 32)  (1,055)  -   
Balance at the end of the year  -    1,055 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

24.2 Claims receivable

Claims receivable  13,621  53,529 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 24.2.1)  (13,621)  -   

 -    53,529 

24.2.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Add: Allowance recognized during the year (Note 31)  13,621  -   
Balance at the end of the year  13,621  -   

24.3 Miscellaneous 

Miscellaneous  13,346  12,904 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 24.3.1)  (7,649)  -   

 5,697  12,904 

24.3.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Add: Allowance recognized during the year (Note 31)  7,649  -   
Balance at the end of the year  7,649  -   

25. ADVANCE INCOME TAX - NET

Advance income tax  721,692  630,715 
Less: Provision for taxation  (588,127)  (410,365)

 133,565  220,350 

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand  2,282  1,107 
With banks:
Current accounts:
Local currency (Note 26.1)  491,593  128,026 
Foreign currency (Note 26.2)  297,669  32,487 

 789,262  160,513 
Saving accounts:
Local currency (Note 26.3 and Note 26.4)  2,159,685  -   

 2,951,229  161,620 

26.1 This includes CNY 67,783 (2022: CNY Nil).
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26.2 This represents EURO 831,930.31 (2022: EURO 134,550.85) and USD 143,156  (2022: USD Nil).

26.3 Rate of profit on bank deposits range from 0.80% to 21.5% (2022: 4.25% to 6.50%) per annum.

26.4 This includes CNY 165,935 (2022: CNY Nil).

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

27. REVENUE - net

Revenue from contracts with customers:

Export sales  14,942,446  11,699,022 
Local sales (Note 27.1)  281,788  257,491 

 15,224,234  11,956,513 
Less: Discounts, commissions etc.  (153,071)  (203,425)

 15,071,163  11,753,088 

27.1 Local sales

Local sales  334,174  297,890 
Less: Sales tax  (52,386)  (40,399)

 281,788  257,491 

27.2 The amount of Rupees 88.014 million (2022: Rupees 56.775 million) included in contract liabilities (Note 8) at 31 December 2022 
has been recognized as revenue in 2023.
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27.3 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

 In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products and 
service lines and timing of revenue recognition:

Description 2023 2022
Rupees in thousand

Region

Europe  11,783,358  9,293,188 
United States of America and Canada  2,170,311  1,356,869 
Asia, Africa, Australia  835,706  845,540 
Pakistan  281,788  257,491 

 15,071,163  11,753,088 

Timing of revenue recognition

Products and services transferred at a point in time  15,071,163  11,753,088 
Products and services transferred over time  -    -   

 15,071,163  11,753,088 

Major products / service lines

Raw material  -    170,400 
Footwear  15,071,163  11,582,688 

 15,071,163  11,753,088 

27.4 Revenue is recognized at point in time as per the terms and conditions of underlying contracts with customers.
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

28. COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed  (Note 28.1)  6,866,535  5,942,443 
Processing charges  117,502  165,341 
Salaries, wages and other benefits  (Note 28.2, Note 28.3 and Note 28.4)  3,009,372  2,386,761 
Packing materials consumed  878,626  700,049 
Stores and spares consumed  504,872  332,658 
Fuel and power  343,451  198,061 
Repair and maintenance  41,264  42,683 
Insurance  20,330  9,598 
Travelling  32,522  24,135 
Entertainment  6,715  4,166 
Rent, rates and taxes (Note 28.5)  1,498  2,951 
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory  (23,592)  7,405 
Depreciation (Note 13.2)  223,552  179,822 
Other manufacturing charges  73,143  44,008 

 12,095,790  10,040,081 
Work-in-process:
Opening stock  802,489  489,315 
Closing stock  (877,342)  (802,489)

 (74,853)  (313,174)
Cost of goods manufactured  12,020,937  9,726,907 

Finished goods:
Opening stock  1,072,894  854,374 
Finished goods purchased  335,681  59,050 
Closing stock  (1,704,823)  (1,072,894)

 (296,248)  (159,470)
 11,724,689  9,567,437 

28.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock  1,463,833  745,827 
Add: Purchases during the year (Note 28.6)  7,329,239  6,660,449 
Less: Closing stock  (1,926,537)  (1,463,833)

 6,866,535  5,942,443 

28.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 101.659 million (2022: Rupees 85.195 million) and Rupees 
28.985 million (2022: Rupees 19.096 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.
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28.3 Salaries, wages and other benefits include compensated absences expense of Rupees 26.176 million (2022: Rupees 19.426 million).

28.4 Salaries, wages and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 0.552 million (2022: Rupees 16.619 million).

28.5 These include rent expense of Rupees 0.428 million (2022: Rupees 2.445 million) related to short term leases.

28.6 Custom duty rebate for the year amounting to Rupees 507.770 million (2022: Rupees 368.933 million) has been adjusted against 
raw materials consumed.

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

29. DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits  (Note 29.1 and Note 29.2)  118,383  80,735 
Freight and insurance  377,283  396,968 
Samples, claims and product development  525,938  317,859 
Postage and courier  117,136  82,908 
Fuel and power  12,377  7,864 
Travelling and conveyance  60,406  23,300 
Entertainment  13,146  9,273 
Rent, rates and taxes (Note 29.3)  5,831  1,877 
Depreciation (Note 13.2)  163  -   

 1,230,663  920,784 

29.1 Salaries and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 3.734 million (2022: Rupees 2.892 million) and Rupees 0.185 million 
(2022: Rupees 0.103 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.

29.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 0.127 million (2022: Rupees 1.948 million).

29.3 These include rent expense of Rupees 4.154 million (2022: Rupees 1.324 million) related to short term leases.
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits (Note 30.1, Note 30.2 and Note 30.3)  454,740  335,497 
Communication  2,539  3,693 
Printing and stationery  8,610  7,266 
Travelling and conveyance  12,912  13,880 
Entertainment  15,835  11,897 
Vehicles' running  25,438  21,515 
Insurance  5,189  2,093 
Rent, rates and taxes  10,952  7,632 
Fuel and power  20,730  16,131 
Repairs and maintenance  11,719  12,011 
Auditor's remuneration  (Note 30.4)  3,629  2,963 
Legal and professional  33,120  33,820 
Subscription  112  138 
Depreciation  (Note 13.2)  21,870  7,040 
Ijarah rentals  11,876  13,192 
Computer running  11,580  11,605 
Advertisement  161  -   
General  30,448  22,969 

 681,460  523,342 

30.1 Salaries and other benefits include contributions of Rupees 13.605 million (2022: Rupees 10.063 million) and Rupees 3.749 million 
(2022: Rupees 2.828 million) in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.

30.2 Salaries and other benefits include share options expense of Rupees 0.216 million (2022: Rupees 6.464 million).

30.3 Salaries and other benefits include compensated absences  expense of Rupees 2.415 million (2022: Rupees 1.753 million).

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

30.4 Auditor's remuneration

Statutory audit fee  1,670  1,518 
Statutory audit fee of consolidated financial statements  354  - 
Half yearly review  605  550 
Certification charges  550  500 
Reimbursable expenses  450  395 

 3,629  2,963 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

31. OTHER EXPENSES

Donations  (Note 31.1)  -    4,226 
Allowance for expected credit losses - trade debts (Note 20.7)  -    4,367 
Provision against doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  -    5,883 
Allowance for expected credit losses - claims receivable (Note 24.2.1)  13,621  -   
Allowance for expected credit losses - miscellaneous other receivables (Note 24.3.1)  7,649  -   
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 8.3)  33,990  17,609 
Workers' welfare fund (Note 8.4)  32,527  14,040 

 87,787  46,125 

31.1 These represented donations given to Servis Foundation - related party. Mr. Chaudhry Ahmed Javed, Director of the Holding Company, 
Mr. Arif Saeed, Chairman of the Holding Company, Mr. Omar Saeed, Director of the Holding Company and Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief 
Executive of the Holding Company are directors of Servis Foundation.   
 

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

32. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Interest on loans to Ultimate Holding Company  532,170  544,882 
Interest on term deposit receipts and saving accounts  16,398  25,382 
Exchange gain - net  182,352  88,284 

Income From Non-Financial Assets

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net (Note 13.1.1)  1,139  581 
Insurance claim against business interruption loss (Note 32.1)  -    4,908 
Amortization of deferred income - Government grant  (Note 7.2)  -    3,476 
Scrap sales  30,822  16,291 
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses - trade debts (Note 20.7)  2,310  -   
Reversal of provision for doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  5,883  -   
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses - Lab testing charges (Note 24.1.1)  1,055  -   

 772,129  683,804 

32.1 As referred to in notes 13.1.2, 13.5, and 19.6, during the previous year fire outbreak at factory premises of the Holding Company at 
Muridke damaged certain items of operating fixed assets, capital work-in-progress and stock-in-trade. The Holding Company filed 
the insurance claim in respect of these assets. The insurer appointed a surveyor who completed his survey during the previous year 
and assessed the insurance claim at Rupees 510.000 million including business interruption claim of Rupees 4.908 million. Out of 
the total claim, the Holding Company has received proceeds of Rupees 509.556 million from the insurer as of 31 December 2023. 
Subsequent to the reporting period, remaining amount has been received.
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2022
Amount

Rupees in thousand

Carrying value of assets written off due to fire 

Operating fixed assets (Note 13.1)  10,399 
Capital work-in-progress (Note 13.4)  7,702 
Raw materials (Note 19)  420,611 
Work-in-process (Note 19)  15,795 
Finished goods (Note 19)  50,585 
Carrying value of assets written off due to fire  505,092 
Insurance claim verified to date  510,000 
Insurance claim against business interruption loss  4,908 

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

33. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on:
- Short term borrowings  893,977  403,785 
- Long term financing  37,689  21,082 
Interest on workers’ profit participation fund  (Note 8.3)  1,270  1,500 
Bank charges and commission  76,262  40,813 

 1,009,198  467,180 

34. TAXATION

Current  (Note 34.1)  285,892  325,682 
Prior period adjustment  59,215  22,970 
Deferred tax  67,093  (2,761)

 412,200  345,891 

34.1 The Holding Company falls under the ambit of presumptive tax regime under section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Provision 
for income tax is made accordingly. Further, provision against income from other sources is made under the relevant provisions of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Provision for current tax of Dongguan Service Global Limited - Subsidiary Company is computed in 
accordance with the tax legislation in force in China.

34.2 Provision for deferred income tax is not required as the Holding Company is chargeable to tax under section 169 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 and no temporary differences are expected to arise in the foreseeable future except for deferred tax liability as explained 
in note 7.    
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

35 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

35.1 Basic earnings per share

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Holding Company (Rupees in thousand)  1,171,334  342,059 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Holding Company (Numbers) (Note 35.3)  205,464,979  204,734,897 
Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 5.75 1.67

35.2 Diluted earnings per share 

 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Holding Company outstanding 
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Holding Company has granted share options to employees as 
explained in note 4.2.

2023 2022
Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Holding Company (Rupees in thousand)  1,171,334  342,059 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) (Note 35.3)  205,464,979  204,734,897 
Adjustment for share options (Numbers)  75,348  645,178 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Holding Company for 
diluted earnings per share (Numbers)  205,540,327  205,380,075 
Diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 5.70 1.67

35.2.1 Share options issued by the Holding Company have a dilutive effect on the earnings per share since the fair value of the ordinary 
shares during the year exceeds the exercise price of the options.

2023 2022
35.3 Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year :

Issued ordinary shares of the Holding Company at the beginning of the year  205,087,500  204,437,500 
Effect of ordinary shares of the Holding Company issued under Employees Stock Option Scheme  377,479  297,397 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Holding Company at the end of the year  205,464,979  204,734,897 
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

36. CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation  1,583,534  687,950 
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation (Note 13.2)  245,585  186,862 
Provision for gratuity (Note 6.6.1)  32,919  22,027 
Provision for workers' profit participation fund (Note 8.3)  33,990  17,609 
Provision for workers' welfare fund  (Note 8.4)  32,527  14,040 
Amortization of deferred income - Government grant (Note 7.2)  -  (3,476)
(Reversal of provision) / provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory (Note 28)  (23,592)  7,405 
(Reversal of allowance) / allowance for expected credit losses - trade debts (Note 20.7)  (2,310)  4,367 
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses - lab testing charges (Note 24.1.1)  (1,055)  -   
Allowance for expected credit losses - claims receivable (Note 24.2.1)  13,621 

Allowance for expected credit losses - miscellaneous other receivables (Note 24.3.1)  7,649  -   
(Reversal of provision) / provision against doubtful advances to suppliers (Note 21.2.1)  (5,883)  5,883 
Finance cost (Note 33)  1,009,198  467,180 
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net (Note 32)  (1,139)  (581)
Insurance claim against business interruption loss (Note 32)  -  (4,908)
Interest on loans to Ultimate Holding Company (Note 32)  (532,170)  (544,882)
Interest on term deposit recipts and saving accounts (Note 32)  (16,398)  (25,382)
Exchange gain - net (Note 32)  (182,352)  (88,284)
Share of profit / (loss) of equity accounted investee - net of taxation (Note 16.1)  (474,039)  224,074 
Employees' share option expense (Note 4.2.2)  895  25,031 
Working capital changes (Note 36.1)  (1,012,184)  (2,924,815)

 708,796  (1,929,900)

36.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools  (42,990)  (42,220)
Stock-in-trade  (1,168,972)  (1,758,335)
Trade debts  314,016  (938,089)
Loans and advances  (251,380)  (437,826)
Prepayments  2,282  (6,676)
Other receivables  (632,165)  (350,677)

 (1,779,209)  (3,533,823)
Increase in trade and other payables  767,025  609,008 

 (1,012,184)  (2,924,815)

Notes to the Cosolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

178 Service Global Footwear Limited



36.2 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
Year ended 31 December 2023

 Liabilities from financing activities

Long term

financing

Short term 

borrowings

Unclaimed 

dividend

Dividend 

payable

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Balance at the beginning of the year  401,814  5,488,314  4,850  -   

Add: Borrowings obtained  -    32,169,613  -    -   

Less: Repayment of financing / borrowings  (39,450)  (29,375,580)  -    -   

Add: Dividends declared  -    -    205,088  617,753 

Less: Dividends paid  -    -    (204,994)  -   

Balance at the end of the year  362,364  8,282,347  4,944  617,753 

Year ended 31 December 2022
 Liabilities from financing activities

Long term
financing

Short term
borrowings

Unclaimed
dividend

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Balance at the beginning of the year  397,491  3,924,075  -   
Add: Financing / borrowings obtained  149,306  29,824,802  -   
Less: Repayment of financing / borrowings  (148,460)  (28,260,563)  -   
Add: Dividends declared  -    -    921,594 
Less: Dividends paid  -    -    (916,744)
Other changes - non-cash movement  3,477  -    -   
Balance at the end of the year  401,814  5,488,314  4,850 

2023 2022
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

36.3 Non-cash financing activities

Other changes - non-cash movement  -    3,477 
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37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 The aggregate amount charged in the consolidated financial statements for remuneration including all benefits to chief executive, 
directors and executives of the Holding Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
---------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) ---------------------------------------------

Managerial remuneration  46,431  40,375  26,629  21,791  150,165  89,003 
Bonus  48,000  20,833  13,236  5,673  55,906  36,020 
Allowances:
   House rent  4,643  4,038  7,135  5,516  42,200  32,834 
   Conveyance  4,643  4,038  489  480  17,287  7,293 
   Medical  -  -    3,867  3,269  21,598  12,476 
   Special allowance  -  -    4,304  4,034  1,886  4,233 
Retirement and other benefits  3,482  3,028  4,285  8,960  41,619  4,122 
Total  107,199  72,312  59,945  49,723  330,661  185,981 
Number of persons 1 1 2 2 61 39
Employee share options 
granted (No. of options) - -  100,000  250,000  605,000  598,000 
Issuance of ordinary shares 
(No. of shares) - -  250,000  450,000  580,000  200,000 

37.1 No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Holding Company.

37.2 Chief Executive, directors and certain executives of the Holding Company are provided with fully maintained vehicles. 
 

37.3 Aggregate amount charged in these consolidated financial statements for meeting fee to three (2022: three) directors was Rupees 
2.160 million (2022: Rupees 1.840 million).

37.4 During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema, Executive Director of the Holding Company, Mr. Qadeer Ahmed 
Vaseer, Executive Director of the Holding Company, Mr. Amer Ahmad Javed, Key management personnel of the Holding Company, Mr. 
Syed Arshad Hussain Shah, Key management personnel of the Holding Company, Mr. Usman Liaqat, Key management personnel 
of the Holding Company and Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq, Key management personnel of the Holding Company were granted 50,000 
(2022: 150,000), 50,000 (2022: 100,000), 40,000 (2022: 35,000), 40,000 (2022: 35,000), 40,000 (2022: 101,500) and 40,000 
(2022: 100,000) employee share options respectively. 150,000 (2022: 250,000), 100,000 (2022: 200,000), 35,000 (2022: Nil), 
35,000 (2022: Nil), 101,500 (2022: Nil) and 100,000 (2022: 200,000) number of ordinary shares were issued during the year ended 
31 December 2023 to Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema, Executive Director of the Holding Company, Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer, Executive 
Director of the Holding Company, Mr. Amer Ahmad Javed, Key management personnel of the Holding Company, Mr. Syed Arshad 
Hussain Shah, Key management personnel of the Holding Company, Mr. Usman Liaqat, Key management personnel of the Holding 
Company and Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq, Key management personnel of the Holding Company respectively.

38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 The related parties comprise of the Ultimate Holding Company, subsidiaries of the Ultimate Holding Company, associated companies,  
employees' gratuity fund trust, employees' provident fund trust and key management personnel. The Group in the normal course of 
business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have 
been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements are as follows:
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)
Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Ultimate Holding Company

Service Industries Limited Sale of goods  305,772  68,244 
Expenses charged  280,647  235,853 
Purchase of goods  390,094  140,844 
Processing charges  109,186  118,947 
Loans given  11,589,162  9,886,995 
Loans repaid  12,596,780  11,156,097 
Interest income  532,170  544,882 
Dividend paid  163,550  735,975 

Sub-subsidiary of the Ultimate Holding Company

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Sale of goods  -    170,401 
Purchase of goods  -    39,011 
Sale of operating fixed assets  -    6,189 

Subsidiary of the Ultimate Holding Company

SIL GULF (FZE) Purchase of machinery  43,904  -   
Purchase of goods  73,391  -   

Associated company of the Holding Company

Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited Sale of goods  3,035  11,985 
Purchase of goods  15,134  668 

Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited Investment made  -    636,322 
Sale of goods 9,346 -

Service Foundation Donation made  -    4,226 

Key management personnel Dividends paid  2,888  10,794 
Post employment benefit plans Company's contribution to gratuity fund trust  32,919  22,027 

Company's contribution to provident fund trust  118,998  98,150 

38.1 Detail of compensation to key management personnel of Holding Company is disclosed in Note 37.
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38.2 Following are the related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place:

Name of the related party Basis of Relationship

Transactions entered 
or agreements and / or 
arrangements in place 

during the financial year

Percentage of 
shareholding

2023 2022

Service Industries Limited Ultimate Holding Company  Yes  Yes Nil
S2 Power Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
S2 Hydro Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Speed (Private) Limited Shareholding of the Ultimate Holding Company  No  No Nil
SBL Trading (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Jomo Technologies (Private) Limited Common directorship  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited Common directorship and share holding   No   Yes 18.91%
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) 

Limited (Subsidiary Company of Service 
Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company)  No  Yes Nil

Servis Foundation Common directorship  No  Yes Nil
Shalamar Hospital Directors of the Holding Company are Trustees  No  No Nil
Kidney Centre Gujrat Directors of the Holding Company are 

members of Board of Governors  No  No Nil
Shahid Arif Investment (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
SIL GULF FZE Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding Company  Yes  No Nil
Service Provident Fund Trust Post employment benefit plan  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Industries Limited Employees
Gratuity Fund Trust Post employment benefit plan  Yes  Yes Nil
Service Charitable Trust Directors of the Holding Company are Trustees  No  No Nil
Service Tyres (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Service Tyres (Private) Limited Common directorship  No  No Nil
Mr. Hassan Javed Chief Executive  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Arif Saeed Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Omar Saeed Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Azmat Ali Ranjha Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Abdul Rashid Lone Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Qadeer Ahmed Vaseer Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Mr. Hassan Ehsan Cheema Director  Yes  Yes Nil
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Director  Yes  Yes Nil
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38.3 Particulars of companies incorporated outside Pakistan with whom the Group had entered into transactions or had agreements and / 
or arrangements in place is as follows:

Name Country of 
incorporation Basis of association  Percentage of 

shareholding 

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Sri Lanka Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) 
Limited (subsidiary company of Service Industries 
Limited - Ultimate Holding Company)

Nil

SIL GULF (FZE) United Arab Emirates Subsidiary of Service Industries  Limited - Ultimate 
Holding Company

Nil

Dongguan Service Global Limited China Subsidiary Company of the Holding Company 100%

38.4 As on 31 December 2023, disclosure relating to subsidiary company, subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited - 
associated company and subsidiary of Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company incorporated outside Pakistan:

Particulars Details

Name of the company Service Shoes Lanka 
(Private) Limited 

SIL GULF (FZE) Dongguan Service 
Global Limited

Jurisdiction Sri Lanka United Arab Emirates China
Beneficial owner Service Industries Capital 

(Private) Limited
Service Industries 
Limited

Service Global Footwear 
Limited

Investment made during the year ended 31 December 2017 2022 2023
Investment in

Local currency PKR 62,770,000 PKR 7,215,000 PKR 89,166,721
Foreign currency USD 600,000 AED 150,000 EURO 287,645

Terms and conditions of investment Investment in shares of 
subsidiary company

Investment in shares of 
subsidiary company

Investment in shares of 
subsidiary company

Amount of returns received None None None
Litigation against investee company None None None
Default / breach related to foreign company None None None
Gain / (loss) on disposal of investment Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

39. PLANT CAPACITY

Installed capacity Actual production

(Pairs in thousand) (Pairs in thousand)

2023 2022 2023 2022

Strobel construction  1,662  1,600  1,467  1,526 
lasted construction  2,338  2,250  2,062  2,145 

 4,000  3,850  3,529  3,671 
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39.1 The deviation in actual production from installed capacity is due to rapidly growing trends as the Holding Company has to change 
major shoe lines in accordance with the market trends. This involves change in manufacturing operations and product mix which 
causes variances not only between the installed capacity and actual production but also between the actual production of any two 
years.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

40.1 Financial risk factors

 The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), 
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

 Risk management is carried out by the finance department of Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company under policies approved 
by the Board of Directors. The Holding Company and Subsidiary Company's finance department evaluates and hedges financial risks. 
The Board of each Group Company provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as 
currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and investment of excess liquidity. 

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist 
due to transactions in foreign currencies.

 The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the United States Dollar 
(USD), Euro, British Pound Sterling (GBP) and Chinese Yuan (CNY). Currently, the Group's foreign exchange risk exposure is 
restricted to bank balances, amounts receivable from / payable to the foreign entities and short term borrowings. The Group's 
exposure to currency risk was as follows:
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

Cash at banks - EURO  831,930  134,551 
Cash at banks - USD  143,156  -   
Cash at banks - CNY  233,718  -   
Trade debts - USD  2,252,146  2,892,102 
Trade debts - EURO  3,192,348  4,478,120 
Trade debts - GBP  124,857  75,526 
Other receivables - USD  33,566  207,918 
Other receivables - EURO  -  60,256 
Trade and other payables - USD  (1,401,560)  (2,096,919)
Trade and other payables - EURO  (281,673)  (702,812)
Trade and other payables - CNY  -  (65,725)
Trade and other payables - GBP  (1,526)  - 
Short term borrowings - USD  (1,925,000)  - 
Net exposure - USD  (897,692)  1,003,101 
Net exposure - EURO  3,742,605  3,970,115 
Net exposure - GBP  123,331  75,526 
Net exposure - CNY  233,718  (65,725)

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year :

Rupees per US Dollar

Average rate 283.35 204.92
Reporting date rate 281.86 226.40

Rupees per EURO

Average rate 307.13 213.99
Reporting date rate 311.50 241.45

Rupees per GBP

Average rate 353.63 250.83
Reporting date rate 358.60 273.02

Rupees per CNY

Average rate 39.99 30.22
Reporting date rate 39.63 32.53
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 Sensitivity analysis

 If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD, Euro, GBP and CNY with 
all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for the year  would have been higher / lower by Rupees 32.316 million 
(2022: Rupees 55.133 million), mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated 
financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been  calculated on a symmetric basis. In 
management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does not 
reflect the exposure during the year.

    
(ii) Other price risk

 Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in 
the market. The Group is not exposed to equity and commodity price risks.

(iii) Interest rate risk

 This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates.

 The Group's significant interest-bearing financial assets are loans to Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company 
and the Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from long term financing, short term borrowings, loans to the Ultimate Holding 
Company and bank balances - saving accounts. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest 
rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

 At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

Fixed rate instruments

Financial asset -  -   

Financial liabilities

Long term financing  202,078  240,151 
Short term borrowings  6,743,006  3,862,010 

Floating rate financial instruments

Financial asset

Bank balances - saving accounts  2,159,685  -   
Loans to Ultimate Holding Company  1,250,000  2,257,618 

Financial liabilities

Long term financing  160,286  161,663 
Short term borrowings  1,539,341  1,626,304 
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 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

 The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in 
interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Group.

 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

 If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for 
the year  would have been Rupees 21.836 million (2022: Rupees 1.721 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of  higher / 
lower interest income / expense on floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and 
liabilities outstanding at reporting the dates were outstanding for the whole year.

(b) Credit risk

 Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2023 2022
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

Security deposits  14,889  16,099 
Trade debts  1,710,366  1,839,720 
Loans and advances  1,265,831  2,278,926 
Accrued mark-up  5,357  -   
Other receivables  20,206  83,999 
Bank balances  2,948,947  160,513 

 5,965,596  4,379,257 

Annual Report 2023 187



 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (If 
available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating 2023 2022
Short term Long term Agency Amount Amount

Banks (Rupees in thousand)
 

Meezan Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  2,142  10,975 
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  92  72 
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  21,856  4,430 
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS  17,083  1,228 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1 A PACRA  3,309  21,659 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA  17,824  362 
Askari Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA  21,770  12,440 
Soneri Bank Limited A1+ AA- PACRA  2,592,081  81,594 
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA  3,097  316 
Bank AL Habib Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  21,527  562 
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited A1+ AAA PACRA  713  157 
Samba Bank Limited A1 AA VIS  -    22 
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited A1+ AA VIS  73,247  19 
BankIslami Pakistan Limited AA- A1 PACRA  91,555  26,591 
The Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ PACRA  34,728  86 
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited P1 A1 Moody's  6,587  - 
China Merchants Bank Limited P1 A2 Moody's  41,336  - 

 2,948,947  160,513 

 The Group's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note 20.

 Due to the Group's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong 
financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Group. 
Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

 Trade debts

 The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for 
all trade debts.

 To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days 
past due. These trade receivables are netted off with the collateral obtained, if any, from these customers to calculate the net exposure 
towards these customers. The Group has concluded that the expected loss rates for trade debts against local sales are different from 
the expected loss rates for trade debts against export sales.   

 The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 December 2023 and the 
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified 
the Gross Domestic Product, Unemployment, Interest and the inflation Index to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts 
the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.
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 On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 was determined as follows:

At 31 December 2023

Local sales Export sales

Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

% (Rupees in thousand) % (Rupees in thousand)
Not past due 0%  36,435  - 0%  712,636  - 

Up to 30 days 9.88%  -  - 1.66%  34,487  574 

31 to 60 days 22.75%  1  - 6.53%  11,360  742 

61 to 90 days 29.21%  -  - 10.90%  -  - 

91 to 180 days 43.43%  4  1 22.13%  -  - 

181 to 360 days 50.57%  -  - 32.58%  675  220 

Above 360 days 100.00%  4,763  4,763 100.00%  -  - 

 41,203  4,764  759,158  1,536 

Trade debts which are not 
subject to risk of default  -  -  916,305  - 

Gross Trade debts  41,203  4,764  1,675,463  1,536 

At 31 December 2022

Local sales Export sales
Expected loss 

rate
Trade debts Loss allowance

Expected loss 
rate

Trade debts Loss allowance

% (Rupees in thousand) % (Rupees in thousand)

Not past due 0%  76,186  - 0.00%  449,292  - 
Up to 30 days 14.35%  2,357  339 2.25%  32,391  729 
31 to 60 days 34.52%  7,451  2,572 10.27%  19,121  1,964 
61 to 90 days 40.74%  24  10 15.65%  -  - 
91 to 180 days 53.47%  40  21 27.51%  7,285  2,004 
181 to 360 days 56.54%  99  56 36.43%  -  - 
Above 360 days 100.00%  915  915 100.00%  -  - 

 87,072  3,913  508,089  4,697 
Trade debts which are not 
subject to risk of default  4,641  -  1,248,528  - 
Gross Trade debts  91,713  3,913  1,756,617  4,697 

(c) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

 The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities. At 31 December 2023, the Group had Rupees 2,604.268 million (2022: Rupees 3,761.686 million) 
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available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 2,951.229 million (2022: Rupees 161.620 million) cash and 
bank balances. The management believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, 
including interest payments. The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:

 Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2023:

Carrying

Amount

Contractual

cash flows

6 months

or less

6-12 

months

1-2

Years

More than

2 Years

--------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) --------------------------------------------------------

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing  362,364  505,720  25,644  40,356  94,749  344,971 

Short term borrowings  8,282,347  8,428,134  8,428,134  -  -    -   

Trade and other payables  2,506,308  2,506,308  2,506,308  -  -    -   

Accrued mark-up  169,111  169,111  169,111  -  -    -   

Dividend payable  617,753  617,753  617,753  -  -    -   

Unclaimed dividend  4,944  4,944  4,944  -  -    -   

Derivative financial liabilities  443  443  443  -  -    -   

 11,943,270  12,232,413  11,752,337  40,356  94,749  344,971 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022:

Carrying
Amount

Contractual
cash flows

6 months
or less

6-12 
months

1-2
Years

More than
2 Years

--------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand) --------------------------------------------------------

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing  401,814  518,224  31,015  31,478  80,939  374,792 
Short term borrowings  5,488,314  5,639,405  5,056,264  583,141  -    -   
Trade and other payables  1,800,452  1,800,452  1,800,452  -    -    -   
Accrued mark-up  176,187  176,187  176,187  -    -    -   
Unclaimed dividend  4,850  4,850  4,850  -    -    -   
Derivative financial liabilities  9,425  9,425  9,425  -    -    -   

 7,881,042  8,148,543  7,078,193  614,619  80,939  374,792 

 The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark up rates 
effective as at reporting date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in note 5 and note 10 to these consolidated financial 
statements.
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2023 2022
At amortized cost

(Rupees in thousand)
40.2 Financial instruments by categories

Assets as per consolidated statement of financial position

Security deposits  14,889  16,099 
Trade debts  1,710,366  1,839,720 
Loans and advances  1,265,831  2,278,926 
Accrued mark-up  5,357  - 
Other receivables  20,206  83,999 
Cash and bank balances  2,951,229  161,620 

 5,967,878  4,380,364 

2023 2022
At amortized

cost
FVTPL

At amortized
cost

FVTPL

(Rupees in thousand)
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of financial position

Long term financing  362,364  -  401,814  - 
Accrued mark-up  169,111  -  176,187  - 
Short term borrowings  8,282,347  -  5,488,314  - 
Trade and other payables  2,506,308  443  1,800,452  9,425 
Dividend payable  617,753  -  -    - 
Unclaimed dividend  4,944  -  4,850  - 

 11,942,827  443  7,871,617  9,425 
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40.2.1  Reconciliation of financial assets and financial liabilities to the line items presented in the consolidated statement of financial 
position is as follows:

2023

 Financial 

assets 

 Non-financial 

assets 

 Assets as per 

consolidated 

statement of 

financial position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------
Assets

Long term security deposits  11,057  -  11,057 

Trade debts  1,710,366  -  1,710,366 

Loans and advances  1,265,831  972,325  2,238,156 

Accrued markup  5,357  -  5,357 

Short term deposits and prepayments  3,832  5,179  9,011 

Other receivables  20,206  1,449,286  1,469,492 

Cash and bank balances  2,951,229  -  2,951,229 

 5,967,878  2,426,790  8,394,668 

2023

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Non-financial 

liabilities 

 Liabilities as 

per consolidated 

statement of 

financial position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Liabilities

Long term financing  362,364  -  362,364 

Accrued mark-up  169,111  -  169,111 

Short term borrowings  8,282,347  -  8,282,347 

Trade and other payables  2,506,751  267,625  2,774,376 

Dividend payable  617,753  -  617,753 

Unclaimed dividend  4,944  -  4,944 

 11,943,270  267,625  12,210,895 
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2022

 Financial assets 
 Non-financial 

assets 

 Assets as per 
consolidated 
statement of 

financial position 
-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Assets

Long term security deposits  11,449  -  11,449 
Trade debts  1,839,720  -  1,839,720 
Loans and advances  2,278,926  715,062  2,993,988 
Short term deposits and prepayments  4,650  7,461  12,111 
Other receivables  83,999  787,506  871,505 
Cash and bank balances  161,620  -  161,620 

 4,380,364  1,510,029  5,890,393 

2022

 Financial 
liabilities 

 Non-financial 
liabilities 

 Liabilities as 
per statement of 
financial position 

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

Liabilities

Long term financing  401,814  -  401,814 
Accrued mark-up  176,187  -  176,187 
Short term borrowings  5,488,314  -  5,488,314 
Trade and other payables  1,809,877  162,329  1,972,206 
Unclaimed dividend  4,850  -  - 

 7,881,042  162,329  8,038,521 

40.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

 As on the reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to off setting as there are no enforceable master netting 
arrangements and similar agreements.

40.4 Capital risk management

 The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide 
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new 
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Group monitors 
the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. Borrowings 
represent long term financing and short term borrowings obtained by the Group as referred to in note 5 and note 10 respectively. Total 
capital employed includes 'total equity' as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus 'borrowings'.
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2023 2022
Amount Amount

(Rupees in thousand)

Borrowings  8,644,711  5,890,128 
Total equity  6,485,961  6,164,524 
Total capital employed  15,130,672  12,054,652 
Gearing ratio 57.13% 48.86%

Increase in gearing is due to increase in short term borrowings of the Holding Company.

41. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Fair value hierarchy 

 Judgements and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and measured at 
fair value in these consolidated financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining 
fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the following three levels. An explanation of each level follows 
underneath the table. 

 
Recurring fair value measurements

Level 1  Level 2      Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2023

-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------
 

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities  -    443  -    443 

Recurring fair value measurements
Level 1  Level 2      Level 3 Total

At 31 December 2022
-------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------

 
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities  -    9,425  -    9,425 

 The above table does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the 
carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets 
and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values 
are also not significantly different to their carrying amounts.

  There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. Further there was no transfer 
out of level 3 measurements.

 The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
 
 Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is 

based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group 
is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Notes to the Cosolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

194 Service Global Footwear Limited



 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is 
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is 
the case for unlisted equity securities.

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar 
instruments..   
 

42. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

 Employees provident fund of Service Industries Limited - Ultimate Holding Company namely Service Provident Fund Trust is also 
managing provident fund benefits of the employees of the Holding Company.

 As at the reporting date, the Service Provident Fund Trust is in the process of regularizing its investments in accordance with section 
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the regulations formulated for this purpose by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan.

43. OPERATING SEGMENTS

  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. 
 
 1.93% (2022: 2.19%) of the sales of the Group relates to customers in Pakistan. Of the remaining sales of the Group relating to 

customers outside Pakistan, 40.19% (2022: 46.19%) of those sales are made to customers in Germany.

 All non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023 were located in Pakistan and China.

 13.32% (2022: 17.87%) of the local sales of the Company are made to a single customer in Pakistan.

44. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2023 2022

Number of employees  5,898  5,886 

Average number of employees during the year   5,523  5,522 
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45. UNUTILIZED CREDIT FACILITIES

Non- funded Funded

2023 2022 2023 2022
(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

Total facilities  8,483,000  2,635,000  10,886,615  9,250,000 
Utilized at the end of the year  (912,030)  (228,352)  (8,282,347)  (5,488,314)

Unutilized at the end of the year  7,570,970  2,406,648  2,604,268  3,761,686 

46.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

 The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has proposed final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 of Rupees 
2 per share (i.e 20%) at their meeting held on 21 February 2024. However, this event has been considered as non-adjusting event 
under IAS 10 'Events after the Reporting Period' and has not been recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

47. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

 These consolidated financial statements were authorized  for issue on 21 February 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company.

48. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

 During the year, the Holding Company made investment in Dongguan Service Global Limited - wholly owned subsidiary company. 
Corresponding figures reported in these consolidated financial statements relate to the Holding Company, therefore, are not 
comparable.

49. General

 Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of Rupees, except stated otherwise.

Arif Saeed
(Director)

Usman Liaqat
(Chief Financial Officer)

Hassan Javed
(Chief Executive)

Notes to the Cosolidated Financial Statements
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Pattern of Shareholding 
As at December 31, 2023

Number of Shareholders
Shareholding

Total Shares held
From To

216 1 100 4,080
895 101 500 432,290
638 501 1,000 610,581
567 1,001 5,000 1,486,160
115 5,001 10,000 933,141
60 10,001 15,000 752,821
46 15,001 20,000 836,554
38 20,001 25,000 874,179
16 25,001 30,000 460,756
9 30,001 35,000 297,788
9 35,001 40,000 342,792

11 40,001 45,000 473,266
16 45,001 50,000 777,404
3 50,001 55,000 158,005
5 55,001 60,000 288,736
2 60,001 65,000 128,874
2 65,001 70,000 136,500
3 70,001 75,000 222,461
1 75,001 80,000 77,454
3 85,001 90,000 264,026
1 90,001 95,000 95,000

10 95,001 100,000 999,303
4 100,001 105,000 416,267
2 105,001 110,000 216,000
2 110,001 115,000 226,500
5 115,001 120,000 596,000
4 125,001 130,000 514,180
2 145,001 150,000 300,000
1 175,001 180,000 177,500
2 180,001 185,000 365,603
1 185,001 190,000 189,772
1 190,001 195,000 191,500
3 195,001 200,000 600,000
3 210,001 215,000 642,500
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Number of Shareholders
Shareholding

Total Shares held
From To

1 235,001 240,000 237,500
2 245,001 250,000 493,818
1 265,001 270,000 265,304
1 280,001 285,000 283,000
2 295,001 300,000 600,000
1 360,001 365,000 366,500
1 370,001 375,000 371,325
1 395,001 400,000 400,000
1 430,001 435,000 435,000
1 445,001 450,000 448,000
1 450,001 455,000 451,000
1 475,001 480,000 479,165
1 495,001 500,000 500,000
1 505,001 510,000 509,000
1 510,001 515,000 512,337
1 515,001 520,000 518,000
1 565,001 570,000 569,317
1 570,001 575,000 574,325
1 595,001 600,000 600,000
1 600,001 605,000 604,500
1 615,001 620,000 616,544
1 620,001 625,000 621,793
1 645,001 650,000 648,000
1 710,001 715,000 710,500
1 780,001 785,000 782,000
1 810,001 815,000 812,000
1 820,001 825,000 822,514
1 1,165,001 1,170,000 1,168,000
1 1,230,001 1,235,000 1,231,598
1 1,455,001 1,460,000 1,455,500
1 3,855,001 3,860,000 3,855,124
1 5,335,001 5,340,000 5,337,852
1 163,545,001 163,550,000 163,549,991

2,731 205,917,500

Pattern of Shareholding 
As at December 31, 2023
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Categories of Shareholders Number of 
Shareholders

Number of Shares 
held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouses and minor children 13 2,937,509 1.4265 
Associated Companies, Parent Company, undertakings and related Parties 1 163,549,991 79.4250 
NIT and ICP 4 1,522,951 0.7396 
Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations 2 2,399,598 1.1653 
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 15 7,635,761 3.7082 
General Public
a. Local 2,640 19,580,923 9.5091 
b. Foreign 5 5,370,852 2.6083 
Others (to be specified)
1- Joint Stock Companies 39 2,291,824 1.1130 
2- Investment Companies 3 458,567 0.2227 
3- Pension Funds 1 20,500 0.0100 
4- Others 8 149,024 0.0724 

2,731 205,917,500 100.0000 

Shareholders holding 10% or more 1 163,549,991 79.4250 

Pattern of Shareholding 
As at December 31, 2023
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Information required under the Code of Corporate Governance

Categories of Shareholders Number of 
Shares held Percentage

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

SERVICE INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CDC)  163,549,991 79.4250

Mutual Funds

CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND (CDC)  435,000 0.2112
CDC - TRUSTEE AL AMEEN ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND (CDC)  14,307 0.0069
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND (CDC)  246,318 0.1196
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND (CDC)  3,855,124 1.8722
CDC - TRUSTEE APIF - EQUITY SUB FUND (CDC)  90,000 0.0437
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC STOCK FUND (CDC)  822,514 0.3994
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND (CDC)  512,337 0.2488
CDC - TRUSTEE AWT ISLAMIC STOCK FUND (CDC)  18,000 0.0087
CDC - TRUSTEE GOLDEN ARROW STOCK FUND (CDC)  130,000 0.0631
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND (CDC)  22,930 0.0111
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND (CDC)  574,325 0.2789
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND (CDC)  24,113 0.0117
CDC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV. FUND- EQUITY SUB FUND (CDC)  621,793 0.3020
MCBFSL TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND (CDC)  247,500 0.1202
MCBFSL TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND (CDC)  21,500 0.0104

Directors and their spouses and minor children   

CHAUDHRY AHMED JAVED  1 0.0000
MR. ARIF SAEED  1 0.0000
MR. ARIF SAEED (CDC)  782,000 0.3798
MR. OMAR SAEED  1 0.0000
MR. OMAR SAEED (CDC)  1,455,500 0.7068
MR. HASSAN JAVED  1 0.0000
MR. AZMAT ALI RANJHA  1 0.0000
MR. ABDUL RASHID LONE  1 0.0000
MS. MALEEHA HUMAYUN BANGASH  1 0.0000
MR. HASSAN EHSAN CHEEMA  1 0.0000
MR. HASSAN EHSAN CHEEMA (CDC)  400,000 0.1943
MR. QADEER AHMED VASEER  1 0.0000
MR. QADEER AHMED VASEER (CDC)  300,000 0.1457
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Categories of Shareholders Number of 
Shares held Percentage

Executives - -

Public Sector Companies and Corporations - -

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance Companies, 

 Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds  2,420,098 1.1753

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights

SERVICE INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CDC)  163,549,991 79.4250

Trade in shares of the Company by Directors, Executives and their spouses and minor children    
  

Name  Purchase 

MR. HASSAN EHSAN CHEEMA   -  DIRECTOR  150,000 
MR. QADEER AHMED VASEER   -  DIRECTOR  100,000 
MR. USMAN LIAQAT   -  CFO  101,500 

Pattern of Shareholding 
As at December 31, 2023
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I/We_________________________________________________of___________________________________________

_____________ being a member(s) of Service Global Footwear Limited and holder of_______________________ Ordinary Shares 

hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Miss ________________________________________________ of ________________________

or failing him / her __________________________ of __________________ as my/our proxy in my / our absence to attend and 

vote for me / us on my / our behalf at the 5th Annual General Meeting to be held on April 26, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. and / or at any adjournment 

thereof.

 

In witness thereof I / We have signed and set my / our hands seal thereon this________________day of_____________________2024 

in the presence of____________________Signed this _____________________ day of ___________________________ 2024
  

Important:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before 
the time of holding the meeting. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxies are deposited by a member with the Company, 
all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

3. For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities

 In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:
• Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be provided with the proxy form.
• The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.
• In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along 

with proxy form to the Company.

Form of Proxy
5th Annual General Meeting

Account No.
Folio No. 

CDC Account No.

Participant I.D.
Signature on Fifty - Rupees

Revenue Stamp

The Signature should agree 
with the specimen registered 

with the Company.
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The Company Secretary
Service Global Footwear Limited
Servis House, 2-Main Gulberg,
Lahore.
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The Company Secretary
Service Global Footwear Limited
Servis House, 2-Main Gulberg,
Lahore.
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SERVICE GLOBAL FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Registered Office: Servis House 2-Main Gulberg, Lahore.
Phone: +92 42- 35751990-6 
Email: shareholders@servis.com
Website: www.serviceglobalfootwear.com

Ballot Paper For Voting Through Post
(in person and virtual 5th Annual General Meeting to be held at 10:00 a.m. on Friday, April 26, 2024)

Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent: chairman@servis.com

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders
Registered Address 
Number of Shares held (on close of April 19, 2024) and folio number
CNIC No./Passport No (in case of foreigner) (Copy to be attached)
Additional information and enclosures
(In case of representative of body corporate, Corporation and Federal 
Government)  

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolution through postal ballot by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the 
following resolution by picking tick (√) mark in the appropriate box below: 

Sr. No. Name and Description of Resolutions I/We assent to the resolution 
(FOR)

I/We dissent to the resolution 
(AGAINST)

1. “Resolved that pursuant to the requirements of Section 
199 of the Companies Act, 2017, approval of the members 
of Service Global Footwear Limited (the “Company”) 
be and is hereby accorded and the Company be and is 
hereby authorized to renew the investment of up to PKR 
4.5 Billion (Rupees Four Billion Five Hundred Million) 
in the form of working capital loan in Service Industries 
Limited, a holding / associated company, approved by the 
shareholders vide special resolution dated April 28, 2023 
and expiring on June 30, 2024, for a further period of one 
year till June 30, 2025 with all other terms and conditions 
of the investment to remain unchanged.

Further resolved that Mr. Hassan Javed, Chief Executive 
Officer and / or Mr. Arif Saeed, and / or Mr. Omar Saeed, 
Directors of the Company be and is hereby singly 
empowered and authorized to undertake the decision of 
said investment as and when deemed appropriate and 
necessary in the best interest of the Company and its 
shareholders and to take all steps and actions necessary, 
incidental and ancillary including execution of any and 
all documents and agreements as may be required in 
this regard and to do all acts, deeds and things, that may 
be considered necessary or necessary for the purpose of 
implementing this resolution.”
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______________________
Signature of Shareholder(s)    

Place:   
Date: 

NOTES / PROCEDURE FOR SUBMISSION OF BALLOT PAPER:

1. Duly filled and signed original postal ballot should be sent to the Chairman, Mr. Arif Saeed, Service Global Footwear Limited at Servis 
House, 2-Main Gulberg, Lahore or a scanned copy of the original postal ballot to be emailed at: chairman@servis.com

 
2. Copy of CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

3. Postal Ballot forms should reach Chairman of the meeting on or before April 25, 2024 during working hours. Any Postal Ballot 
received after this date, will not be considered for voting.

4. Signature on Postal Ballot should match the signature on CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner).

5. Incomplete, unsigned, in correct, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot papers will be rejected.

6. In case of representative of body corporate and corporation, Postal Ballot must be accompanied with copy of CNIC of authorized person, 
along with a duly attested copy of Board resolution, Power of Attorney, or Authorization Letter in accordance with Section(s) 138 or 139 of 
the Companies Act 2017, as applicable, unless these have already been submitted along with Proxy Form. In case of foreign body corpo-
rate etc., all documents must be attested from the Pakistani Embassy having jurisdiction over the member. 

7. Ballot paper has also been placed on the website of the Company www.serviceglobalfootwear.com. Members may download the ballot 
paper form the website or use original/photocopy published in newspapers.
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نانگزنٹونز میں یف انگزنٹو آنسرن، نیف آنرننگ آنسرن، نیف فنانشل آنسرن، نیڈ آنف انٹرنل 
نآنڈنٹ  نانونر کمپنی سیکرنرنی شانل ہیںن۔

پلاننس ر انک نظر کم�
پلاننس کا بیانن مقرنرنہ  زن، 2019 نی کم� ��

� � ی�ش ڈ کمپنیز )نونڈ آنف کانرنونرنٹ گونرننس( نرنگول�
�
لس���

نکل میں سانانہ رنونرنٹ میں شانع کیا جانا ہے جس کا کمپنی کے  نانونی آنڈنٹرنز ی طرنف سے جانزنہ 
پلاننس کا بیانن کمپنی کے بونرنڈ آنف ڈنانرنٹرنز نے منظونرنکیا  نیا جانا ہے انونر تصدنق ی جانی ہے کہ کم�

نہےن۔

نسانانہ گونونانرنونں ی تیانرنی کے بعد تبدنیانں
31ندنبر 2023 نسے لے کر 21نرنونرنی 2024 ) نآنڈنت رنونرنٹ ی انرنخ (نک انس سانانہ 
نرنونرنٹ  نمیں وني تبدنلي انسي نہيں ہوني جو کہ انس ماني گونونانرنے رنانر اندنانز ہو ما سونانے 31 
ندنبر 2023 نو ختم ہوننے ونانلے ماني سانل  نکا انلانن برنانے حتمي ڈنونڈنڈ 2 نرنونے في شيئر )نني  
20نصد( نجس ی اندنانگي حصص يانگانن کے سانانہ انلانس عانم میں منظونر کرننے سے مشرنونط ہےن۔ 

نانہانرِ نکر
نڈنانرنٹرنز حصص يانگانن ی تہہ دنل سے  نعرنف کا انہانر کرنا چانہیں گے جنہونں نے کمپنی ی غیر 

نتزنزنل حمانت جانرنی رنھین۔ 

نم سرنونس گرنونپ کے تمانم ملانزنین ی انھک ونشونںن، نگن انونر عزنم کے لیے اننی مخلصانہ عرنف بھی 
نبرنملا  نکرنا چانتے ہیں انونر یقین رنتے ہیں کہ ونہ مستقبل میں بھی انسا کرنے رنہیں گےن۔

نم اننے صانرنینن، نلانرنز انونر بینکرنز کا انن ی کمپنی کے سانھ مسلسل تعانونن انونر حمانت  نکانبھی شکرنہ 
ناندنا کرنے ہیں ۔

 

نم آننے ونانلے سانونں میں بہتر نتانج حانل کرننے کیلئے ر عزنم ہیںن۔ 
 

نجانب بونرنڈ

حسن جانوند نعانرنف سعید 
نئرنین    نف  نانگزنٹو 

نونرنہ رنونرنی 21ن، 2024
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نڈنانرنٹرنز
نونجوندنہ بونرنڈ آنف ڈنانرنٹرنز )"نبونرنڈ"( نکا انخانب 26 نئی 2023 نو ہونا تھان۔ ہ و )9(نڈنانرنٹرنز ر 
نتمل ہےن۔ جس میں ین )3( نانڈننڈنٹ ڈنانرنٹرنز ن،نانک )1( نانونن ڈنانرنٹرنیت  ن، نین )3( نانن 
نانگزنٹو  نڈنانرنٹرنز ئر ین یت انونر ین )3( نانگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹرنز یف انگزنٹو  نیت ن، نشانل ہیںن۔

نجو ماني سانل کے دنونرنانن کسی بھی ونت اندنانرنے کے ڈنانرنٹر تھے انن انرناند کے انم دنرنج ذنل ہیں:
ننانب عانرنف سعیدن، نئرنینن، نانن انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر	 
ننانب حسن جانوندن، نیف انگزنٹو آنسرن، نانگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر	 
نوندنرنی انمد جانوندن، نانن انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر	 
ننانب عمر سعیدن، نانن انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر	 
ننانب عظمت علی رنانھان، نانڈننڈنٹ  نڈنانرنٹر	 
ننانب عبدنانرنید وننن، نانڈننڈنٹ  نڈنانرنٹر	 
نترنہ ملیحہ ہمانونں بنگشن، نانڈننڈنٹ  نڈنانرنٹر	 
ننانب حسن انسانن چیمہن، نانگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر	 
ننانب قدنر انمد ونیرن، نانگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر	 

 نبونرنڈ آنف ڈنانرنٹرنز کے انلانس
نانس سانل 7 نبونرنڈ میٹنگز ہونیںن۔ ممبرنانن ی حانرنی مندنرنہ ذنل ہےن۔

نحانرنی نہدنہ نڈنانرنٹرنز

7/7 نئرنین ننانب عانرنف سعید

7/7 نیف انگزنٹو آنسر ننانب حسن جانوند

0/7 نڈنانرنٹر نوندنرنی انمد جانوند

6/7 نڈنانرنٹر ننانب عمر سعید

5/7 نڈنانرنٹر ننانب عظمت علی رنانھا

7/7 نڈنانرنٹر ننانب عبدنرنید ونن

5/7 نڈنانرنٹر ہہ ہمانونں بنگش نترنہ مل�ی�

7/7 نڈنانرنٹر ننانب حسن انسانن چیمہ

7/7 نڈنانرنٹر ننانب قدنر انمد ونیر
نبونرنڈ نے دنو کمیٹیانں تشکیل دنی ہیں ني آنڈنٹ کمیٹی انونر ہیونن رنسونرنس اننڈ رنمونرنشن کمیٹین۔ 

نکمیٹیانں دنرنج ذنل ممبرنانن ر تمل تھیںن۔

نآنڈنٹ کمیٹی
نآنڈنٹ کمیٹی انس ونت ین انرنانین رنتمل ہے جس میں سے دنو انڈننڈنٹ ڈنانر ٹرنز ہیں انونر انک 

نانن انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر ہےن۔ کمیٹی کا ئر ین انڈننڈنٹ ڈنانر ٹر ہےن۔ انس کمیٹی کے حونانلے ی 
نرنانط  نکانرنونرنٹ گونرننس کے ضانطہ انلانق رنگونشن کے مطانق ترنیب دنی گئیں ہیں انونر کمیٹی و 

نانس ی تعمیل کر نے کا مشونرنہ دنيا گیا ہےن۔

نکمیٹی ی انس سانل  4 نمیٹنگز ہونیںن۔ ہر ممبر ی حانرنی دنرنج ذنل ہے:
نحانرنی نہدنہ نممبرنانن

4/4 نئرنین / نانڈننڈنٹ  نڈنانرنٹر ننانب عبدنانرنید ونن

3/4 نممبر / انن انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر ننانب عمر سعید

4/4 نممبرن/ نانڈننڈنٹ ڈنانرنٹر ہہ ہمانونں بنگش نترنہ مل�ی�

ی�ونیرنشن کمیٹی یم� نہیونن رنسونرنس انونرنر�
ی�ونیرنشن کمیٹی میٹی ین انرنانین ر تمل ہے جن میں سے انک انڈننڈنٹ  یم� نہ ہیونن رنسونرنس انونرنر�
نڈنانر ٹرن، نانک انن انگز ٹونڈنانر ٹرنانونر انک انگز ٹو ڈنانرنٹر ہیںن۔ کمیٹی کا ئر ین انڈننڈنٹ 
نڈنانر ٹر ہےن۔ کمیٹی انگز ٹونز کے معانونےن، نانکی کانر کرندنگنی کے جانزنے انونر جانینی ی منصونہ 

نندنی ونغیرنہ کے بانرنے میں اننی سفانرنشانت بونرنڈ و پیش کرنے ہیںن۔

نکمیٹی ی انس سانل 2 نمیٹنگز ہونیں ۔ ہر ممبر ی حانرنی دنرنج ذنل ہے:

نحانرنی نہدنہ نممبرنانن

2/2 نئرنین / نانڈننڈنٹ نڈنانرنٹر ننانب عظمت علی رنانھا

2/2 نممبر / انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر ننانب حسن جانوند

2/2 نممبر / انن انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر ننانب عمر سعید

نیرنونی آنڈنٹرنز
س ن، نرنٹانر ہونئے ہیں انونر اننی انيت 

����
نونجوندنہ آنڈنٹرنز ميسرنز رنيانض انمد اننڈ کمپنی ن، نچانرنرنڈ انکانؤ����

نی بنياند ر دنونبانرنہ تقرنرنی کے لئے خوند و پیش کرنے ہیںن۔ بونرنڈ آنف ڈنانرنٹر ز کمپنی کے آنڈنٹر کے 
نونر ر انن ی دنونبانرنہ تقرنرنی کے لئے آنڈنٹ کمیٹی ی سفانرنش ی ونيق کرنے ہیںن۔

 نرنٹانرننٹ ی سہونیانت میں سرنمانہ کانرنی
نکمپنی اننے ملانزنین کے لیے رنٹا رننٹ ی سہونیانت ی منصونہ ندنی رنتی ہے جو کہ متعلقہ بونرنڈ 

نآنف رنیز کے مطانق ہےن۔ نسرنونس انڈنٹرنز نيٹڈنی ڈنانرنٹرنز رنونرنٹ میں متعلقہ غیر آنڈنٹ 
ندنہ مانیانی بیانانت کے مطانق انن فنڈنز ی سرنمانہ کانرنی ی ی تفصیل ونانع ونر ر بیانن ی گئی ہےن۔

نحصص يانگانن ی تفصیل
نمقرنرنہ فانرنم 34 نمیں 31 ندنبر 2023 نو حصص يانگانن ی تفصیل کے بانرنے میں معلونمانت سانانہ 
نرنونرنٹ میں شانل ہےن۔  نڈنانرنٹرنزن، نانگزنٹونز انونر انن ی رنک حیانت انونر انبانغ بچونں ی کمپنی کے 

نحصص ی خرند و رنونت ی تفصیل بھی  نانس رنونرنٹ میں شانل ہےن۔
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نسرنونس انگ مانرنچ ٹانرنز ی غیر معموني کانرنکرندنی نے انس منصونے ر ہمانرنے انماند ی ونيق کر دنی ہےن۔ 
نمستقبل غیر معموني ونر ر انید انزنا نظر آنرنا ہےن، نانونر م انید کرنے ہیں کہ سرنونس انگ مانرنچ ٹانرنزن، 

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ  نکے مستقبل کے منانع میں انطر خونانہ حصہ ڈنانلے ین۔

نکانرنونرنٹ گونرننس کے بہترنن طرنقونں ر عمل
نکمپنی تمانم ممکنہ انلانی انونر انونی ضونانط ر ونرنا انترننے انونر کانرنونبانر و انلیٰ نترنن پیشہ ونرنانہ انونر انلانی 
نیانرنانت انونر طرنقونں کے مطانق چلاننے کے لیے رنعزنم ہےن۔ بونرنڈننے لگا انر بہترنی کیلئے انک 
نطرنقہ کانر تشکیل کر دنيا ہے جو کہ لگا انر ونجوندنہ طرنقونں و جانتا رنتا ہے انونر ہ انس بانت کا  نبھی تقانضا 
نکر ا ہے کہ کمپنی میں ونت کے سانھ سانھ تبدنلي آنے انونر جب منانب ونانع آنیں و کمپنی انس 
نکیلئے تیانر ہون۔ چنانچہ کمپنی مانرنیٹ میں دنیانب بہترنن ملانزنین حانل کرنے انونر انن و ونہ مہانرنت 
نانونر ونانع دنے جس سے ونہ انعلی اندنانف و حانل کرننے ونانلے بن جانیںن۔ کمپنی لگانانر اننی مصنونعانت 
نی انسانم کا جانزنہ لیتی رنتی ہے ا کہ معانرنے کے ب سے انم مسئلہ کا حل نکانل سکےن، نانونر انس 

نطرنح اننے حصص يانگانن کے لیے لگانانر منانع پیدنا کرنی رنہےن۔

نکمپنی اندنرنونی کنٹرنونز انونر کانم کرننے کے طرنقونں کا جانزنہ  نلیتی رنتی ہے ا کہ شفانف ماني معلونمانت 
نرنانم ہو سکےن، نقوناند و قونانین سے م آنگی انونر اندنرنونی کنٹرنونل کے نظانم ی پانندنی و یقینی بنانيا جا 

نسکے ۔ انس طرنح ہمیں اننی رنونڈنشن میں قدنر بڑناننے کا دنف بھی حانل ہو ا ہےن۔

 نکانرنونرنٹ انونر مانیانی رنونرننگ کے رنم ونرنک ر ڈنانرنٹرنز کے بیانانت
نکانرنونرنٹ انونر مانیانی رنونرننگ کے رنم ونرنک ر ڈنانرنٹرنز کے بیانانت دنرنج ذنل ہیں:

1 ن۔ انظانیہ کے تیانر کرندنہ ماني گونونانرنے ن،نکمپنی کے معانملانتن، نکانم کرننے کے نتانجن، نیش فلو انونر 
نانکونٹی میں تبدنلي و انحسن طرنقے سے پیش کرنے ہیںن۔

2 ن۔ کمپنی نے انھی طرنح سے انکانونٹس کے کھانے تیانر کر رنھے ہیںن۔
3 ن۔ ماني گونونانرنونں انونر انکانئوننٹنگ کے تخمینونں ی تیانرنی میں منانب انکا ئو نٹنگ پانسیونں و تسلسل 

نکے سانھ انعمانل کیا جانرنا ہے انونر انکانؤننٹنگ کے تخمینے معقونل انونر دنانمندنانہ فیصلے ر مبنی ہیںن۔ 
4 ن۔ ماني گونونانرنونں ی تیانرنی پانتانن میں انگو ہوننے ونانلے بین انقونانی ماني رنوننگ میعانرنانت کے 

نمطانق ی گئی ہےن۔ 
5 ن۔ کمپنی نے ٹھونس اندنرنونی کنٹر ونز انگو کر رنھے ہیں جس سے یقینی بنانيا جانا ہے کہ غلط معلونمانت ہ 
نلے انونر نقصانن ہ ہون۔ اندنرنونی کنٹر ونز کے نظانم کا با اند ی سے جانزنہ یا جا ا ہےن۔ انس نظانم و بونرنڈ 

نی حسب کمیٹی نے بانضانطہ کل دنی ہے  نانونر حسب رنونرنت بہتر کیا جا ا ہےن۔
6 ن۔ کمپنی کے لگانانر چلنے میں کسی قسم کا وني شک نہيں ہےن۔

7 ن۔ کانرنونرنٹ گونرننس کے بہترنن طرنقونں سے ہٹنے کے وني وناند نہيں ہےن۔
8 ن۔ پچھلے  4 نسانونں کے انم آنرننگ انونر ماني اندناندنونمانرنانس سانانہ رنونرنٹ میں دنرنج ہےن۔ 

نتند اندنرنونی ماني کنٹر ونز
�ز ہوننے کا جانزنہ لیتے رننے کے ذنہ دنانر ہیںن۔ کمپنی نے 

ش  نڈنانرنٹرنز اندنرنونی مانیانی کنٹرنونل کے نو�ئ�
�ز نظانم انيانر کیا ہونا ہے جو کہ کمپنی کے انانہ جانت ی حفانت 

ش ناندنرنونی انونر ماني کنٹر ونل کا انہاني و�ئ�

نو یقینی بنانا ہےن، ندنونکہ دني ی شنانت کر ا ہےن، نانس سے بچانا ہے انونر متعلقہ قونانین ی پاندنانرنی 
نو یقینی بنانا ہےن۔  نبونرنڈ اننی مجمونی ذنہ دنانرنی و نبھانا ہےن،  ناندنرنونی آنڈنٹ کا شعبہ جو کہ  نبونرنڈ نے 
م کیا ہےن، ناندنرنونی کنٹرنونل کے نظانم ی منانب ونفہ سے نظر انی انونر نگرنانی 

ش نانیانط سے کے م���
نکرنا ہےن۔ بونرنڈ ی آنڈنٹ کمیٹی اننے مرنونہ طرنقے کے مطانق سہ ماني بنياند ر اندنرنونی کنٹرنونل سسٹم 

�ز ہوننے کا کا جانزنہ لیتی ہےن۔
ش نکے و�ئ�

نمتعلقہ پانرنی سے لین دنن
زن، 2019 نانونر انل انلانق قونانین انونر  ��

� � ی�ش ڈ کمپنیز )نونڈ آنف کانرنونرنٹ گونرننس( نکے نرنگول�
�
لس���

نضونانطن، نتمانم متعلقہ رنق کے لین دنن ی تفصیلانت آنڈنٹ کمیٹی کے ساننے رنھی جانی ہیں انونر آنڈنٹ 
نکمیٹی ی سفانرنشانت و بونرنڈ کے ساننے جانزنہ انونر منظونرنی کے لیے پیش کیا جانا ہےن۔ مندنرنہ بانا کے 
نلانونہن، نسا کہ کمپنیز انکٹن، 2017 نکے تحت رنونرنی ہےن، نمعاندنونں ی تفصیلانت انونر انس طرنح 

نکے معاندنونں میں دنانل ہوننے کے جونانز ونمتعلقہ ماني بیانانت کے ونس  نمیں ظانہر کیا گیا ہےن۔

نڈنانرنٹرنز کا معانونہ
زن،  ��

� � ی�ش ڈ کمپنیز )نونڈ آنف کانرنونرنٹ گونرننس(ن، نرنگول�
�
نکمپنی کے پانس کمپنیز انکٹن، 2017ن، لس���

2019 نانونر کمپنی کے آنرنکلز آنف انسونی انشن ی دنعانت کے مطانق اننے ڈنانرنٹرنز کے معانونے 
نکے لیے انک بانضانطہ پانسي انونر شفانف طرنقہ کانر ہےن۔ انس بونرنڈ سے منظونر دنہ  نپانسي کے انم 

ننکانت دنرنج ذنل ہیں:

اندنا 	  نکمپنی اننے انن انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر بشمونل انڈننڈنٹ ڈنانر ٹرنز و وني معانونہ نہيں 
انلانس میں شانل ہونںن۔ بونرنڈ يا کمیٹی  ونہ کسی  انس کے کہ  نمانسونانے  نکرنے ین، 

نکمپنی بونرنڈ يا کمیٹی انلانس میں شانل ہوننے سے متعلقہ سفرنی  نانونر رنانشی انخرنانجانت اندنا 	 
نکرنے ین۔

نڈنانر ٹرنز کے معانونہ ی پانسي ر ونتاً نونتاً ننظر انی ی جانے ی انونر انس ی منظونرنی 	 
ندنی جانے ی ۔

31 ندنبر 2023 نو ختم ہوننے ونانلے سانل کے دنونرناننن، نمعانونے کے لیے مانیانی گونونانرنونں میں 
ندنرنج ذنل رنقونم ونونل ی گئیں جن میں یف انگزنٹو آنسر ن، نانگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹرنزنانونر انن انگزنٹو 

نڈنانرنٹرنز ی دنگر مرنانعانت شانل ہیں:

 107.199 نین رنونے )2022:  73.312 نین رنونے( نیف انگزنٹو آنسر و اندنا 	 
ئےن۔ نیے 

ندنو انگزنٹو ڈنانرنٹر و 59.945 نین رنونے )2022: 49.723 نین( ناندنا یے ئےن۔	 
ڈنانرنٹرنز و   	  انگزنٹو  دنو  )ESOS(  نکے تحت   2020 انیم  انٹانک آننز  نانپلانز 

 :2022( تھےن۔   ئے  دنئے  آننز  نشيئر   100,000 ر  قیمت  ی  شيئر  في  30نرنونے 
تھےن۔( ئے  دنئے  ر  قیمت  ی  شيئر  في  آننز10نرنونے  نشيئر   250,000

انگزنٹو 	  نشيئرنزن(ندنو   450,000 :2022( نشيئرنز   250,000 دنونرنانن   نانس سانل کے 
انانٹ یے ئے تھےن۔ نڈنانرنٹرنز و پہلے سانونں میں دنے ئے شيئر آننز کے عونض 

2.16 نین رنونے )2022: 1.84 نین رنونے( نین ڈنانرنٹرنز و میٹنگ فیس کے ونر 	 
نر اندنا یے ئےن۔
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نعزنم و ونرنا کرننے کے ونانع ی جگہ بنے رنہیں گےن۔

3( گونرننس 
 �نن(  کانرنونرنٹ گونرننس

نکانرنونرنٹ گونرننس بھی کمپنی کیلئے انم مقانم رنتی ہےن، SGFL ننےنانک  نجانع IMS نرنونگرنانم 
ISO 14001/2015 )نمانحونیانی  ISO 9001/2015 )نونانٹی مینجمنٹ(ن،  نانذ کیا ہے جو 
نمینجمنٹ(ن،  )ISO 45001/2018 ) نکانم کرننے کے طرنقونں میں کانرننونں ی حفانتن(ن۔ 
 CTPAT نبانرنرنی مینجمنٹ سسٹمن(نسے تصدنق دنہ ہےن۔ن۔ م( ISO 17025/2017 نانونر

س�� ٹیرنرنزنم ( نسے بھی  نتصدنق دنہ ہیںن۔
)نٹمز رنڈ پانرننرنپ ناگ�ی��

��ز ہمانرنے پیدنانونانرنی عملن، نتلف شعبونں کے انظانمانت ی صحت ی ونيق کرنے نہیںن، 
� � ی�ش یف�یک� �

� �
 نہ نسر

نکہ عانمی  نطح ر ہمانرنی  نونانٹی و تسلیم کرنوناننے  ن، نیانر ی بہترنین، نپیدنانونانرنی صلانیت میں انضانہن، 
نرنک مینجمنٹن، نمانرنیٹ ک رنساني کے طرنقہ کانرن، نقونانین و ضونانط ی تعمیلن، نمانحونیانت کا تحفظ ن، نانکونں 
نانونر لانر سے متعلقہ معانملانتن، نملانزنین ی انم معانملانت میں شمونیت  نانونر کانم کے طرنقونں میں مسلسل 

نبہترنی اننے ی لئے انک طرنقہ کانر رنانم کرنے ہیںن۔ 

نبن(  کانرنونبانرنی انلانيانت
نانل انلانق قونانین انونر ضونانط ی مکمل تعمیل کرنے ہونے دنيانتدنانرنی کے سانھ کانرنونبانر کرننے کا ہمانرنا 
نعزنم انعلی انلانيانت  نر سخت زنونر دننے ی عکانی کرنا ہےن۔ انلانيانت انونر کانرنونبانرنی طرنز عمل کا بیانیہن، 
نجو انلیٰ نترنن انلانی یانرنانت کے مطانق کانم کرننے کے لیے کمپنی ی پانسي و نمانيانں کرنا ہےنانونر  نانک 
نانسے کانرنونبانرنی مانحونل و برنرنانر رننے کے لیے انس گن ی نشاندني کرنا ہے جو دنيانتدنانرنی انونر قونانین 

نو ضونانط ی تعمیل و ترنیح دنتا ہےن۔

نتمانم انونی ضونانط ی تعمیل کرننے انونر اندنانرنونں کے لیے بنانے ئے بہترنن یانرنانت ر عمل کرننے کا 
نعزنم انیک ہونڈنرنز بشمونل صانرنینن، نملانزنینن، نسرنمانہ کانرنونں انونر ونیع تر کمیونٹی کے دنرنیانن انماند 
نپیدنا کرننے کے لیے رنونرنی ہےن۔ ہ عزنم ہ صرنف انونی تقانضونں کے سانھ مطانقت رنتا ہے بلکہ 
نکمپنی ی شنانت انک ذنہ دنانر اندنانرنے کے ونر ر کرنونانا ہے جو انلانی طرنز عمل انونر سمانی ذنہ دنانرنی 

نو انیت دنتا ہےن۔

نقونی محصونانت میں ہمانرنا حصہ
نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ کا ٹیکسن، نڈنونی انونر محصونانت ی مد میں قونی خزناننے میں انک انم سانانہ 
 نرنانت ہےن۔2023 نمیں سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ نے 267 نین رنونے انس مد میں اندنا کئےن۔

نکمپنی ی سمانی ذنہ دنانرنی 
نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ و سرنونس انڈنٹرنز يٹڈ ی طرنح اندنانرنونں و عطیانت دننے ی  نرنونانت 
نر عمل کر کہ سمانی ونر ر بانعونر کانرنونبانرنی اندنانرنہ بننے کے نظرنہ کے سانھ تشکیل دنيا گیا ہےن۔ پچھلی کئی 
ندنانیونں کے دنونرناننن، نگرنونپ صحت انونر تعلیم میں انم فلانی کانونں میں شانل رنا ہےن۔ سرنونس گلونل 
نفٹ ونئر يٹڈ کا مقصد اننے ملانزنینن، نصانرنینن، نشيئر ہونڈنرنز انونر متعلقہ آنباندنونں ی خدنت کرنا انونر 

نمانحونل ی بہترنی کے لیے ونش کرنا ہےن۔ 

نکمپنی کا انرناندنہ بانکل ساندنہ ہے: نونٹانان، نخونحاني باننا انونرنانحسن طرنقے سے ونگونں ی تعمیرنونترنی کرننے 
نمیں مدند کرنان۔ ہ کمپنی ی سمانی ذنہ دنانرنی  نکے انک جانع نقطہ نظر ی عکانی کرنا ہےن، نجو تلف انیک 

نہونڈنرنز ر مثبت انرنانت ر زنونر دنتا ہےن۔

نسانل 2023نکے دنونرناننن، نکمپنی نے سمانی ذنہ دنانرنی سرنگرنيونں ی مد میں 10نین رنونے کا عطيہ 
نکیان۔ ہ ماني تعانونن کمپنی ی سمانی بہبوندن، نآنباندنونں ی ترنین، نانونر مانحونیانی پانیدنانرنی میں حصہ ڈناننے ی 

نٹھونس ونشونں و ظانہر کرنی ہےن۔

نمستقبل ر انک نظر
     SGFL نہمیں یقین ہے کہ ونجوندنہ معانی حانانت کے ب قطع نظر سانل 2024 نانونر انس کے بعد
نکا مستقبل رنونن ہےن۔ ہ انماند انس حقیقت سے حانل ہونا ہے کہ کمپنی نے سانل 2023 نمیں مشکل 

نکانرنونبانرنی منظر انے کے بانونجوندنغیر معموني نتانج حانل یے ہیں ۔

نم نے سیلز کے نظانم و مزند منظم کرنکہ اننی سیلز ی ونشونں و تقونت بخشی ہےنانونر انطرنح انیت کے 
نحانل مزند انکونں و شانل کیا جا سکتا ہےن۔ کچھ نئے انکونں  نسے سانل 2023 نمیں ي معانملانت 
نے پا چکے  نہیںن، نکہ سانل 2024 نانونر انس کے بعد نمو حانل کرننے کے لئے  نمزند انکونں سے 
نرنونانط جانرنی عمل ہیںن۔ ونرنی ونین ی منڈنونں میں ہمانرنی رنساني مزند مضبونط ہو رني ہےن، نکہ انب 
نہمیں انمرنکی مانرنیٹ میں بھی ہمانرنے قدنم مضبونط ہو چکے ہیں جس سے مستقبل میں تیز رنتانر ترنی کے 

نبڑنے ونانع حانل ہو گے ۔

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ و انک انک دنونت اندنانرنہ ہوننے ر فخر ہےن، نم اننے انل قدنر انکونں 
نکے سانھ ونل انمدنی تعلقانت انم کرننے ر یقین رنتے ہیں انونر انس حکمت عملی نے مشکل حانانت 
نمیں اننے انکونں کے ترنحی لانر بن کر  نکمپنی و فاندنہ پہنچانيا ہےن۔ نئی انکونں کے لیے ہمانرنی خدنمانت 
نتلف نہيں ہیں جس سے سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ ی سانھ انک متنونع انونر انل انماند لانر پانرننر 
نکے ونر ر مظبونط ہو رني ہےن۔ ہ ہمیں اننے صانرنین کے سانھ ونل مدنی کانرنونبانرنی منصونبونں ر 

نباندنہ خیانل کرننے انونر اننی ونعی حکمت عملی ی بنياند رننے میں معانونن ہےن۔

نس منظر میںن، نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ ہمانرنے انل قدنر انکونں کے لیے انل انماند پانرننر بننے 
نکے لیے تلف انقدنانمانت جانرنی رنھے ان۔ انم انقدنانمانت میں شانل ہیںن۔

ننئے انکونں ی رنونرنيانت و ونرنا کرننے کے لیے پیدنانونانرنی سہونیانت میں بہترنی	 
 

نمہانرنت ی بہترنین، نمصنونعانت کےنپیدنانونانرنی مرنانحل کا رنکانرنڈ رننا انونر تجرنہ کانر غیر ملکی 	 
نونسانل کے ذنرنعے کانرنکرندنی و بڑناننے کے لیے نئے منصونبونں ر کانم رنونع کرنان۔

 
ی انرناندنی قونت ر بہت زنياندنہ ونسانل صرنف 	 

� پ� نم ونیع ترنتی رنونگرنانم کے ذنرنعے سے �ی�
نکر رنہے ہیںن، نمقانی انونر بین انانقونانی طح ر دنیانب بہترنن انرناندنی قونت ی خدنمانت 

نحانل کر رنہے ہیںن۔
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نانسکے حل شانل ہیں ۔ رنک ی انن تلف ونجونانت و حل کرنے ہونےن، SGFL نکا مقصد غیر یقینی 
نونرنحانل سے نپٹنے ی اننی صلانیت و مضبونط کرنا ہےن۔

گ 
��
ج�� � نلانونہ انزنںن، نيئر انظانیہ ی ٹيم کمپنی انونر انس کے کانرنونبانرنی شعبونںنکیلئے انک انہاني تفصيلي �ج

نانونر منصونہ ندنی کرنی ہے جس میں SWOT Analysis نکمپنی انونر انسکے شعبونںنکیلئے شانل 
نہےن۔ انس ی بنياند ر انم مسانل کے حل ر ونہ دنی جانی ہےن، نونانع ڈنونڈنے جانے ہیںن۔نانونر 
ی�انر اندنانف حانل کئے  نھرنانشن پلانن بنانے جانے ہیںن، نانن ر عمل دنرنآنمد کیا جانا ہے ا کہ ونل نالمع�

نجانيںن۔

انونر منصونہ ندنی کے عمل میں شانل کر کےن،  اننی مجمونی کانرنونبانرنی حکمت عملی  نرنک مینجمنٹ و 
SGFL نکلانت سے نپٹنےن، نمضبونط مانیانی صحت و یقینی بناننےن، نانونر پانیدنانر ترنی کے حصونل کے 
جک ر ک مینجمنٹ کے لیے ہ عزنم کمپنی و بدنتے  �

ی�� نلیے انک عانل حکمت عملی کا مظانہرنہ کرنا ہےن۔ انٹر�
نہونے حانانت کے مطانق ڈناننے انونر اننی صنعت میں انھرنے ہونے ونانع سے فاندنہ انھاننے کیلئے تیانر 

نرنتا ہےن۔
 

ے ی حکمت عملی
� م�پ���

� نرنک سے � نرنک ی قسم  نرنک

نانن خطرنانت سے نمٹنے کے لیے کمپنی نے  نانیانط سے حکمت 
�ڈنہ حانانت 

�ی��
نلیانں تیانر کر رنھی ہےن۔ انن میں بجٹ بنانان،نآ�ئ

گن، 
ج�� نکے تخمینے لگانان، نمنصونہ ندنین، نبرنونت فیصلہ کرنان، �ہ�ی�

ل و منانب طح ر 
نبرنآنمدنانت میں انضانہن، نونرننگ ک�ی�پ�ی��

نرننان، ننکونں سے رنضونں کا منانب انظانم انونر حکونتی پانسي ر 
نڑنی نظر رننا شانل ہیں

نمانیانی رنک میں انصاندنی 
نرنکن،  نکرنڈنٹ رنک 
نانونر لیکونڈنٹی رنک شانل 

نہیںن۔

نمانیانی رنک

نکمپنی نے مذنونرنہ خطرنانت سےننمٹنے کے لیے تلف سطحونں ر 
نحکمت لیانں تیانر کر رنھی ہیںن۔ انس میں BMR ن، نونسانل 
نکا ونر انعمانل انونرنانظانم ن،نمصنونعانت ی ترنیل کا مضبونط انونر 
نجھا ہونا نیٹ ونرنکن، نانم مانل مہیا کرننے کا مضبونط نظانمن، نبرنانڈ 
نڈنونمنٹن، نبڑنے پیماننے ر پیدنانونانرنی انعدناند  ن، نکنانونی 
نسے فاندنہ انھانان، نانونر انعلی صلانیت ی مانک انرناندنی قونت کا 

نانعمانل  نشانل ہیںن۔ .

سیانی  میں  نرنک  ندنگر 
ن،  متعلقہ  سے  ن،نکنانونی 
نمسانتین، نقونانین انونر مانحونیانی 

ہیں- شانل  نضونانط 

ندنگرنرنک

نمانحونیانت ر کمپنی کے کانرنونبانر کے انرنانت
نمانحونلن، سمانی ذنہ دنانرنی انونر گونرننس

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ  صنعتونں میں مرنونج بہترنن طرنقونں و برنونے کانر اننے میں ب 
نسے آنگے رننے کے لیے ونشانں ہےن۔ م ESG )نمانحونیانین، سمانی انونر کانرنونرنٹ گونرننسن( کے تمانم 

نشعبونں میں بہترنن طرنقونں و رنانج رنتے ہیںن۔

1( نمانحونیانت
نگرنن انونر صانف مانحونل کے زنمرنے میں  نہمانرنے عزنم ی انید انس حقیقت سے ہو سکتی ہے کہ م 
نانس خطے میں شمسی وناناني سے چلنے وناني پہلی فیکٹرنونں میں سے انک ہیںن۔ مانحونیانی ياندنت کا ہ مشن  
نسرنونس انڈنٹرنز نيٹڈ سے ڈنمرنرنسے پہلے2017 نمیں 1 نگانونانٹ سونر پانونر پانرنک ی تنصیب 
نکے سانھ رنونع ہونا انونر م نے گرنن انرنی ر اننا انصانر بڑنانا جانرنی رنکھا انونر في انونت 2 نگانونانٹ 
نسونر پانونر انعمانل کر رنہے ہیں جو ہمانرنی بجلی ی نصف رنونرنيانت و ونرنا کرنی ہےن۔ انک منصونہ جس کا 

نآنانز کانرنبن فٹ رنٹ و کم کرننے کے مقصد سے  نکیا گیا تھان، ندنرنحقیقت سستی بجلی پیدنا کرننے کے  
نانک ونر طرنقہ کے ونر ر منانع بخش  نہونگیا ہےن۔

Facility Environ�( FEM HIGGونئر يٹڈ نسرنونس گلونل فٹ  برنآنںن،   نمزند 
mental Module( نسے بھی تصدنق دنہ ہےن، نہ ہمانرنے پیدنانونانرنی عمل کے تمانم شعبونں 
نمیں بہترنن مانحونل دنونت طرنقونں ی گوناني دنتا ہےن۔ م نے اننے انم مانل  نکے حصونل و بھی 
RCS )نرنی سانکل کلیم انینڈنرنڈ( نکے سانھ مرنبونط کیا ہےن۔ پیکنگ کے ذنرنانع FSC نیانرنانت 
نکے ونانق حانل کئے جانے ہیںن، نجو انم مانل کے ضیانع و کم کرننے انونر خرندنانرنی انونر انعمانل کے 

نبہترنن طرنقونں کے انعمانل میں مدند کرنا ہےن۔

2( نسمانی ذنہندنانرنی
نہمیں انک انلانيانت ی پاندنانرنی کرننے ونانا اندنانرنہ ہوننے ر فخر ہے جو ہ صرنف ہمانرنے کانرنن ی 
نحفانت انونر دنکھ بھانل ی اننی انونی ذنہ دنانرنونں و ونرنا کرنی ہے بلکہ ثقانتی رنم و رنونانج ی بھی قدنر 
نکرنی ہے انونر سمانی بہبوند و رنونغ دنتی ہےن۔ م تلف گونرننگ بانڈنز سے تصدنق دنہ ہیں جیسے کہ:

یکل ڈنٹا انچینج(	  ھ�
ت ی� SEDEX )نلانر ا�

�و(	 
� �ی�

ی�ش �
پلاننس ا�� BSCI )نزنس سونل کم�

 SLCP )نسونل اننڈ لیبر نونرننس رنونگرنانم(	 
 HIGG FSLM )نسہونت سمانی انونر مزندنونر مانڈنونل(	 

نہ سرنکیشن انسانی حقونقن، نانٹرنشنل لیبر آنرننانزنشن )ILO( نکے نوننزن، نانونر قونی لیبر قونانین کے 
نمطانق کانم کرننے کے طرنقونں و رنونغ دننے کے لیے ہمانرنے عزنم ی نشاندني کرنے ہیںن۔ نسرنونس 
نگلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ ناننی انرناندنی قونت کے سانھ منصفانہن، نانلانی انقدنانر کے ونانقن، نانونر ترنحی بنياند 
نر معانملانت و ے کرننے و یقینی بناننےن، نصحت مند انونر بانونانر کانم کرننے کے مانحونل و رنونغ دننے 

نکے لیے رنعزنم ہےن۔

نانن کے لانونہن، نم تلف بین انانقونانی برنانڈنز کے ڑنے ضانطہ انلانق سے تصدنق دنہ ہیںن۔ م 
نسمانی قونانین ی تعمیل سے متعلق ہر قسم کے آنڈنٹ کا ہمیشہ خیرنقدنم کرنے ہیں انونر م اننی انرناندنی قونت 

نکے مفاندنانت انونر سیفٹی کے تحفظ میں بہترنی ی تجانونز و ہمیشہ خونش آنمدند کہتے ہیںن۔

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ نملانزنت کے مسانونی ونانع رنانم کرننے کا آنر ہوننے ر فخر محسونس کرنا 
نہے انونر اننی انرناندنی قونت میں تنونع انونر شمونیت و عانل ونر ر رنونغ دنتا ہےن۔ کمپنی متنونع انونر ب 
نکے لئے مسانونی انونر سانزنانر مانحونل و رنونغ دننے کے عزنم کا مظانہرنہ کرنے ہونے خونانین انونر معذنونر 

نانرناند ی رنت ی حونلہ انزناني کرنی ہےن۔

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ ناننے ونل عرنے سے خدنمانت انجانم دننے ونانلے ونگونں ی بھی قدنر 
نکرنا ہے جنہونں نے اندنانرنے و انس مقانم ک پہنچاننے میں کلیدنی کرندنانر اندنا کیا ہے جہانں ہ آنج کھڑنا 
نہےن۔ انس سانلن، نم نے انم ہدنونں ر 25 نسانل سے زنياندنہ تجرنہ کے حانل 16 نانرناند ونانن ی لگانانر 

ننت ر انعزنانز سے ونانزنا ہے جنہونں نے کمپنی کے سانھ سانھ ترنی ی ہےن۔
نم ونگونں کے لیے تبدنلي اننےن، نزندنیونں و بہتر بناننے انونر انک مثبت تبدنلي اننے کے ہمانرنے 
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نانظانیہ انک مشکل عانمی منظر انے میں ونجوندنہ معانی کلانت انونر کانرنونبانرنی رنکانونونں کا مقانلہ 
نکرننے کے لیے نت نئے طرنقونں متعانرنف کرناننے ْ نانونر نمو حانل کرننے کیلئے  نہرنی منصونہ 
نندنی ی انیت و بخونی  نھتی ہےن۔ کمپنی اننے حصص يانگانن و انطر خونانہ قدنر رنانم کرننےن، نکمپنی 
نی مجمونی کانرنکرندنی ر مثبت انر ڈناننےن، نانونر اننے سرنمانہ کانرنونں کے انماند و تقونت دننے کے اننے 

نعزنم میں انت قدنم ہےن۔

نگرنونپ ی رنونرنٹ - نذنلي کمپنی
نگرنونپ سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ انونر ڈنونگ گونانن سرنونس گلونل يٹڈ ر تمل ہےن، نجو کہ سرنونس 

نگلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ ی کلی ملکیتی ذنلي کمپنی ہےن۔

نڈنونگ گونانن سرنونس گلونل يٹڈ
ی کمپنی ہے )نمکمل ونر ر غیر ملکی انونی شخص 

� جل� �ی�
نڈنونگ گونانن سرنونس گلونل يٹڈ انک يٹڈ ا�ئ

زن، نین کے سانھ رنٹرنڈ  ��
� � ی�ش نی ملکیت ہے( نجو کہ ڈنونگ گونانن انڈنسٹرنشن آنف مانرنیٹ نرنگول�

نہےن۔  نڈنونگ گونانن سرنونس گلونل يٹڈ کا کانرنونبانرنی دنانرنہ کانر جونونں انونر ونیونں ی بڑنے پیماننے ر 
نرنونتن، نمڑنے ی مصنونعانت ی رنونتن، نلے ہونے ملبونسانت انونر انس سے  نسلک انم مانل ی 
نرنونتن، نانرنڈنونئر مصنونعانت ی بڑنے پیماننے ر  نرنونت ن، نگز ی رنونتن، نرنونزنمرنہ ی رنونرنيانتن، 
نملبونسانت کا معاننہ انونر انکی فنشنگ  نی خدنمانت ن، نیکی خدنمانت انونر دنگر متعلقہ انونر ر محیط ہےن۔نڈنونگ 
نگونانن سرنونس گلونل يٹڈ کمرنہ 302ن، نبر 18ن، نہونی ٹانؤننن، نڈنونگ گونانن سٹین، نگونانگ ڈنونگ ونہن، 
نین میں ونانع ہےن۔ سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ کے پانس ڈنونگ گونانن سرنونس گلونل يٹڈ کے 

%100 نحصص ہیںن۔

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ انونر انس ی کلی ملکیتی ذنلي کمپنی کے مجمونی مانیانی نتانج دنرنج ذنل ہیں:

2022 2023
نتفصیلانت 

نآنمدنن رنونت کا صد نآنمدنن رنونت کا صد نرنونے ہزنانر میں نرنونے ہزنانر میں 

11,753,088 15,071,163 نانص رنونت

19% 2,185,651 22% 3,346,474 نگرنونس منانع

12% 1,379,204 14% 2,118,693 نآنرننگ منانع

6% 687,950 11% 1,583,534 نمنانع قبل انز ٹیکس

3% 342,059 8% 1,171,334 نمنانع بعد انز ٹیکس

1.67 5.70 ی�ز آنمدنی  �
�ئ
نفي �ش

رنونرنٹ میں ترنیم کے حونانلے سے  آنڈنٹرنز ی  مانیانی بیانانت ر  نمجمونی 
ونضانت انونر  نمعلونمانت 

نآنڈنٹرنز نے مجمونی مانیانی گونونانرنونں ر اننی رنانے انس بنياند ر انم ی ہے کہ ڈنونگ گونانن سرنونس 
نگلونل جو کہ سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ کا ذنلي اندنانرنہ ہے سے متعلق غیر آنڈنٹ دنہ اندناند و مانر شانل 
نہیںن۔ مقانی چینی انونی قونانیں کے مطانقن، نڈنونگ گونانن سرنونس گلونل کے ماني بیانانت کے یرنونی 
نآنڈنٹ ی وني رنونرنت نہيں ہےن۔ لانونہ انزنںن، نڈنونگ گونانن سرنونس گلونل يٹڈ کے ماني بیانانت مکمل 

نونر ر  31 ندنبر 2023 نو ختم ہوننے ونانلے سانل کے لیے کمپنی کے مجمونی مانیانی گونونانرنونں  
نکیلئےنغیر انم ہیں ن، نانس کے  نپیش نظرن،  31 ندنبر 2023 نو ختم ہوننے ونانلے سانل کے لیے کمپنی 
نکے مجمونی ماني بیانانت میں  IFRS نکے مطانق وني انڈنمنٹ انزنی رنانر نہيں دنی گئی ہےن۔

نڈنونڈنڈ
نکمپنی کے بونرنڈ آنف ڈنانرنٹرنز نے 19 ندنبر 2023 نو ہوننے ونانلے اننے انلانس میں  3 نرنونے 
نفي حصص کے عبونرنی یش ڈنونڈنڈ کا  نانلانن کیا ہے جس ی رنم  618 نین رنونے ہے )2022: 
نعبونرنی یش ڈنونڈنڈ 2.5 نرنونے في شيئرن(ن۔ عبونرنی ڈنونڈنڈ 11 ننونرنی 2024 نو ممبرنانن و دنيا 

نگیان۔

 2 انلانس میں  اننے  ونانلے  2024نو ہوننے  نرنونرنی   21 ڈنانرنٹرنز نے  نکمپنی کے بونرنڈ آنف 
نرنونے في شيئر )2022: 1 نرنونے في شيئر( نکے حتمي نقد منانع کا انلانن کیا ہے جو کہ سانانہ جنرنل 

نانرنل 2024نو منعقد ہونین، نمیں ممبرنانن ی منظونرنی سے مشرنونط ہےن۔ نمیٹنگ جو کہ 26 

نسرنونس انگ مانرنچ ٹانرنز )نرنانیونٹ( نيٹڈ  نمیں سرنمانہ کانرنی
نسانل SLM 2023 نکے لیے انھا سانل رنا ہےن۔ سرنونس انگ مانرنچ ٹانرنز )نرنانیونٹ( نيٹڈ انس 
نونت ونرنی پیدنانونانرنی انعدناند ر کانم کر رني ہےن۔ پیدنانونانرنی انعدناند میں ونیع کا کانم جانرنی ہے 

نانونر نئی مشینرنی کے لیے لیٹر آنف کرنڈنس بن چکے ہیںن۔

نکمپنی ی کانرنکرندنی کا جانزنہ
نبونرنڈ نے کمپنی ی کانرنکرندنی ر مستقل نظر رننے کا انک نظانم ترنیب دنيا ہےن۔ بونرنڈ کا ہر رنن بونرنڈ ی میٹنگ 
نمیں مستعدنی سے اننی شمونیت و یقینی بنانا ہے انم معانملانت ر تفصيلي گفتگو ہونی ہے انونر انظانیہ و ونانح 
 ندنانيانت دنی جانی ہیں انونر انن دنانيانت کےنعمل دنرنآنمد کرنوناننے ر  نبونرنڈ انونر کمیٹیانںنمستقل نظر رنتی ہیں ۔

نکمپنی ی کانر کرندنی کا جانزنہ لینے کے لیے انظانیہ نے تلف یانرنانت بنانرنھے ہیں جن میں صنعتی 
اندنانز  انر  انونر کمپنی ر  ن، نزنتہ سانونں ی کانر کرندنی  نرنح نمون، نم مرنبہ کمپنیونں ی ونرنت حانل 
نہوننے ونانلے مجمونی انصاندنی انونر کانرنونبانرنی حانانت شانل ہیںن۔ نبجٹ بنانيا جانا ہے انونر انل کانر کرندنی 
 نکا بجٹ سے تقانلی جانزنہ سانل کے دنونرنانن با اندنی سے یا جانا ہے انکہ بلا انخیر انصلانح ی جا سکےن۔ 

نانظانیہ انس بانت و یقینی بنانی ہے کہ کانرنونبانر کے بہترنن طرنقونں ر عمل دنرنآنمد ہو رنا ہےن۔ انظانیہ 
نکانرنونبانر ی کانر کرندنی کا ہر سہ ماني کے انتانم ر جانزنہ لیتی ہےن۔ انس کا مقصد ونجوندنہ سانل ی کانر کرندنی 
نکا زنتہ سانل ی کانر کرندنی سے انونرنبجٹ سے ونانزنہ کرنا  نانونرنبہتر کرنا ہےن۔ مزند ہ کہ کمپنی نے انس 

نسانل کے دنونرنانن کسی بھی رنض ی اندنانگي میں دنر نہيں ین۔

نرنکن، نغیر ممکنانت انونر انن سے بچانو
نرنکن، نغیر ممکنانت انونر انن سے بچانو کے انم نکانت

نکمپنی کا رنک مینجمنٹ رنونگرنانم کمپنی ی کانرنگرندنی ر ممکنہ مضر انرنانت و کم کرننے ر مرنونز رنتا ہے ۔ 
نکمپنی ی سينئر انظانیہ رنک مینجمنٹ کا کانم سر انجانم دنتی ہے انونر اننے نتانجن،  نبونرنڈ آنف ڈنانرنٹرنز 

نکے ساننے رنتی ہےن۔
 نانس کانرنرنوناني میں حکمت عملی سے متعلقہن، نمانين، نکمرنل انونر آنرننل رنک ی شنانتن، نجانزنہ انونر 
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نڈنانر ٹرنز رنونرنٹ برنانے حصص يانگانن
نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ ) SGFLنيانکمپنی (  کےنڈنانرنٹرنز 31 دنبر 2023 و ختم ہوننے 
نونانلے ماني سانل کے آنڈنٹ دنہ سانبانت ر مبنی رنونرنٹ پیش کرنے ہونے خونی محسونس کرنے ہیںن۔

نڈنانر ٹرنز رنونرنٹ کمپنیز انکٹ 2017 نکے سيکشن 227 نانونر دنگر انل انلانق دنعانت کے تحت 
نتیانر ی گئی ہےن۔ 

نکمپنی ی بنياندنی سرنگرنیانں
نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ جونونں کے کانرنونبانر میں مہانرنت رنتا ہےن، نپیدنانونانرنی سہونیانت برنآنمدنی 
نمنڈنونں کے لیےنجونونں ی مصنونعانت ی تیانرنی ر ونرنی طرنح مرنونز ہیںن۔ سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر 
نيٹڈ پانتانن سے جونے کا ب سے بڑنا برنآنمد کنندنہ ہےن۔ سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ ی بنياندنی 

نٹانرنٹ مانرنیٹ آنرنانم دنہ جونے بنا ا  نہے انونر ہ کمپنی ی آنمدنی کا انم ذنرنعہ ہےن۔ 
نکمپنی کا رنٹرنڈ یڈ آنس سرنونس انؤنس �2نین گلبرنگن،  نانہونر میں ونانع ہےن۔

نکمپنین، نسرنونس انڈنٹرنز نيٹڈ کا ذنلي اندنانرنہ ہےن۔

نکانرنونبانر کا جانزنہ
نماني سانل 2022 نانونر 2023 نی کانرنکرندنی کا ونانزنہ 

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ نے  2023 نمیں انتر قونی انونر بین انانقونانی انصاندنی حانانت کے بانونجوند     
ننمو کا مظانہرنہ کیا ہےن۔ 31 ندنبر 2023 نو ختم ہوننے ونانلے مانیانی نتانج کے مقانلے میں 31 ندنبر 
2022 نو ختم ہوننے  نونانلے سانل کے لیے سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ ی مانیانی کانرنکرندنی  ندنرنج 

نذنل ہےن۔
2022 2023

نتفصیلانت 
نآنمدنن رنونت کا صد نرنونے ہزنانر میں  نآنمدنن رنونت کا صد نرنونے ہزنانر میں 

نانص رنونت 15,061,817  11,753,088 

19%  2,185,651 22% نگرنونس منانع 3,301,121 

12%  1,379,204 14% نآنرننگ منانع 2,127,489 

6%  687,950 11% نمنانع قبل انز ٹیکس 1,593,807 

3%  342,059 8% نمنانع بعد انز ٹیکس 1,181,607 

ی�ز آنمدنی  5.75  1.67  �
�ئ
نفي �ش

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ نے  نسانل 2023 نکے دنونرنانن اننے15 نانرنب رنونے ی  نرنکانرنڈ رنونت 
نحانل ی جو کہ پچھلے سانل ی انی مدنت کے مقانلے میں 28 نصد زنياندنہ ہےن۔ انونر بھی زنياندنہ انید انزنانبانت 
نہ ہےنکہ زنتہ سانل کے مقانلے  نمجمونی منانع 2.2 نانرنب رنونے سے بڑنھ کر 3.3 نانرنب رنونے )51%( 
نانونر آنرننگ منانع رنونے 1.4 نانرنب سے 2.1 نانرنب رنونے )%53(نہو گیان۔ ہ سرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر 
نيٹڈ  نی غیرنمعموني مقانی انرنانط زنر انونر بڑنتی ہوني پیدنانونانرنی انت ی ونہ سے پیدنا ہوننے وناني معانی 
نکلانت کے بانونجوند اننے آنرننز و مؤنر طرنقے سے چلاننے کرننے ی صلانیت ی نشاندني کرنا ہےن۔

نسرنونس گلونل فٹ ونئر يٹڈ کے سرنونس انگ مانرنچ ٹانرنز میں سرنمانہ کانرنی کے انک حکمت عملی  نکے 
نتحت کئے ئے انقدنانم سے 474 نین رنونے کے منانع کا حصہ حانل ہونان، نجس کے نتیجے میں ٹیکس 
نسے پہلے کا منانع 688 نین رنونے سے بڑنھ کر 1,594 نین رنونے )%132( نہو گیا ہےن۔ سرنونس 
نانگ مانرنچ ٹانرنز میں سرنمانہ کانرنی سے ہ صرنف ونرنی وناند حانل ہو رنہے ہیںن، نبلکہ انس سے کمپنی 
نکے مستقبل کے منانع ر بھی دنرنپا انر پڑننے ی ونع ہے جس کے نتیجے میں شيئر ہونڈنر ی قدنر میں 
نبہترنی ہو ین۔ بعد انز ٹیکس انص منانع زنتہ سانل کے 342 نین رنونے کے مقانلے میں 1,182 
نین رنونے ک پہنچ گیا ہےن۔ انس کے نتیجے میں ونجوندنہ سانل میں في شيئر آنمدنی 1.67 نرنونے سے 

نبڑنھ کر 5.75 نرنونے ہو گئی ہےن۔

نانسے شاندنانر نتانج حانل کرنانآنسانن نہيں ہونا ن، ندنرنحقیقت ہ ہرنے سونچ بچانر ی بنياندنر ی گئی پیشن 
نگوني انونر حکمت عملی کا نتیجہ ہے جس و کرنونا کے بعد مستقبل میں نمو حانل کرننے کے لیے  نبرنونے 
نکانر انيا گیا تھان۔ ہمانرنا نقطہ نظر ہ ہے کہن، نسانل 2023 نمیںن، نہمانرنی کلیدنی برنآنمدنی منڈنونں )نونرنپ 
نانونر انمرنکہ( نمیں معانی حانانت نے جونے ی رنونت ر بہت زنياندنہ دنبانؤ ڈنانان، نجس کے نتیجے 
نمیں ہمانرنے تمانم ونجوندنہ انکونں کے کانرنونبانر %20�15 نک کم ہو ئےن۔ . نونرنپ میں جونونں ی 
ندنرنآنمدنانت کے حجم میں مسلسل کمی دنھی جا رني ہے جو کہ 2.3 نانرنب جونڑنونں ک گر گئی ہے جو کہ 
2022 نمیں 2.4 نانرنب جونڑنے انونر 2021 نمیں 2.8 نانرنب جونڑنے تھی )statista.com نسے 
یل�زنز آنف انمرنکہ(  �

نمانرنيانتن(ن۔ انی طرنحن، نانف ڈنی آنر انے )نفٹ ونئر ڈنٹرنی بیونرنز اننڈ ر�ی��
نی جانب سے جانرنی کرندنہ رنونرنٹ میں کہا گیا ہےن، "نجونونں ی دنرنآنمدنانت کا حجم پچھلے سانل کے 

نمقانلے میں لگانانر پندنرنہ مہینے سے کم ہو رنا ہے انونر ونبر 23 نمیں %9.1 نکم ہو گیا ہےن۔

نملکی طح رن، نکمپنی و انرنخی انرنانط زنرن، نبڑنتی ہوني انرنتن، نسیانی دنم انحکانمن، نند رنح سوندن، نانونر انم 
نمانل ی دنرنآنمد میں دنونانرنی کا مقانلہ کرنا پڑ رنا تھان۔ انن تمانم عونانل ی ونہ سے پیدنانونانرنی انت میں 
نتیزنی سے انضانہ ہونا انونر پیدنانونانرنی کانرنکرندنی ر منفی انر پڑنان، نجس کے نتیجے میں منانع کے مانرنجن میں 

ننمانيانں کمی ونانع ہونين۔
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